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Mr. K. M. Rezaul Hasanat
Director

Mr. K. M. Rezaul Hasanat (Bangladeshi National) has been a Director of the 
Company since 2011. He is a well known member of the business fraternity 
and the Chairman and CEO of Viyellatex Group. Under his leadership, 
Viyellatex Group came into existence in 2002 and has become one of the 
fastest growing business conglomerates in Bangladesh. He owes a credit 
to be a pioneer in his industry in implementing numerous green initiatives, 
which has led him to be elected President of United Nations Global 
Compact Bangladesh network in 2012. Mr. Hasanat is a post graduate in 
business management from Dhaka University.

Ms. Rupali H. Chowdhury 
Director  
Ms. Rupali H. Chowdhury (Bangladeshi National) has joined in Bata 
Bangladesh as a member of the Board of Director on 26 April 2018. At 
present she is holding the position of Managing Director of Berger Paints 
Bangladesh Limited. Ms Chowdhury has been appointed as an 
Independent Director of Linde Bangladesh Ltd. Effective from December 
2018. She was the Ex-President of Foreign Investors’ Chamber of 
Commerce & Industry (FICCI), Director of SMC Enterprise Limited & SMC 
Holdings, and Independent Director of Marico Bangladesh Limited. She   
completed her graduation with honours in chemistry from the University 
of Chittagong and did MBA from IBA, University of Dhaka. Ms. Chowdhury 
has been selected as a commercially important person (CIP) for her 
outstanding performance in the industrial sector. 
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Mr. Rajeev Gopalakrishnan
Chairman

Mr. Rajeev Gopalakrishnan (Indian National) has been the Chairman 
of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited since 2014. With a rich 
experience of over 31 years in footwear industry, Mr. Rajeev has earlier 
grasped positions of director-wholesale channels with Bata 
International – Canada and Vice President of retail operations and 
wholesale division in Bata India. He was also posted as the Managing 
Director of Bata Thailand and Bata Bangladesh. At present he is 
holding the position of President of Bata, South Asia. “CMO Asia 
Summit” in Asia retail conference in 2015 recognized Mr. Rajeev as the 
‘Retail Professional of the year’.
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Mr. Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh
Managing Director and Vice Chairman

Mr. Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh (Indian National) was appointed as 
Managing Director and Vice Chairman of the company effective 
from 1 April 2020. Prior to joining Bata Bangladesh he was the CEO of 
Biotique, India. Mr. Anirban is senior entrepreneurial executive with a 
successful track record of 27 years of managing sales, marketing, 
operations with Hindustan Unilever Ltd. India, L’Oreal in the FMCG 
sector, across different business, in the Telecom Sector with Bharati 
Airtel Limited in India. He is a Graduate of Presidency College, 
Calcutta with Honor’s in Economics and a MBA with specialisation in 
Marketing.
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Mr. Shaibal Sinha
Director

Mr. Shaibal Sinha (Indian National) was appointed as Director of the 
company in 2012. Remarkable post-qualification experiences in 
different positions in finance across the globe based out of India, 
Singapore, United Kingdom and Middle East. Just before joining 
Bata, he was working with Reckitt Benckiser. Currently, he is the 
“Group Operations Finance Director” based out of Singapore. He is 
also a member of the Board of Directors of China footwear services, 
Bata Indonesia, Bata Malaysia, Bata Thailand, and Bata Srilanka.
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Mr. Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh
Managing Director and Vice Chairman

Mr. Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh (Indian National) was appointed as Managing 
Director and Vice Chairman of the company effective from 1 April 2020. Prior to 
joining Bata Bangladesh he was the CEO of Biotique, India. Mr. Anirban is senior 
entrepreneurial executive with a successful track record of 27 years of managing 
sales, marketing, operations with Hindustan Unilever Ltd. India, L’Oreal in the 
FMCG sector, across different business, in the Telecom Sector with Bharati Airtel 
Limited in India. He is a Graduate of Presidency College, Calcutta with Honor’s in 
Economics and a MBA with specialisation in Marketing.

Mr. Shambhu Nath Jha
Finance Director

Mr. Shambhu Nath Jha (Indian National) was appointed as Finance Director of 
the company on 11 September 2018. He is a certified Chartered Accountant from 
India. He served Bata India from 2006 to 2014 as General Manager – Finance and 
then he transferred to Bata Bolivia as Finance Director and worked from 2014 to 
2018. As a Senior Management Professional, he has nearly 21 years of 
comprehensive experience in the areas of Financial Management, Accounting 
Policies & Procedures, Strategic Planning, etc.

Mr. Amitav Nandy
Retail Director

Mr. Amitav Nandy  (Indian National ) was appointed as Director – Retail Operation 
effective from 2019. Previously he had been serving as Country Manager of  Bata Sri 
Lanka and also held senior positions in Bata India. Mr. Amitav Nandy has wide 
experience in Retail professional with rich experience of over 27 years in Strategy 
Planning & Management, Retail Operations, Sales & Marketing, Brand Management, 
Business Development, Key Account Management, Franchisee Development and 
Team Management. He obtained Bachelor degree in Commerce from Jaipur, 
Rajasthan University, India.

MANAGEMENT TEAM
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Mr. Mohammad Sabbir Raihan
Head of Non-Retail Sales Department

Mr. Mohammad Sabbir Raihan (Bangladeshi National) joined Bata as Head of Non-Retail 
Sales Department back in June’2019. Prior to this he was in Unilever Bangladesh ltd for 14 
years where he has an exposure to work closely with customers, shoppers and consumers.  
Because of working majority times of his career in sales department Sabbir could work very 
closely with Urban and Rural customers of the country. During his time of working in Modern 
Trade, he could work closely with shoppers and under his leadership Modern Trade grew by 
more than 2 times in just 4 years. He had a short and successful stint of working with 
consumers where he had to lead one of the biggest laundry brands of the country: Wheel. 
From 2016-2017 he was heading ARTM (Alternative Route to Market) where he revamped 
Unilever Wholesale operation in the country. During his tenure as Sales Operation lead, good 
numbers of business building projects have been landed which later on fueled for the 
company’s business growth.  Before his joining in Bata, Sabbir was leading Business Analytics 
portion of that company.

Mr. Gouranga Dhar 
Product Development Manager

Mr. Gouranga Dhar (Indian National) was appointed as Product Development 
Manager effective from 2019. Before joining Bata Bangladesh he had been serving 
Bata India since 1993. Mr. Dhar has earned his educational degree in Bachelor of 
Visual Arts from Govt. College of Art & Craft, Calcutta University, specialized in 
drawing and painting. Having more than 28 years of footwear product development 
experience he has core competencies in product development, innovative 
designing, new article introduction planning, new article commercialization, quality 
performance standards and strategic business plan & leadership.

Mr. Razib Jahan Ferdous
E-commerce Manager

Mr. Razib Jahan Ferdous (Bangladeshi National) was appointed as E-commerce 
Manager, effective from January 2018. He joined Bata Bangladesh in 2011 as 
Advertising and Promotion Manager. Prior to joining Bata Bangladesh he worked 
in leading advertising agencies of Bangladesh, Unitrend Ltd. (a McCann Ericson 
World Group affiliate) and Cogito Marketing Solution respectively. Mr. Razib has 
completed his BBA and MBA taking Marketing as Major from University of Dhaka.

Mr. Malik Mehedi Kabir
General Manager, Human Resources

Mr. Malik Mehedi Kabir (Bangladeshi National) was appointed as General Manager, 
Human Resources of the company, effective from February 2020. Before joining Bata 
he worked as General Manager, Group-HR in Anwar Group of Industries. He gathered 
remarkable experiences in different functions of HR and Administration of different 
local and multinational companies over the last 17 years. He obtained MBA in 
Human Resource Management from Bangladesh Institute of Human Resource 
Management and Masters in Personnel Management from Pune University.

Annual Report
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Ms. Abhya
Chief Merchandising Manager

Mrs. Abhya (Indian National) joined in Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) 
Limited as Chief Merchandising Manager on 27 February 2019. Prior to joining in 
Bata Bangladesh, she worked from 2014 to 2019 in Bata India as Group Manager 
– OTB and altogether over 11 years of experience with other companies in India 
and successfully performed in Retail Management, Brand Management, Buying 
& Purchasing, Category Management, Merchandising-Planning & Control. She 
completed her Bachelor in B.E. (Chemical) and MBA (International Business) 
from India.

Mr. Jalil Ahamed Chowdhury 
General Manager, Supply Chain

Mr. Jalil Ahamed Chowdhury (Bangladeshi National) was appointed as General 
Manager, Supply Chain, effective from 2016. He worked for the company at his 
first spell, as Quality Assurance Manager. Before joining in Bata Bangladesh he 
was Manager - Quality ELS & Compliance in Avery Dennison South Asia, 
Bangladesh. His total 25 years of job experience in planning and quality 
assurance is benefitting the Company Supply Chain Management. 

Mr. Patricio Alegria
Chief Collection Manager

Mr. Patricio Alegria (Chilean National) joined in Bata Bangladesh as Chief 
Collection Manager on February 2018. He has over 14 years of experience in 
various Bata companies and successfully performed in shoe design, 
development and collection. Prior to joining in Bata Bangladesh he worked from 
2016 to 2017 in Singapore as Global Product Manager. He completed his bachelor 
in graphic design and did also diploma in marketing and retail management.
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Ms. Nusrat Hasan
Marketing Manager

Nusrat Hasan ( Bangladeshi National) was appointed as Marketing Manager 
effective from 1 February 2022. Before Joining Bata she worked in Marico 
Bangladesh, Perfetti Van Melle Bangladesh and Godrej Bangladesh with 
experience in brand and product management, brand communication 
development, consumer research and media management over the course of 
10 years. Ms. Nusrat earned her BBA from North South University. 

Mr. Md. Hashim Reza
General Manager - Finance & Company Secretary

Mr. Md. Hashim Reza (Bangladeshi National) was appointed as Company Secretary 
effective from 2005. Beside this position, he is also holding the position of General 
Manager- Finance. He started his carrier with Bata Bangladesh as senior officer in 
Finance and Administration Department since 1992. Altogether he has 30 years of 
experience in this company. He is FCMA from the Institute of Cost and Management 
Accountants of Bangladesh, and FCS from the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of 
Bangladesh.

Mr. Md. Humayun Kabir 
Head of Internal Audit

Mr. Md. Humayun Kabir (Bangladeshi National) was appointed as Head of 
Internal Audit effective from 2017. He joined in Bata Bangladesh as Senior 
Internal Auditor in 2003. Before joining in Bata, he worked for ACNABIN & Co. 
Chartered Accountants, Bangladesh. He has 22 years of experience in auditing. 
He obtained Masters of Business Administration (MBA), major in Finance.
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Company Secretary
Md. Hashim Reza

Auditors
Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants
House # 15, Road # 12, Block # F 
Niketon, Gulshan-1 
Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh.

Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors 
Arun & Company
Chartered  Accountants
House # 558, East Kazi Para, 
Kafrul, Mirpur, Dhaka-1216

Legal Advisers
Amin Uddin & Associates
Mahbubul Hoque & Associates
The Law Spurt

Bankers
Eastern Bank Ltd.
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GB weÁwßi gva¨‡g Rvbv‡bv hv‡”Q †h, evUv my †Kv¤úvwb (evsjv‡`k) wjwg‡UW-Gi 50 Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv wbgœwjwLZ Kvh©vewj
m¤úv`‡bi Rb¨ AvMvgx e„n¯úwZevi, 30 Ryb 2022  mKvj 11 :0 0 Uvq wWwRUvj cøvUd‡g© i gva¨‡g AbywôZ n‡e : 
1. 31 wW‡m¤̂i 2021   Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Rb¨ cwiPvjKe„‡›`i cÖwZ‡e`b MÖnY, we‡ePbv I Aby‡gv`b|
2. 31 wW‡m¤̂i 2021  Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Rb¨ wbixwÿZ wnmve Ges wbixÿK‡`i cÖwZ  ‡e`b MÖnY, we‡ePbv I Aby‡gv`b|
3. cwiPvjKe„‡›`i mycvwikK„Z jf¨vsk Aby‡gv`b| 
4. cwiPvjKe„‡›`i wbe©vPb|
5. 2022   mv‡ji Rb¨ mswewae× wbixÿK Ges Ki‡c© v‡iU Mfv‡b©  Ý KgcøvBÝ wbixÿK wb‡qvM Ges Zuv‡`i cvwikÖwgK wba©viY|

cwiPvjKgÐjxi Av‡`kµ‡g, 

†gvt nvwmg †iRv
UsMx, 25  GwcÖj   2022 †Kv¤úvwb mwPe

ª̀óe¨:
1. 23  †g  2022   n‡”Q †iKW© †WU| †h me †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i bvg D³ ZvwiL ch©šÍ †Kv¤úvwbi †kqvi †iwR÷vi wKsev wWcwRUwi

†iwR÷v‡i bw_fz³ n‡e, ZuuvivB evwl©K mvaviY mfvq †hvM`vb Ki‡Z cvi‡eb I jf¨vsk cv‡eb|
2. mvaviY mfvwU https://bata50th.digitalagmbd.net GB wjs‡Ki gva¨‡g AbywôZ n‡e| m`m¨MY GwRGg Gi 24 NÈv c~‡e©

Ges wgwUs PjvKvjxb mg‡q Zv‡`i dwjI / weIAvBwW bv¤̂vi Ges †kqvi msL¨v  c~iY K‡i GwRGg-G Ask MÖnY Ki‡Z cvi‡eb
Ges GLv‡b Zviv cÖkœ,  gZvgZ Ges †fvU cÖavb Ki‡Z cvi‡eb |

3. GKRb m`m¨ GB mvaviY mfvq Dcw ’̄Z _vK‡Z Ges †fvU cÖ`vb Ki‡Z cv‡ib wKsev Zuvi ¯̂c‡¶ Dcw ’̄Z n‡Z Ges †fvU w`‡Z
GKRb cÖw· wb‡qvM Ki‡Z cv‡ib| cÖw· dig h_vh_fv‡e c~iY K‡i Ges Dchy³ †iwfwbD ÷¨v¤ú mnKv‡i b~¨bZg 48 N›Uv
c~‡e© †Kv¤úvwbi †iwRóvW© Awdm A_ev bd.share@bata.com GB B‡gBj-G cvVv‡bvi Rb¨ Aby‡iva Kiv hv‡”Q| cÖw· dig
ms‡hvRb Kiv n‡jv|

Notice is hereby given that the 50TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited
will be held on Thursday, 30 June 2022 at 11:00 a.m. through digital platform to transact the following business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company and the Auditors’ Report
thereon for the year ended 31 December 2021.

3. To approve Dividend as recommended by the Directors.

4. To elect Directors.

5. To appoint Statutory Auditors and Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors and fix their  remuneration for
the year 2022.

By order of the Board,

Md. Hashim Reza
Tongi, 25 April 2022 Company Secretary 

NOTES:

1. 23 May 2022 is the RECORD DATE. Shareholders whose names appearing in the share register of the
Company or in the depository register on that date will be eligible to attend at the AGM and to receive
dividend.

2. The Annual General Meeting will be held through the link https://bata50th.digitalagmbd.net Members will
able to login before 24 hours of the meeting time and during the AGM with putting their Folio/BO ID and no.
of shares and able to submit their questions/comments and vote.

3. A member eligible to attend and vote at the General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend the meeting
and vote on his/her behalf. Form of Proxy, duly completed and must be affixed with requisite revenue stamp
and must be deposited at Company’s Registered Office or send through mail or email at bd.share@bata.com
at least 48 hours before the appointed time for the meeting. A Proxy Form is enclosed.

Notice of Annual General Meetingevwl©K mvaviY mfvi weÁwß 
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Product Training: 
To enhance product knowledge, Bata Bangladesh arranged Product training every year for retail store 
staff as part of their Improvement of soft skills and interpersonal skill. Good product knowledge ensure 
excellent customer service.

BCP & CSR
Renovate classrooms and school infrastructure
To invest the Bata Heroes Award money in the development of BCP School, we undertook the initiative 
to develop the school infrastructure by repairing the whole wire set-up, replacing the dis-functioned 
lights fans with new ones, and renovating one classroom with new benches, teacher’s table & chair, 
painting, etc.
Impact: We believe this will ensure better infrastructure and a healthy environment for BCP students.
The initiative held: Jan 2021
Total Beneficiaries of this initiative: 900 Beneficiaries 
Number of Volunteers associated with this initiative: 15 Volunteers 

√ Code of Conduct Training 
√ Mental Boost Training 
√ Delta Awareness (Covid-19) Training 
√ Medical Policy Training 
√ Leave Policy Training 
√ Leadership(Coursera) Training 
√ BPR Training 
√ 5s Training 
√ EHS Training &
√ More

Total Training
Manhours
23000+ 

 
Training and Development- 2021
Training gives everyone a great understanding of their responsibilities and the knowledge and helps 
learn new skills which lead them forward in their journey. 

Retail Training: 
Key Highlights: 

Genesis Training: 
GENESIS is not a Project, GENESIS is our Retail 
Strategy. A Good Store Team that delivers a good 
customer service and ultimately a good shopping 
experience.  We ensure multiple clients dealing by 
ensuring excellent customer service.

BootCamp Training: 
We ensure all new hired employee undergo 
90days boot camp training to improve their 
interpersonal skill and product knowledge to 
enhance excellent customer service.
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Children’s Personality Development Session by Bata Children Program
45 students from class six to ten attended this session at school maintaining social distance and health 
& safety guidelines

Personality Development Session on 
“Good Touch Bad Touch”
Execution

√ Children up to class-III  attended this 
session maintaining social distance and 
health & safety guidelines

Bata Children Program held a 
Children's health Check-up campaign
Execution

√ Doctor from Bata medical team 
examined the students of Ashraf textile 
Mills High School 

√ 30 BCP volunteers gave their full 
support to make the program 
successful in cooperation with the 
teachers. 
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†Kv¤úvwb w`‡b w`‡b Dbœqb mvab Ki‡Q| GLv‡b AviI
D‡jøL¨ ‡h, 2021 mvj †k‡l †Kv¤úvwbi bxU Acv‡iwUs
K¨vk ‡d¬v MZ eQ‡ii 30.9 wgwjqb UvKv ‡_‡K e„w× ‡c‡q
1,257 wgwjqb UvKv n‡q‡Q hv LyeB Zvrch©c~Y©| †Kv¤úvwb
GLb ¯̂”QjZv I Zvi‡j¨i w`K †_‡K k³ Ae ’̄v‡b Av‡Q|

2021 mv‡ji †KvwfW-19 cieZx© gv‡K©U †Lvjvi ci Avgiv
†µZv‡`i AviI fv‡jv ‡mev cÖ`v‡bi Rb¨ 8wU wi‡UBj
†÷vi‡K Dbœqb mvab K‡iwQ Ges e¨emv bv nIqvi Kvi‡Y
2wU †÷vi‡K eÜ Ges ’̄vbvšÍwiZ K‡iwQ| GZ evav m‡Ë¦I
Avgiv ‡µZv‡`i mn‡hvwMZvi Kvi‡Y 28 kZvsk LyPiv
weµq cÖe„w× AR©b Ki‡Z mg_© n‡qwQ| †÷v‡i ‡µZv I
Kgx©‡`i ¯̂v ’̄¨ e¨e ’̄v Ges wbivc` cwi‡ek wbwðZ Kiv wQj
Avgv‡`i cÖavbZg KvR, hv m¤úv`‡b Acv‡ikbm I
gvbem¤ú` wefvM †hŠ_fv‡e mn‡hvwMZv K‡i‡Q|

eZ©gvb c„w_ex mwZ¨Kvi A‡_©B AwaKZi wWwRUvj nIqvi
c‡_ ª̀æZ AMÖmi n‡”Q| GKwU cÖwZkÖæwZkxj B-Kgvm©
P¨v‡bj MVb Kiv mvaviY KvR bq Z‡e ÿz ª̀ †_‡K GKwU
ea©bkxj B-Kgvm© P¨v‡bj cÖwZôv evUv evsjv‡`k Gi Rb¨
wbtm‡›`‡n Drmvne¨vÄK| †KvwfW-19 ‡hfv‡e Avgv‡`i
kwcs Af¨vm‡K cÖfvweZ K‡i‡Q, Zv m¤¢eZ A ~̀i fwel¨Z
ch©šÍ Ae¨nZ _vK‡e|

evUv evsjv‡`k ïaygvÎ AbjvBb weµq‡KB Dbœqb mvab
K‡i bvB eis ª̀æZ AMÖmigvb cÖhyw³ MÖnY Kivi gva¨‡g
†µZv‡`i mv‡_ ms‡hvM ̄ ’vcb K‡i, hv MÖvnK‡`i †mev MÖnY
AwfÁZv‡K AviI myweavRbK Ae ’̄v‡b wb‡q‡Q| Avgiv
GKwU mKj P¨v‡b‡ji AwfÁZv ‡K cÖ‡qvM K‡iwQ hvi
d‡j Avgv‡`i B-Kgvm© Kvh©µg‡K mnRZi Kivi gva¨‡g
Kvh©cÖevn‡K c~Y©MVb K‡i hv Avgv‡`i‡K AbjvB‡b cv ỳKv
wk‡í ‡bZ„Z¡ w`‡Z mnvqZv Ki‡Q|

2021 mv‡j evUv evsjv‡`‡ki B-Kgvm© e¨emvi cÖe„w× wQj
MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 693 kZvsk, hv evsjv‡`kx †fv³v‡`i
Pvwn`v e„w×‡K mg©_b K‡i| RyZv †Kbvi †ÿ‡ÎI MÖvnKiv
GLb B-Kgvm© ev wWwRUvj gva¨‡gi Dc‡iI wbf©ikxj|
GQvovI Avgiv Avgv‡`i B-Kgvm© ‡K AviI kw³kvjx
K‡iwQ Ges †ek K‡qKwU gv‡K©U‡cø‡m Nwbôfv‡e hy³
n‡qwQ| Avgiv `vivR I Ab¨vb¨ B-Kgvm© gv‡K©U‡cø‡mi
d¨vkb wefv‡M 1 b¤̂i wn‡m‡e we‡ewPZ n‡q Me©‡eva KiwQ|  

Avgiv µgvMZ weKwkZ nw”Q Ges B-Bgv‡m©i mv‡_ LyPiv
†`vKv‡bi  ÷K¸wj‡K GKxf~Z  K‡i  LyPiv  †`vKvb  †_‡K

million from BDT 30.9 million which is a significant
increase against last year. The Company is now
good position in its solvency and liquidity.

In 2021 post the market opened, we facelifted
around 8 stores to provide a better customer
experience in our retail stores. Further, we closed
and relocated 2 cash drain stores bringing in more
efficiencies in operations. Despite such restrictions,
we were able to grow by 28% with some positive
customer sentiments. Ensuring hygiene and safety
for customers and employees in the store was our
top priority and operations with HR support
provided support to our store teams.

The world has now truly been shifting towards a
more digital world. Forming a thriving e-commerce
channel is no simple task, but from being very small
to a booming one as a channel of Bata Bangladesh
surely is inspiring. The ways the pandemic
influenced our shopping habits will likely continue
into the foreseeable future.

Bata Bangladesh stepped up to the challenge, not
just by supporting and uplifting online sales, but by
embracing emerging technologies that created
connections with shoppers or made their customer
experience more convenient. We ensured a
compelling omnichannel experience, took measures
to facilitate the operations of Bata Bangladesh e-
commerce, and reengineered the operational stream
which escalated us to lead the footwear industry
online as well.

In 2021, our growth was 693% against the previous
year which shows the increase in demand of
Bangladeshi consumers. These consumers now rely
on e-commerce and digital solutions when it comes
to buying shoes as well. We also transformed by
strengthening our e-commerce platform and got
closely associated with several marketplaces. On
that note, we take pride in officially being number
one in the fashion category on DARAZ and all the
other marketplaces.

As we are ever-evolving and we have been growing
remarkably, we finally could show the true spirit of
being an Omni-channel by integrating Retail store
stocks  with  e-commerce,  ensuring  delivery  from

wcÖq †kqvi‡nvìviMY,

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvwbi 50Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv Dcj‡ÿ,
†Kv¤úvwbi cwiPvjKgÛjxi cÿ †_‡K 31 wW‡m¤̂i 2021
Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii evwl©K Avw_©K wnmve I wbixÿK‡`i
cÖwZ‡e`b †ck Ki‡Z ‡c‡i Avwg we‡klfv‡e m¤§vwbZ †eva
KiwQ|  

Avgiv A‡bK Avkv wb‡q 2021 mv‡j e¨emv ïiæ K‡iwQjvg
wKšÍy GwcÖj 2021 G †KvwfW-19 wØZxq †XD‡qi msµg‡Yi
Kvi‡Y C‡`i e¨emvi e¨vcK ÿwZmvab nq, hvnv
†Kv¤úvwbi mviv eQ‡ii e¨emvi cÖvq 30 kZvsk, ZvQvov
Avgiv Avgv‡`i ¯‹zj e¨emvI nvwi‡qwQ| †KvwfW-19
jKWvDb Gi Kvi‡Y Avgv‡`i mKj †`vKvb mg~n †gvU 51
w`b c~Y© Ges 32 w`b AvswkK w`em eÜ wQj| 2020 mv‡j
ïiæ nIqv †KvwfW-19, 2021 mv‡jI Avgv‡`i cv ỳKv
wk‡í e¨vcK cÖfve ‡d‡j‡Q| K‡ivbv fvBivm ïay Avgv‡`i
cv ỳKv wkí‡KB ÿwZMÖ Í̄ K‡iwb Avgv‡`i A_©bxwZ‡KI
aŸsm K‡i‡Q| 2020 mv‡ji gvP© gv‡m evsjv‡`‡k †KvwfW-
19 ïiæ nq Ges G‡`‡ki e¨emvq LvZ we‡kl K‡i d¨vkb
LvZ‡K e¨vcK ÿwZMÖ Í̄ K‡i|

†KvwfW-19 Gi cÖfve m‡Ë¡I Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvwbi MZ
eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 2021 mv‡j Uvb©Ifv‡i cÖe„wØ wQ‡jv 152
kZvsk| G eQi Avcbv‡`i ‡Kv¤úvwb 48 wgwjqb UvKv Ki
c~e©K gybvdv AR©b K‡i‡Q hv MZ eQi Ki c~e©K †jvKmvb
wQ‡jv  1.594  wgwjqb  UvKv|  G  †_‡K  †evSv  hvq  †h,

Valued Shareholders

On the occasion of the 50th Annual General Meeting
of your Company, on behalf of the Board of Directors
of the Company, it is my privilege to present to you
the Annual Accounts and Auditors’ Report for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

We started 2021 with a promising note but from April
2021, the 2nd wave of Covid arrived which brought
with it lockdowns, truncated shop timings, and a
damaging effect on Eid business which contribute
almost 30% of total Company business as well as
we lost the school business. Stores were closed for
51 days on full lockdown and 32 days had a partial
impact. The Covid-19 pandemic had a major impact
on our industry in the year 2021 which started early
in the year 2020. The virus has not only caused
havoc on our shoe industry but has devastated the
economy. The pandemic COVID-19 started in March
2020 in Bangladesh and affected the business and
Bangladesh fashion sector. 

Despite the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Company’s
turnover was 152% in 2021 against last year, and
during the year, the Company came back with a
positive profit before tax of BDT 48 million from last
year's negative PBT (1,594) million which indicates
that the business is moving forward and/or
improving day by day. Herewith mentionable that,
during the year ended 2021, the Company’s net
operating  cash flow  has  increased  to  BDT  1,257
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†Kv¤úvwb w`‡b w`‡b Dbœqb mvab Ki‡Q| GLv‡b AviI
D‡jøL¨ ‡h, 2021 mvj †k‡l †Kv¤úvwbi bxU Acv‡iwUs
K¨vk ‡d¬v MZ eQ‡ii 30.9 wgwjqb UvKv ‡_‡K e„w× ‡c‡q
1,257 wgwjqb UvKv n‡q‡Q hv LyeB Zvrch©c~Y©| †Kv¤úvwb
GLb ¯̂”QjZv I Zvi‡j¨i w`K †_‡K k³ Ae ’̄v‡b Av‡Q|

2021 mv‡ji †KvwfW-19 cieZx© gv‡K©U †Lvjvi ci Avgiv
†µZv‡`i AviI fv‡jv ‡mev cÖ`v‡bi Rb¨ 8wU wi‡UBj
†÷vi‡K Dbœqb mvab K‡iwQ Ges e¨emv bv nIqvi Kvi‡Y
2wU †÷vi‡K eÜ Ges ’̄vbvšÍwiZ K‡iwQ| GZ evav m‡Ë¦I
Avgiv ‡µZv‡`i mn‡hvwMZvi Kvi‡Y 28 kZvsk LyPiv
weµq cÖe„w× AR©b Ki‡Z mg_© n‡qwQ| †÷v‡i ‡µZv I
Kgx©‡`i ¯̂v ’̄¨ e¨e ’̄v Ges wbivc` cwi‡ek wbwðZ Kiv wQj
Avgv‡`i cÖavbZg KvR, hv m¤úv`‡b Acv‡ikbm I
gvbem¤ú` wefvM †hŠ_fv‡e mn‡hvwMZv K‡i‡Q|

eZ©gvb c„w_ex mwZ¨Kvi A‡_©B AwaKZi wWwRUvj nIqvi
c‡_ ª̀æZ AMÖmi n‡”Q| GKwU cÖwZkÖæwZkxj B-Kgvm©
P¨v‡bj MVb Kiv mvaviY KvR bq Z‡e ÿz ª̀ †_‡K GKwU
ea©bkxj B-Kgvm© P¨v‡bj cÖwZôv evUv evsjv‡`k Gi Rb¨
wbtm‡›`‡n Drmvne¨vÄK| †KvwfW-19 ‡hfv‡e Avgv‡`i
kwcs Af¨vm‡K cÖfvweZ K‡i‡Q, Zv m¤¢eZ A ~̀i fwel¨Z
ch©šÍ Ae¨nZ _vK‡e|

evUv evsjv‡`k ïaygvÎ AbjvBb weµq‡KB Dbœqb mvab
K‡i bvB eis ª̀æZ AMÖmigvb cÖhyw³ MÖnY Kivi gva¨‡g
†µZv‡`i mv‡_ ms‡hvM ̄ ’vcb K‡i, hv MÖvnK‡`i †mev MÖnY
AwfÁZv‡K AviI myweavRbK Ae ’̄v‡b wb‡q‡Q| Avgiv
GKwU mKj P¨v‡b‡ji AwfÁZv ‡K cÖ‡qvM K‡iwQ hvi
d‡j Avgv‡`i B-Kgvm© Kvh©µg‡K mnRZi Kivi gva¨‡g
Kvh©cÖevn‡K c~Y©MVb K‡i hv Avgv‡`i‡K AbjvB‡b cv ỳKv
wk‡í ‡bZ„Z¡ w`‡Z mnvqZv Ki‡Q|

2021 mv‡j evUv evsjv‡`‡ki B-Kgvm© e¨emvi cÖe„w× wQj
MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 693 kZvsk, hv evsjv‡`kx †fv³v‡`i
Pvwn`v e„w×‡K mg©_b K‡i| RyZv †Kbvi †ÿ‡ÎI MÖvnKiv
GLb B-Kgvm© ev wWwRUvj gva¨‡gi Dc‡iI wbf©ikxj|
GQvovI Avgiv Avgv‡`i B-Kgvm© ‡K AviI kw³kvjx
K‡iwQ Ges †ek K‡qKwU gv‡K©U‡cø‡m Nwbôfv‡e hy³
n‡qwQ| Avgiv `vivR I Ab¨vb¨ B-Kgvm© gv‡K©U‡cø‡mi
d¨vkb wefv‡M 1 b¤̂i wn‡m‡e we‡ewPZ n‡q Me©‡eva KiwQ|  

Avgiv µgvMZ weKwkZ nw”Q Ges B-Bgv‡m©i mv‡_ LyPiv
†`vKv‡bi  ÷K¸wj‡K GKxf~Z  K‡i  LyPiv  †`vKvb  †_‡K

million from BDT 30.9 million which is a significant
increase against last year. The Company is now
good position in its solvency and liquidity.

In 2021 post the market opened, we facelifted
around 8 stores to provide a better customer
experience in our retail stores. Further, we closed
and relocated 2 cash drain stores bringing in more
efficiencies in operations. Despite such restrictions,
we were able to grow by 28% with some positive
customer sentiments. Ensuring hygiene and safety
for customers and employees in the store was our
top priority and operations with HR support
provided support to our store teams.

The world has now truly been shifting towards a
more digital world. Forming a thriving e-commerce
channel is no simple task, but from being very small
to a booming one as a channel of Bata Bangladesh
surely is inspiring. The ways the pandemic
influenced our shopping habits will likely continue
into the foreseeable future.

Bata Bangladesh stepped up to the challenge, not
just by supporting and uplifting online sales, but by
embracing emerging technologies that created
connections with shoppers or made their customer
experience more convenient. We ensured a
compelling omnichannel experience, took measures
to facilitate the operations of Bata Bangladesh e-
commerce, and reengineered the operational stream
which escalated us to lead the footwear industry
online as well.

In 2021, our growth was 693% against the previous
year which shows the increase in demand of
Bangladeshi consumers. These consumers now rely
on e-commerce and digital solutions when it comes
to buying shoes as well. We also transformed by
strengthening our e-commerce platform and got
closely associated with several marketplaces. On
that note, we take pride in officially being number
one in the fashion category on DARAZ and all the
other marketplaces.

As we are ever-evolving and we have been growing
remarkably, we finally could show the true spirit of
being an Omni-channel by integrating Retail store
stocks  with  e-commerce,  ensuring  delivery  from

wcÖq †kqvi‡nvìviMY,

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvwbi 50Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv Dcj‡ÿ,
†Kv¤úvwbi cwiPvjKgÛjxi cÿ †_‡K 31 wW‡m¤̂i 2021
Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii evwl©K Avw_©K wnmve I wbixÿK‡`i
cÖwZ‡e`b †ck Ki‡Z ‡c‡i Avwg we‡klfv‡e m¤§vwbZ †eva
KiwQ|  

Avgiv A‡bK Avkv wb‡q 2021 mv‡j e¨emv ïiæ K‡iwQjvg
wKšÍy GwcÖj 2021 G †KvwfW-19 wØZxq †XD‡qi msµg‡Yi
Kvi‡Y C‡`i e¨emvi e¨vcK ÿwZmvab nq, hvnv
†Kv¤úvwbi mviv eQ‡ii e¨emvi cÖvq 30 kZvsk, ZvQvov
Avgiv Avgv‡`i ¯‹zj e¨emvI nvwi‡qwQ| †KvwfW-19
jKWvDb Gi Kvi‡Y Avgv‡`i mKj †`vKvb mg~n †gvU 51
w`b c~Y© Ges 32 w`b AvswkK w`em eÜ wQj| 2020 mv‡j
ïiæ nIqv †KvwfW-19, 2021 mv‡jI Avgv‡`i cv ỳKv
wk‡í e¨vcK cÖfve ‡d‡j‡Q| K‡ivbv fvBivm ïay Avgv‡`i
cv ỳKv wkí‡KB ÿwZMÖ Í̄ K‡iwb Avgv‡`i A_©bxwZ‡KI
aŸsm K‡i‡Q| 2020 mv‡ji gvP© gv‡m evsjv‡`‡k †KvwfW-
19 ïiæ nq Ges G‡`‡ki e¨emvq LvZ we‡kl K‡i d¨vkb
LvZ‡K e¨vcK ÿwZMÖ Í̄ K‡i|

†KvwfW-19 Gi cÖfve m‡Ë¡I Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvwbi MZ
eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 2021 mv‡j Uvb©Ifv‡i cÖe„wØ wQ‡jv 152
kZvsk| G eQi Avcbv‡`i ‡Kv¤úvwb 48 wgwjqb UvKv Ki
c~e©K gybvdv AR©b K‡i‡Q hv MZ eQi Ki c~e©K †jvKmvb
wQ‡jv  1.594  wgwjqb  UvKv|  G  †_‡K  †evSv  hvq  †h,

Valued Shareholders

On the occasion of the 50th Annual General Meeting
of your Company, on behalf of the Board of Directors
of the Company, it is my privilege to present to you
the Annual Accounts and Auditors’ Report for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

We started 2021 with a promising note but from April
2021, the 2nd wave of Covid arrived which brought
with it lockdowns, truncated shop timings, and a
damaging effect on Eid business which contribute
almost 30% of total Company business as well as
we lost the school business. Stores were closed for
51 days on full lockdown and 32 days had a partial
impact. The Covid-19 pandemic had a major impact
on our industry in the year 2021 which started early
in the year 2020. The virus has not only caused
havoc on our shoe industry but has devastated the
economy. The pandemic COVID-19 started in March
2020 in Bangladesh and affected the business and
Bangladesh fashion sector. 

Despite the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Company’s
turnover was 152% in 2021 against last year, and
during the year, the Company came back with a
positive profit before tax of BDT 48 million from last
year's negative PBT (1,594) million which indicates
that the business is moving forward and/or
improving day by day. Herewith mentionable that,
during the year ended 2021, the Company’s net
operating  cash flow  has  increased  to  BDT  1,257
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†Wwjfvwi wbwðZ K‡i Ges cÖhyw³MZ †ÿ‡Î Dbœq‡bi
gva¨‡g B-Kgvm© e¨emv †K mnRZi K‡iwQ| hvi g‡a¨
i‡q‡Q †÷vi A¨vwcø‡Kkb †W‡f‡jc‡g›U Ges AbjvBb
POS-Gi mv‡_ GKÎxKiY, GKwU myweb¨ Í̄ OMS Ges
WMS ˆZwi Kiv Ges 100 wU †`vKv‡bi mv‡_ mshy³ Kiv| 

†Kv¤úvwbi wecYb e¨e ’̄vi Ask wn‡m‡e Avgiv †mwj‡eªwU
Ges m„Rbkxj cÖPv‡ii gva¨‡g Avgv‡`i †mvk¨vj wgwWqv‡K
mg„× K‡iwQ Ges ‡`‡ki kxl© ’̄vbxq †mwj‡eªwU‡`i mv‡_
Iwfwm ‰Zwi K‡iwQ| AwaKš‘, wewfbœ ai‡Yi MYgva¨‡g
cÖPv‡ii gva¨‡g Avgiv Avgv‡`i weÁvcb cÖPviYv e¨e ’̄v
mg„× K‡iwQ| Avgv‡`i mKj †gŠmyg I Drme wfwËK
c‡Y¨i cÖPv‡ii D‡Ïk¨ wQ‡jv e¨emv Ges evRvi m¤úªmvib
Kiv|

Avgv‡`i d«¨vÂvBR P¨v‡bjwU Ab¨Zg jvfRbK P¨v‡bj
wn‡m‡e cÖwZwôZ n‡q‡Q| 2016 mv‡j gvÎ 4wU †÷vi wb‡q
Avgv‡`i dª¨vÂvBR P¨v‡b‡ji hvÎv ïiæ n‡qwQ‡jv| ZLb
†_‡K D³ P¨v‡bjwU †Kv¤úvwbi cÖe„w× AR©‡b AwZ ¸iZ¡c~Y©
Ae`vb †i‡L Pj‡Q, GgbwK †KvwfW-19 Gi mgqI Zv
Ae¨vnZ wQj| 2021 mv‡j d«¨vÂvBR e¨emv 234 wgwjqb
Uvb©Ifvimn 192 kZvsk cÖe„w× AR©b Ki‡Z mg_© n‡q‡Q|
G eQ‡i bZzb 38wU d«¨vÂvBwR‡K evUvi e¨emvi mv‡_
mshy³ Kiv n‡q‡Q| e¨emv AR©‡bi mv‡_ mv‡_, d«¨vÂvBR
P¨v‡bjwU cÖwµqvMZ Dbœq‡b Zvrch©c~Y© AMÖMwZ mvab
K‡i‡Q| AbjvB‡b AW©vi mdjZvi mwnZ ev Í̄evqb Kiv
n‡q‡Q| AbjvBb wewµ I WvUv cÖwµqvKi‡Yi j‡ÿ¨ 80
kZvsk †÷v‡i AbjvBb POS mwµq Kiv n‡q‡Q| Rbej
wb‡qv‡Mi gva¨‡g d«¨vÂvBR P¨v‡bjwU‡K AviI gReyZ
wfwË‡Z cªwZwôZ Kiv n‡q‡Q|  2021 mv‡j ‡Lvjv mKj
†÷v‡i ‡iW-2 gwWDj ’̄vcb wbwðZ Kiv n‡q‡Q|  d‡j
d«¨vÂvBR P¨v‡bjwU 2021 mv‡j mvd‡j¨i Ab¨Zg
gvBjdjK wn‡m‡e we‡ewPZ n‡q‡Q| 

evUv evsjv‡`k NRSD weR‡bm g‡Wj ‡K wW‡cv ‡_‡K
wWw÷ªweDkb c×wZ‡Z iycvšÍwiZ K‡i‡Q| bZzb
wWw÷ªweDkb c×wZ m¤ú~Y© bM` weµq wbf©i c×wZ hv
evwK‡Z weµ‡qi SzwK ~̀i K‡i‡Q| eûgvwÎK c`‡ÿc
(‡hgb- wWjvi‡`i mv‡_ m¤úK© Dbœqb, cvIbv UvKv
Av`v‡q Z„Zxq cÿ cÖwZwbwa wb‡qvM I AvBwb c`‡ÿc)
MÖnY Kivi d‡j bxU wiwm‡fej MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 79
kZvsk n«vm †c‡q‡Q| AwaKš‘, Avgiv wW‡cv Uz wWjvi ‡_‡K
B2B †Z iæcvšÍwiZ K‡iwQ| weµq 52 kZvsk e„w×, bxU
Bb‡f›Uwi MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq GB eQi 95 kZvsk Ges
wiwm‡fej 79 kZvsk n«vm cvIqvq K¨vk ‡e‡o‡Q 495
kZvsk|

retail stores, and many other significant
developments in the technical arena which includes
in-store application development and integration
with online POS, development of a streamlined OMS
and WMS and launching of in-store business in 100
stores. 

As a part of communication and marketing
exclusively for the company, we enriched our social
media with creative promotions through celebrities
and influencers and developed OVCs with top
celebrities of the country as well. Moreover, we have
improved our advertising campaigns in all media.
The focus of our promotional campaigns for
seasonal and festival products was to enhance
market demand and, as a consequence, a positive
contribution to our turnover and expansion of our
market.

Our Franchise channel has become one of the most
profitable sales channels for the Company. The
journey started back in 2016 with 4 stores only. Ever
since, the channel contributed significantly to
Company profitability, even during the pandemic
period. In 2021 Franchise business secured 192%
growth with a turnover achievement of BDT 234
million. The channel secured 102% against the
target and onboarded 38 new Franchisees. While
securing the Business, the channel has made
significant progress in process development. The
online Order Management System has been
implemented successfully to secure order fulfillment.
Online POS has been activated in 80% of stores to
process the sales and data. Organogram has been
bolstered with manpower as well. In addition, the
Red-2 module has been ensured for all stores
opened in 2021. In a nutshell, the year 2021 has
been a milestone of success for the Franchise
channel. 

Bata Bangladesh changes its business model from
depot to distribution. The New Distribution Model is
a complete cash model, de-risking receivables from
the market. Net receivables reduced by 79% against
last year mainly because multiple initiatives have
been taken to collect from dealers i.e. business
relation development with dealers, hiring a third
party credit recovery agency, and legal action. Also,
we have changed the B2B business model from
Depot to Dealers. Cash increased 495% against last
year as business increased by 52%,  net  inventories

maintained 95%, and receivables reduced by 79%
against last year. 

Your Company constantly introduced new products
in all categories; taking into account consumer
demand in various market segments for new styles
and designs, without ignoring the necessity for
volume sales, which is our traditional strength,
particularly in Thongs, Sandals, and Summer Lines.
This initiative included improving the status of our
footwear, gaining the loyalty of our respected
customers, introducing the latest branded products,
and introducing an extensive expansion program to
increase the number of retail and wholesale outlets
in vital commercial locations. 

As part of Bata’s CSR, Bata Bangladesh with the
ambition of creating a brilliant and better future for
the children, Bata Bangladesh adopted an
underprivileged school named ‘Ashraf Textile Mills
High School’ and brought out initiatives such as
School Renovation, a Health campaign, Teacher’s
training, Mentoring session for students, awareness
session, collaboration with UNICEF for teacher’s
assessment and development and so on. Previously
the school had very poor infrastructure. There was a
shortage of light, fans, benches, tables, and chairs in
the classrooms, no separate toilets for boys and
girls, and the infrastructure of the school was not up
to the mark. Our renovation project supported the
school to have a healthy and safe environment with
adequate classroom furniture, lights, fans, toilets,
drinking water facilities, etc. During Covid, the
teachers were not skilled enough technologically to
take classes online. Hence, we gave teachers
training on MS. PowerPoint and how to take online
classes effectively. We arranged a mentoring session
on ‘Personality Development’ to escalate their
mental strength. We arranged a general health
check-up camp for the students to assess children's
physical health, general well-being, overall
development, and early detection of any deficiencies
so that appropriate medical interventions can be
initiated if required. By the end of 2021, we went into
collaboration with UNICEF for Teacher assessment
and development. UNICEF visited our school and
collected our teacher’s profiles for assessment and
further development initiatives.

We have continued training to be the key driver and
we covered 185 stores under the “Genesis” project,
which helps to improve Conversion and Retails KPIs

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvwb Zvi HwZn¨MZ cY¨ Pàj, m¨vbWvK,
mvgvi jvB‡bi cÖPzi cwigvY weµq‡K D‡cÿv bv K‡i
MÖvn‡Ki Pvwn`vi K_v gv_vq †i‡L wbqwgZfv‡e wewfbœ
K¨vUvMwi‡Z bZzb bZzb ÷vBj I wWRvB‡bi cY¨ evRv‡i
wb‡q Gm‡‡Q| GB mKj D‡`¨v‡Mi AšÍf~©w³ Avgv‡`i c‡Y¨i
gh©v`v eûjvs‡k e„w× K‡i‡Q, AR©b K‡i‡Q MÖvnK‡`i
AvbyMZ¨| Avgv‡`i m¤§vwbZ MÖvnK‡`i Rb¨ me©vaywbK
eª¨v‡Ûi RyZv Avgiv cÖwZwbqZ evRv‡i wb‡q AvmwQ| 

mvgvwRK `vqe×Zvi Ask wn‡m‡e, evUv evsjv‡`k wkï‡`i
Rb¨ GKwU D¾j Ges DbœZ fwel¨Z ˆZwii D”PvKvOÿv
wb‡q, ÔAvkivd †U·UvBj wgjm nvB ¯‹zjÕ bv‡g GKwU
myweavewÂZ ¯‹zj‡K cwiPvjbvi `vwqZ¡, ¯‹zj ms¯‹vi, ¯̂v ’̄¨
†mev cÖPvi I wkÿK‡`i cÖwkÿ‡Yi D‡`¨vM wb‡q‡Q|
BDwb‡m‡di mv‡_ †hŠ_fv‡e wkÿv_©x‡`i Dc‡`k `vb,
m‡PZbZv e„w×, wkÿK‡`i g~j¨vq‡bi e¨e ’̄v MÖnY K‡iwQ|
Av‡M we`¨vjqwUi AeKvVv‡gv LyeB ỳe©j wQj| †kªYxK‡ÿ
Av‡jv, d¨vb, †eÂ, †Uwej I †Pqv‡ii Afve wQj, †Q‡j-
‡g‡q‡`i Rb¨ Avjv`v Uq‡jU wQj bv Ges we`¨vj‡qi
AeKvVv‡gv wQj bv| Avgv‡`i ms¯‹vi cÖKí ¯‹zjwU‡K ch©vß
†kÖYxK‡ÿi AvmevecÎ, jvBU, d¨vb, Uq‡jU, cvbxq
myweav BZ¨vw` mn GKwU ¯̂v ’̄¨Ki Ges wbivc` cwi‡ek
m„wó‡Z mnvqZv K‡i‡Q| †KvwfW-19 Gi mgq wkÿKiv
AbjvB‡b K¬vm †bIqvi g‡Zv cÖhyw³MZ h‡_ó `ÿ wQ‡jb
bv| Avgiv wkÿK‡`i MS PowerPoint Ges Online K¬vk
†bqvi cÖwkÿY w`‡qwQ| Zv‡`i gvbwmK kw³ evov‡bvi Rb¨
Avgiv Ôe¨w³Z¡ weKvkÕ wel‡q GKwU †g›Uwis †mk‡bi e¨e ’̄v
K‡iwQ| wkï‡`i kvixwiK ¯̂v ’̄¨, mvaviY my ’̄Zv, mvgwMÖK
weKvk Ges †h‡Kvb NvUwZ cÖv_wgKfv‡e mbv³ Kivi Rb¨
Avgiv wkÿv_©x‡`i Rb¨ GKwU mvaviY ¯̂v ’̄¨ cixÿv Kg©m~Pxi
e¨e ’̄v K‡iwQ| AviI AwaKZi Dbœq‡bi Rb¨ BDwb‡md
Avgv‡`i ¯‹zj cwi`k©b K‡i Ges wkÿK‡`i †cÖvdvBj msMÖn
K‡i‡Q| 

Avgiv Avgv‡`i weµq Kg©x‡`i cÖwkÿY †`Iqv Ae¨vnZ
†i‡LwQ Ges 185wU †÷vi‡K Ò‡R‡bwmmÓ cÖK‡íi AvIZvq
wb‡q G‡mwQ hv Avgv‡`i wi‡UBj †÷v‡i Kbfvimb I
†KwcAvB‡qi DbœwZ‡Z mvnvh¨ K‡i‡Q| `jMZ Kg©¯ú„nv,
b¨vqcivqbZv I Kgx©‡`i g‡a¨ m¤ú‡K©vbœq‡bi j‡ÿ¨
†Kv¤úvwb GB eQi evwl©©K eb‡fvR‡bi Av‡qvRb Kiv
n‡q‡Q| Avgiv Ògv‡mi †miv Kgx©ÕÕ cyi¯‹vi †`Iqv Ae¨vnZ
†i‡LwQ hv †hvM¨ Kgx©‡`i h‡_vchy³ ¯̂xK„wZ cª`vb Ki‡Q|
31 wW‡m¤̂i, 2021 mvj ch©šÍ Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvwb‡Z †gvU
1,062 Rb Kg©x wbhy³ wQj| 
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†Wwjfvwi wbwðZ K‡i Ges cÖhyw³MZ †ÿ‡Î Dbœq‡bi
gva¨‡g B-Kgvm© e¨emv †K mnRZi K‡iwQ| hvi g‡a¨
i‡q‡Q †÷vi A¨vwcø‡Kkb †W‡f‡jc‡g›U Ges AbjvBb
POS-Gi mv‡_ GKÎxKiY, GKwU myweb¨ Í̄ OMS Ges
WMS ˆZwi Kiv Ges 100 wU †`vKv‡bi mv‡_ mshy³ Kiv| 

†Kv¤úvwbi wecYb e¨e ’̄vi Ask wn‡m‡e Avgiv †mwj‡eªwU
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K‡i‡Q| AbjvB‡b AW©vi mdjZvi mwnZ ev Í̄evqb Kiv
n‡q‡Q| AbjvBb wewµ I WvUv cÖwµqvKi‡Yi j‡ÿ¨ 80
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†÷v‡i ‡iW-2 gwWDj ’̄vcb wbwðZ Kiv n‡q‡Q|  d‡j
d«¨vÂvBR P¨v‡bjwU 2021 mv‡j mvd‡j¨i Ab¨Zg
gvBjdjK wn‡m‡e we‡ewPZ n‡q‡Q| 
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MÖnY Kivi d‡j bxU wiwm‡fej MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 79
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B2B †Z iæcvšÍwiZ K‡iwQ| weµq 52 kZvsk e„w×, bxU
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retail stores, and many other significant
developments in the technical arena which includes
in-store application development and integration
with online POS, development of a streamlined OMS
and WMS and launching of in-store business in 100
stores. 

As a part of communication and marketing
exclusively for the company, we enriched our social
media with creative promotions through celebrities
and influencers and developed OVCs with top
celebrities of the country as well. Moreover, we have
improved our advertising campaigns in all media.
The focus of our promotional campaigns for
seasonal and festival products was to enhance
market demand and, as a consequence, a positive
contribution to our turnover and expansion of our
market.

Our Franchise channel has become one of the most
profitable sales channels for the Company. The
journey started back in 2016 with 4 stores only. Ever
since, the channel contributed significantly to
Company profitability, even during the pandemic
period. In 2021 Franchise business secured 192%
growth with a turnover achievement of BDT 234
million. The channel secured 102% against the
target and onboarded 38 new Franchisees. While
securing the Business, the channel has made
significant progress in process development. The
online Order Management System has been
implemented successfully to secure order fulfillment.
Online POS has been activated in 80% of stores to
process the sales and data. Organogram has been
bolstered with manpower as well. In addition, the
Red-2 module has been ensured for all stores
opened in 2021. In a nutshell, the year 2021 has
been a milestone of success for the Franchise
channel. 

Bata Bangladesh changes its business model from
depot to distribution. The New Distribution Model is
a complete cash model, de-risking receivables from
the market. Net receivables reduced by 79% against
last year mainly because multiple initiatives have
been taken to collect from dealers i.e. business
relation development with dealers, hiring a third
party credit recovery agency, and legal action. Also,
we have changed the B2B business model from
Depot to Dealers. Cash increased 495% against last
year as business increased by 52%,  net  inventories

maintained 95%, and receivables reduced by 79%
against last year. 

Your Company constantly introduced new products
in all categories; taking into account consumer
demand in various market segments for new styles
and designs, without ignoring the necessity for
volume sales, which is our traditional strength,
particularly in Thongs, Sandals, and Summer Lines.
This initiative included improving the status of our
footwear, gaining the loyalty of our respected
customers, introducing the latest branded products,
and introducing an extensive expansion program to
increase the number of retail and wholesale outlets
in vital commercial locations. 

As part of Bata’s CSR, Bata Bangladesh with the
ambition of creating a brilliant and better future for
the children, Bata Bangladesh adopted an
underprivileged school named ‘Ashraf Textile Mills
High School’ and brought out initiatives such as
School Renovation, a Health campaign, Teacher’s
training, Mentoring session for students, awareness
session, collaboration with UNICEF for teacher’s
assessment and development and so on. Previously
the school had very poor infrastructure. There was a
shortage of light, fans, benches, tables, and chairs in
the classrooms, no separate toilets for boys and
girls, and the infrastructure of the school was not up
to the mark. Our renovation project supported the
school to have a healthy and safe environment with
adequate classroom furniture, lights, fans, toilets,
drinking water facilities, etc. During Covid, the
teachers were not skilled enough technologically to
take classes online. Hence, we gave teachers
training on MS. PowerPoint and how to take online
classes effectively. We arranged a mentoring session
on ‘Personality Development’ to escalate their
mental strength. We arranged a general health
check-up camp for the students to assess children's
physical health, general well-being, overall
development, and early detection of any deficiencies
so that appropriate medical interventions can be
initiated if required. By the end of 2021, we went into
collaboration with UNICEF for Teacher assessment
and development. UNICEF visited our school and
collected our teacher’s profiles for assessment and
further development initiatives.

We have continued training to be the key driver and
we covered 185 stores under the “Genesis” project,
which helps to improve Conversion and Retails KPIs

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvwb Zvi HwZn¨MZ cY¨ Pàj, m¨vbWvK,
mvgvi jvB‡bi cÖPzi cwigvY weµq‡K D‡cÿv bv K‡i
MÖvn‡Ki Pvwn`vi K_v gv_vq †i‡L wbqwgZfv‡e wewfbœ
K¨vUvMwi‡Z bZzb bZzb ÷vBj I wWRvB‡bi cY¨ evRv‡i
wb‡q Gm‡‡Q| GB mKj D‡`¨v‡Mi AšÍf~©w³ Avgv‡`i c‡Y¨i
gh©v`v eûjvs‡k e„w× K‡i‡Q, AR©b K‡i‡Q MÖvnK‡`i
AvbyMZ¨| Avgv‡`i m¤§vwbZ MÖvnK‡`i Rb¨ me©vaywbK
eª¨v‡Ûi RyZv Avgiv cÖwZwbqZ evRv‡i wb‡q AvmwQ| 

mvgvwRK `vqe×Zvi Ask wn‡m‡e, evUv evsjv‡`k wkï‡`i
Rb¨ GKwU D¾j Ges DbœZ fwel¨Z ˆZwii D”PvKvOÿv
wb‡q, ÔAvkivd †U·UvBj wgjm nvB ¯‹zjÕ bv‡g GKwU
myweavewÂZ ¯‹zj‡K cwiPvjbvi `vwqZ¡, ¯‹zj ms¯‹vi, ¯̂v ’̄¨
†mev cÖPvi I wkÿK‡`i cÖwkÿ‡Yi D‡`¨vM wb‡q‡Q|
BDwb‡m‡di mv‡_ †hŠ_fv‡e wkÿv_©x‡`i Dc‡`k `vb,
m‡PZbZv e„w×, wkÿK‡`i g~j¨vq‡bi e¨e ’̄v MÖnY K‡iwQ|
Av‡M we`¨vjqwUi AeKvVv‡gv LyeB ỳe©j wQj| †kªYxK‡ÿ
Av‡jv, d¨vb, †eÂ, †Uwej I †Pqv‡ii Afve wQj, †Q‡j-
‡g‡q‡`i Rb¨ Avjv`v Uq‡jU wQj bv Ges we`¨vj‡qi
AeKvVv‡gv wQj bv| Avgv‡`i ms¯‹vi cÖKí ¯‹zjwU‡K ch©vß
†kÖYxK‡ÿi AvmevecÎ, jvBU, d¨vb, Uq‡jU, cvbxq
myweav BZ¨vw` mn GKwU ¯̂v ’̄¨Ki Ges wbivc` cwi‡ek
m„wó‡Z mnvqZv K‡i‡Q| †KvwfW-19 Gi mgq wkÿKiv
AbjvB‡b K¬vm †bIqvi g‡Zv cÖhyw³MZ h‡_ó `ÿ wQ‡jb
bv| Avgiv wkÿK‡`i MS PowerPoint Ges Online K¬vk
†bqvi cÖwkÿY w`‡qwQ| Zv‡`i gvbwmK kw³ evov‡bvi Rb¨
Avgiv Ôe¨w³Z¡ weKvkÕ wel‡q GKwU †g›Uwis †mk‡bi e¨e ’̄v
K‡iwQ| wkï‡`i kvixwiK ¯̂v ’̄¨, mvaviY my ’̄Zv, mvgwMÖK
weKvk Ges †h‡Kvb NvUwZ cÖv_wgKfv‡e mbv³ Kivi Rb¨
Avgiv wkÿv_©x‡`i Rb¨ GKwU mvaviY ¯̂v ’̄¨ cixÿv Kg©m~Pxi
e¨e ’̄v K‡iwQ| AviI AwaKZi Dbœq‡bi Rb¨ BDwb‡md
Avgv‡`i ¯‹zj cwi`k©b K‡i Ges wkÿK‡`i †cÖvdvBj msMÖn
K‡i‡Q| 

Avgiv Avgv‡`i weµq Kg©x‡`i cÖwkÿY †`Iqv Ae¨vnZ
†i‡LwQ Ges 185wU †÷vi‡K Ò‡R‡bwmmÓ cÖK‡íi AvIZvq
wb‡q G‡mwQ hv Avgv‡`i wi‡UBj †÷v‡i Kbfvimb I
†KwcAvB‡qi DbœwZ‡Z mvnvh¨ K‡i‡Q| `jMZ Kg©¯ú„nv,
b¨vqcivqbZv I Kgx©‡`i g‡a¨ m¤ú‡K©vbœq‡bi j‡ÿ¨
†Kv¤úvwb GB eQi evwl©©K eb‡fvR‡bi Av‡qvRb Kiv
n‡q‡Q| Avgiv Ògv‡mi †miv Kgx©ÕÕ cyi¯‹vi †`Iqv Ae¨vnZ
†i‡LwQ hv †hvM¨ Kgx©‡`i h‡_vchy³ ¯̂xK„wZ cª`vb Ki‡Q|
31 wW‡m¤̂i, 2021 mvj ch©šÍ Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvwb‡Z †gvU
1,062 Rb Kg©x wbhy³ wQj| 
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in stores. To promote team spirit, integrity, and
employee relations, your Company organized an
Annual Picnic during the year. We also continued to
award “Employee of the Month” certificates which
provided due recognition to deserving employees.
As of 31st December 2021, a total of 1,062 people
were employed by your Company.

Your Company has contributed BDT 1,604 million to
the country’s National Exchequer for the year 2021
as the leading manufacturer and marketer in the
country’s shoe industry. I am very pleased to inform
you that your Company achieved VIP taxpayer
status in the year 2021, which consecutively fifth
time nominated by the National Board of Revenue
(NBR). This year we have also been awarded by the
Large Taxpayers Unit, Value-Added Tax of NBR for
the contribution of VAT to the national revenue.

Your Company’s shares of a nominal value of Tk.
10.00 were traded at Tk. 966.90 on the Dhaka Stock
Exchanges and Tk. 955.80 on the Chittagong Stock
Exchange respectively on 30 December 2021. 

Your Board of Directors approved an interim
dividend of Tk. 7.50 per share amounting to Tk.
102.60 million. The Board is now recommending a
final dividend of Tk. 2.50 per share amounting to Tk.
34.20 million for 2021. This will make a total dividend
payment of Tk. 10.00 per share amounting to Tk.
136.80 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, all
the Directors, except the Managing Director, Mr.
Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh, retire at the Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible offer themselves
for re-election. 

At last, on behalf of the Board of Directors, I would
like to express our gratitude to you, our valued
shareholders, as well as to our valued customers,
suppliers, employees, and the Government of the
People’s Republic of Bangladesh for the keen
support, and cooperation extended to our Company. 

Rajeev Gopalakrishnan
Chairman

cv ỳKv wk‡í Drcv`b I evRviRvZKi‡Y †bZ…Z¦ ’̄vbxq
wn‡m‡e Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvwb 2021 mv‡j RvZxq †KvlvMv‡i
†gvU 1,604 wgwjqb UvKv cÖ`vb K‡i‡Q| Avwg Lye
mš‘ówP‡Ë Avcbv‡`i Rvbvw”Q †h, Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvwb
2021 mv‡j Uvbv cÂgev‡ii g‡Zv RvZxq ivR¯̂ †evW©
KZ„©K wfAvBwc Ki`vZvi ghv©`v jvf K‡i‡Q| f¨vU
cÖ`v‡bi gva¨‡g RvZxq ivR¯̂ Lv‡Z Ae`vb ivLvi Rb¨ GB
eQi RvZxq ivR¯̂ †ev‡W©i e„nr Ki`vZv BDwbU (LTU-

VAT) Avgv‡`i cyi „̄‹Z K‡i|

2021 mv‡j 30 wW‡m¤̂i Zvwi‡L Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvwbi 10
UvKvi cÖwZwU †kqvi XvKv ÷K G·‡P‡Ä 966.90 UvKvq
I PÆMÖvg ÷K G·‡P‡Ä 955.80 UvKvq †Kbv‡ePv n‡q‡Q| 

Avcbv‡`i cwiPvjKgÛjx †kqvi cªwZ 7.50 nv‡i †gvU
102.60 wgwjqb UvKvi AšÍe©Zx©Kvjxb jf¨vsk cÖ Í̄ve
K‡i‡Q hv B‡Zvg‡a¨B cwi‡kva Kiv n‡q‡Q|
cwiPvjKgÛjx †kqvi cªwZ AviI 2.50 UvKv nv‡i †gvU
34.20 wgwjqb UvKvi PyovšÍ jf¨vsk GB evwl©K mvaviY
mfvq Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ mycvwik K‡i‡Q| d‡j 31 wW‡m¤̂i,
2021 mgvß eQ‡i †kqvi cÖwZ bM` †gvU jf¨vs‡ki
cwigvb `vuov‡e 136.80 wgwjqb UvKv|  

†Kv¤úvwbi msNwewa Abyhvqx e¨e ’̄vcbv cwiPvjK Rbve
Awbev©Y AwmZ Kzgvi †Nvl e¨ZxZ Ab¨vb¨ cwiPvjKMY GB
evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Aemi MÖnY Ki‡jb Ges †hvM¨ weavq
cyYtwbe©vP‡bi Rb¨ cÖv_©x n‡jb|

cwi‡k‡l, cwiPvjKgÛjxi cÿ †_‡K Avwg †Kv¤úvwbi
cÖwZ Ae¨vnZ mg_©b I mn‡hvwMZvi Rb¨ Avgv‡`i m¤§vwbZ
mKj †kqvi‡nvìvie„›`, †µZv-mvaviY, mieivnKvix,
wWjvi, wWw÷ªweDUi †Kv¤úvwbi Kg©KZ©v I Kg©Pvixe„›` Ges
miKv‡ii wewfbœ ms ’̄v Z_v MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKv‡ii
Kv‡Q K…ZÁZv cÖKvk I ab¨ev` Ávcb KiwQ|

ivRxf †MvcvjvK„òvb
†Pqvig¨vb
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Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their Report and Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021.  

Industry Outlook  

Despite the pandemic, 2021 will be remembered as the best year in the most difficult circumstance. We had started the
year on a high note, but the path became challenging once the country was further impacted by the pandemic. We have
affixed the foundations of sustainability and remained resilient, which has paved the pathway to deliver yet another
successful year and steady progress across multiple surfaces of our business. Bata  Bangladesh enumerated volume
growth in 2021 despite being in a challenging business environment due to the pandemic. During COVID lockdown, a
focused sales and distribution drive-through alternative distribution models targeted activation in growth markets
throughout the year. Besides, purposeful consumer-relevant and exciting brand campaign launch aided in this growth
journey. 

Despite the COVID-19 Pandemic, Company’s turnover was 152% against last year, and during the year, the Company
came back with a positive PBT of BDT 48 million from last year's negative PBT (1,594) million which indicates that the
business is moving forward and/or improving day by day. Herewith mentionable that, during the year ended 2021,
Company’s net operating cash flow has increased to BDT 1,257 million from BDT (31) million. The Company is now good
position in its solvency and liquidity and the Company has sufficient accumulated retained earnings and cash & bank
balances in its financial position.

Segment-wise performance

The Company’s segment-wise performance in accordance with “IFRS 8-Operating Segments” has been presented in note
no 6 in this annual report.

Risks and concerns

Every business faces uncertainties or risks in its operating environment, which, if not managed and mitigated, would not
only disrupt the achievement of its strategic and operational objectives but may also cause losses that could result in
financial and reputational loss as well. As with other co-existing companies, Bata’s business is also exposed to diverse
risks that arise both from internal as well as external fronts. 

External factors 

The Company’s results may be affected by factors outside its control such as global economical risk, regulatory risk,
changing the customers' needs/demands, political unrest, strike, civil commotion, and act of terrorism.

Changes in income tax and value-added tax

Changes in income tax and VAT laws and sudden unpredictable changes in other business-related laws may adversely
impact the results of operations and cash flows.

Changes in environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations 

In line with global practice, the government has been initiating notable changes in environmental, health, and safety laws
and regulations. The Company may require additional investment and expenditure to ensure conformity with future
changes.

Exchange rate fluctuation 

Since a large proportion of the Company’s raw materials are imported, changes in currency exchange rates influenced the
result of the Company’s operations.

Management perception of the risks

While many of the risk areas are beyond the control of any single company, Bata is closely watching the trends and
developments in each of the risk areas and takes the best possible measures to mitigate them through product and market
diversification, efficient sourcing of materials, use of latest technology, quality, pricing, human safety, and investment in
research and development to gain sustained competitive advantage. Being a strictly compliant company, Bata is aware of
the global best practices in environment-friendly manufacturing processes. Bata played a pioneering role in installing an
Effluent Treatment Plant and Incinerator of the global standard at its plants in conformity with environment-related
regulations. There is no threat to the sustainability of the business.
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Cost of Sales & Gross Profit Margin

During the year 2021, Bangladesh economy experienced a recovery from the losses it faced due to the pandemic situation.
Bangladesh government also imposed a lockdown in 2021. In contrast, it also expressed its supportive actions to the
industry when needed. Hence, shopping malls and retail stores reopened for limited hours, and it allowed the Company
to get the business done during peak seasons and also during the year. This situation led the business to grow its sales,
as well as the cost of sales, also increased by 30% during the year. Above all, an increase in revenue by almost 52%
ultimately led the gross profit increased by 118% against last year.

Extraordinary gain or loss

As per IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, no items of income and expenses are to be presented as ‘extraordinary
gain or loss” in the financial statements. Accordingly, no ‘extraordinary gain or loss has been recognized in the Financial
Statements.

Related Party Transactions

The detailed list of the related parties with whom transactions have taken place and their relationship as identified and
certified by management is disclosed in related part disclosures under IAS 24 in note no 34 in this annual report.

Statement of Director Remuneration

The detailed disclosure of remuneration paid to the directors including independent directors has been taken place in note
no 15 in this annual report. 

Going Concern

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company is a going concern and there are no significant doubts upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern
basis.

Operational results

The Directors take the opportunity to report the Financial Results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
and recommend the following:

Particulars 2021 2020 Changed
Taka Taka %
‘000 ‘000

Revenue 7,774,936 5,084,506 52%

Cost of Sales 4,926,836 3,790,379 30%

Gross profit 2,818,100 1,294,126 118%

Net profit (loss) after tax (106,197) (1,321,483) (92%)

Since revenue increased by 52%, the cost of sales increased by 30% simultaneously. In contrast, operating expenses
increased by almost 17% due to effective management of cost control by the Company. Above all, an increase in revenue
and cost controlling measurements has led the business to minimize the level of losses during the year.

Financial Performance
For the year ended 31 December

2021 2020

Earnings per share (EPS) (Taka)* (5.01) (96.83)

Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS) (Taka)* 91.90 2.26

Net Asset Value Per Share (Taka) 252.33 270.09

Gross Profit Margin (%) 36.39 25.45

Net Profit After Tax Margin (%) (0.90) (26.10)

*Earning per share (EPS) increased compared to last year driven by revenue growth in sales volume and amount, especially
in post COVID period. Net operating cash flow per share increased compared to last year driven by revenue growth in sales
volume and amount as well as an increase in related collections, especially in post COVID period.

Bata A.Report-2022 Cut.qxp:Bata A.Report-08.qxd  5/31/22  11:01 AM  Page 14



Annual Report
2021

 

Directors' Report 2021

27

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their Report and Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
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Exchange rate fluctuation 

Since a large proportion of the Company’s raw materials are imported, changes in currency exchange rates influenced the
result of the Company’s operations.

Management perception of the risks

While many of the risk areas are beyond the control of any single company, Bata is closely watching the trends and
developments in each of the risk areas and takes the best possible measures to mitigate them through product and market
diversification, efficient sourcing of materials, use of latest technology, quality, pricing, human safety, and investment in
research and development to gain sustained competitive advantage. Being a strictly compliant company, Bata is aware of
the global best practices in environment-friendly manufacturing processes. Bata played a pioneering role in installing an
Effluent Treatment Plant and Incinerator of the global standard at its plants in conformity with environment-related
regulations. There is no threat to the sustainability of the business.
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as well as the cost of sales, also increased by 30% during the year. Above all, an increase in revenue by almost 52%
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As per IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, no items of income and expenses are to be presented as ‘extraordinary
gain or loss” in the financial statements. Accordingly, no ‘extraordinary gain or loss has been recognized in the Financial
Statements.
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The detailed list of the related parties with whom transactions have taken place and their relationship as identified and
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Statement of Director Remuneration

The detailed disclosure of remuneration paid to the directors including independent directors has been taken place in note
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Going Concern

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company is a going concern and there are no significant doubts upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern
basis.

Operational results

The Directors take the opportunity to report the Financial Results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
and recommend the following:

Particulars 2021 2020 Changed
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‘000 ‘000
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Cost of Sales 4,926,836 3,790,379 30%

Gross profit 2,818,100 1,294,126 118%

Net profit (loss) after tax (106,197) (1,321,483) (92%)

Since revenue increased by 52%, the cost of sales increased by 30% simultaneously. In contrast, operating expenses
increased by almost 17% due to effective management of cost control by the Company. Above all, an increase in revenue
and cost controlling measurements has led the business to minimize the level of losses during the year.
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volume and amount as well as an increase in related collections, especially in post COVID period.
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Key Operating & Financial Information

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting the key operating and financial data of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 along with the preceding five years below:

Financial results 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka
’000 ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000

Net profit before tax 48,261 (1,593,770) 792,275 1,405,8614 1,588,279 1,422,592   

Income Tax (expense)/income (116,740) 269,072 298,309 11,383 (442,468) (379,574)   

Net profit after tax (68,479) (1,324,698) 493,967 994,478 1,145,811 1,043,018

Un-appropriated profit brought forward 3,447,580 4,741,076 4,501,175 3,977,406 3,309,294 2,717,716  

Earlier year adjustment - - - - - -

Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) (37,718) 3,215 60,574 1252 (19,419) -

Profit available for appropriation 3,204,584 3,447,580 5,055,716 4,973,135 4,435,686 3,760,734

From which the Directors recommended the following appropriations:

Final dividend paid (previous year) (34,200) - (143,640) (143,640) (143,640) (143,640)

Interim dividend paid (current year) (102,600) - (171,000) (328,320) (314,640) (307,800)   

Total dividend (138,600) - (314,640) (471,960) (458,280) (451,440)   

Un-appropriated profit carried forward 3,204,584 3,447,580 4,741,076 4,501,175 3,977,406 3,309,294

Dividend

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board of Directors recommended an interim dividend of Tk. 7.50 per share amounting to Tk.
102,600,000 and now recommends a final dividend of Tk. 2.50 per share amounting to Tk. 34,200,000 thus making a total dividend of Tk.
10.00 per share amounting to Tk. 136,800,000.

Directors Proposed for Re-Election

The Directors retiring as per Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association are Mr. Rajeev Gopalakrishnan, Mr. Shaibal Sinha, Mr. K
M Rezaul Hasanat, and Ms. Rupali Haque Chowdhury, and are eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

Audit Committee Meeting 

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board. All members of the Audit Committee were appointed by the Board of Directors
from amongst the members. They met 4 times during the year 2021. The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. The Audit
Committee is comprised of:

Name of Members Status
K M Rezaul Hasanat –  Chairman, Independent Director
Rupali Haque Chowdhury –  Member, Independent Director
Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh –  Member 

Reports on Activities of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has performed regularly the following activities:
◆ Oversee financial reporting.
◆ Monitoring the choice of accounting policies, principles, internal control, and risk management process.  
◆ Oversee the performance of statutory auditors.
◆ Review the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.
◆ Reviewing the statement of significantly related party transactions.   

Internal Control 

The Company maintains a sound internal control system that gives reasonable assurance that the Company’s resources are safeguarded,
and the financial position of the Company is well managed. The internal control framework is regularly reviewed by the Audit Committee
in each meeting and reported to the Board of Directors. The Group Internal Audit team conducts an audit to evaluate the appropriateness
of internal control. The findings and subsequent follow-up with remedial status are reported to the Audit Committee and are escalated to
the Group Internal Audit. This report further encloses a detailed discussion on Corporate Governance.

Board Meetings
The Board met 4 (four) times during the year 2021. The Company Secretary and Finance Director were also present at the Board meetings.
The attendance by each Director is stated below:

Attended Directors’ Name No. of Attendance
Rajeev Gopalakrishnan 3 meetings 
Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh 4 meetings
Shaibal Sinha 4 meetings 
K M Rezaul Hasanat 4 meetings 
Rupali Haque Chowdhury 3 meetings  

Additional statements on regulatory disclosure:
The Directors of the Company have included the other following disclosures:  
• The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations,

cash flows, and changes in equity; 
• Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained; 
• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements and the accounting

estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment; 
• International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) have been followed in the preparation of the Financial Statements and any

departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed;
• Applying appropriate accounting policies and making  accounting estimate that is reasonable in the circumstances;
• No situation has arisen with minority shareholders who are protected from abusive actions by or in the interest of, controlling

shareholders acting either directly or have effective means of redress. 
• All deviations from the last year’s operating results of the Company have been highlighted under the above Financial Results; 
• Utilization of proceeds from public issues is not applicable; 
• Explanation of financial results after IPO is not applicable; 
• No significant deviation in operation results of those quarterly and year-end operational results is noticed as a whole;
• The ‘Management Discussion and Analysis required by condition 1(5)(xxv) of BSEC notification BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-

158/207/Admin/80 of 3 June 2018 is an integral part of this report.
The Directors also report that: 
• The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements for

the year and to the best of their knowledge believe that these statements do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit
any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

• The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements for
the year and to the best of their knowledge believe that these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws; 

• The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer have further certified to the Board that there are to the best of their knowledge and
belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which is fraudulent, illegal, or in violation of the Company’s Code
of Conduct.

External Auditors
Hussain Farhad & Co., and Arun & Company Chartered Accountants have offered their willingness to be re-appointed as statutory auditors and
corporate governance compliance auditors of the Company respectively. The Board recommends their appointment for the year 2022 and to
continue till the next Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh
Managing Director

Pattern of Shareholdings  
Names of the shareholders along with their position in the shares are listed below:

Names of the shareholders Number of share held % holding

i) Parent/subsidiary/associate/related parties: 
◆ Bafin Nederland (B.V.) 9,576,000 70.000

ii) Directors/CEO/CS/CFO/Audit Head and their  
spouses and minor children Nil Nil

iii) Executives (Head of Functions) Nil Nil

iv) Shareholders, who hold 10% or more Nil Nil

v) Others Shareholders, who hold less than 10%
◆ Non-resident shareholders 215,929 1.58
◆ Local shareholders 3,888,071 28.42

Total 13,680,000 100.00
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) 

The Board formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee in its 240th Board Meeting dated 28 October 2018. During
the year 2021, one meeting was held of the committee on 15 December 2021. The Company Secretary is the Secretary of
NRC. The NRC is comprised of:

Name of Members Status

Rupali Haque Chowdhury -  Chairman Independent Director

K M Rezaul Hasanat -  Member Independent Director

Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh -  Member  

Terms of Reference of NRC

[as per Condition no. 6(1)(c) of Notification dated 03 June 2018]

In compliance with Condition no. 6(1)(c) of Notification dated 03 June 2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission in relation to the Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) shall be formulated
in writing for ensuring the corporate governance of the Company. Thus, this Terms of Reference (“ToR”) is being prepared
to mention the Role of the Committee covering the areas of role of NRC which has been described as follows:

Roles of NRC:

The NRC shall administer the following matters and make a report with a recommendation to the Board:

(i) Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, and independence of a director and
recommend a policy to the Board relating to the remuneration of the directors, top-level executive considering
the following terms:

(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable
directors to run the company successfully;

(b) The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

(c) Remuneration to directors, top-level executive involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting
short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

(ii) Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational
background, and nationality;

(iii) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in a top-level executive
position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

(iv) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of the performance of independent directors and the Board; 

(v) Identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, transfer or
replacement, and promotion criteria; and 

(vi) Developing, recommending, and reviewing annually the company’s human resources and training policies.

31

Annexure-A
[As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvi)]

Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited
Declaration by CEO and CFO

The Board of Directors
Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited
Tongi, Gazipur, Bangladesh

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 December 2021

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/207/Admin/80 Dated 3 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do
hereby declare that:
(1) The Financial Statements of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited for the year ended on 31 December

2021 have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh and any departure therefrom has been adequately
disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis,
in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly
presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control
and maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that: -
(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 31 December 2021 and that to the best of our

knowledge and belief:
(a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements

that might be misleading;
(b) These statements collectively present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with

existing accounting standards and applicable laws.
(ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year

which is fraudulent, illegal, or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its
members.

Sincerely yours,

(Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh) (Shambhu Nath Jha)
Managing Director Finance Director
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(iii) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in a top-level executive
position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

(iv) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of the performance of independent directors and the Board; 

(v) Identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, transfer or
replacement, and promotion criteria; and 

(vi) Developing, recommending, and reviewing annually the company’s human resources and training policies.
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Annexure-A
[As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvi)]

Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited
Declaration by CEO and CFO

The Board of Directors
Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited
Tongi, Gazipur, Bangladesh

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 December 2021

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/207/Admin/80 Dated 3 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do
hereby declare that:
(1) The Financial Statements of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited for the year ended on 31 December

2021 have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh and any departure therefrom has been adequately
disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis,
in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly
presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control
and maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that: -
(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 31 December 2021 and that to the best of our

knowledge and belief:
(a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements

that might be misleading;
(b) These statements collectively present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with

existing accounting standards and applicable laws.
(ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year

which is fraudulent, illegal, or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its
members.

Sincerely yours,

(Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh) (Shambhu Nath Jha)
Managing Director Finance Director
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Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements:

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with International Accounting

Standards (IASs), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and

Exchange Rules, 1987, relevant guidelines issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission,

Financial Reporting Act 2015 and other applicable laws in Bangladesh. Cash flows from operating activities are

prepared under direct method as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis in the statement of financial position except

for land at Tongi which was revalued in 1979. The financial statements provide comparative information in respect

of the previous period. In January 2018, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) has adopted

International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as IFRSs. The

detail of the significant accounting policies is available in note 47 of the Financial Statement.

Changes in accounting policies and estimation

In 2021, there was no major change in accounting policies and estimations except Note 46. The change in

respective accounting policy has been incorporated in the financial statements with retrospective impact and as a

result, previous years figures have been restated. The Company has not early adopted any standards,

interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Comparative analysis of financial performance and operational performance

Annexure-B

Financial results (BDT in million) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Revenue 7,745 5,085 8,573 9,521 9,041

Cost of Goods Sold (4,927) (3,790) (4,751) (5,315) (4,994)

Gross profit 2,818 1,294 3,822 4,206 4,047

Other income, operating expenses and impairment Loss/(reversal) on trade receiva bles (2,623) (2,706) (2,803) (2,743) (2,390)

Operating profit 195 (1,412) 1,019 1,463 1,656

Finance Cost/Income (144) (182) (185) 17 15

Profit before contribution to WPPF 51 (1,594) 834 1,480 1,672

Contribution  to workers' profit participation fund (3) - (42) (74) (84)

Profit/(loss) before Tax 48 (1,594) 792 1,406 1,588

Tax (117) 269 (298) (411) (442)

Profit/(loss) after Tax (68) (1,325) 494 994 1,146

EPS (BDT) (5.01) (96.83) 36.11 72.79 82.34 

Operational Results 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Share Capital (BDT in million) 137 137 137 137 137 

No. of employees 1,062 1,266 1,615 1,621 1,635 

Total contribution to Gov't exchequer (BDT in million) 1,604 1,478 2,150 2,497 2,414 

Cash Flow (BDT in million) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Cash generated from operating activities 1,511 391 1,585 464 1,299

Interest received 20 20 12 25 5

Interest paid (163) (167) (176) (8) (5)

Income tax paid (110) (213) (482) (443) (460)

Net cash from operating activities 1,257 31 939 38 839

Net cash used in investing activities (69) (38) (243) (146) (195)

Net cash used in financing activities (692) (578) (788) (191) (454)

Net cash increase/ decrease in cash and cash equivalents (497) (585) (92) (300) 191

Cash and cash equivalents at 01 January 126 711 803 1,103 912

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 623 126 711 803 1,103

Cash flow movement

Comparison of financial performance with the peer industry scenario

Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited is the only multinational leather and footwear company in Bangladesh. Also,
the reporting period of financial statements of the Company is different from the other footwear industries and hence it is
not possible to compare the financial position and cash flow with peer companies.

The financial and economic scenario of Bangladesh and the Global Economy

Global Economy

The global economy showed signs of recovery in 2021 (5.9%) amongst the pandemic after hitting its lowest point in 2020
since the ‘Great Depression’. However, the pace by which recovery was taking place has been weakened by the deadly
Delta variant and highly transmissible Omicron variant. Vaccinations have proven to be effective against COVID-19.
However, unequal access to vaccines is a major concern as 60% of the population in advance economies were fully
vaccinated while for low-income countries it was 4%. 

Economies have slowly opened-up in the latter half of the year causing demand to rise. Simultaneously pandemic
outbreaks and weather disruptions have resulted in supply shortages causing consumer price inflation to increase rapidly
in countries like US, Germany, and many emerging market and developing economies. This followed by the ongoing cost-
cutting of China’s real estate sector and slower-than-expected recovery of private consumption also have limited growth
prospects.

Each economic unit has already started preparing for the post pandemic outlook of their respective economies and restore
it to its previous state.

Bangladesh Economy

Even among a pandemic struck economy, the GDP growth of Bangladesh stood at 5.5% driven by record remittance
inflows, increase in global demand for RMG (especially from second half) and resumption of work on national projects.
With the current pace of economic recovery, Bangladesh GDP is expected to be 6.9% [Forecast] in the upcoming year.
Despite having highest ever FX reserve till date, demand of USD for foreign payments was not met by the supply of USD
in the market causing BDT to depreciate against USD.

Bangladesh’s government has taken great steps in establishing relationship with foreign countries. Due to increased
participation in infrastructure development projects, Bangladesh teamed up with both Japan and China. Under its “Look
East” policy, Bangladesh will explore partnership with other countries from the same belt. Countries from the Middle East,
especially Saudi Arabia and UAE are the biggest source of remittance while US, UK and Germany remain the main exporters.

For 2022, the focus and priorities would be to build on the growth delivered in 2021 and continue to work on reviving
economy, reducing unemployment, restoring consumption, and managing disruptions in supply chain. Tackling recurrent
coronavirus outbreaks (including those tied to new strains such as the Omicron variant) and expanding vaccine coverage will
remain one of the key priorities in 2022. Target is to fully vaccinate 60% of the population by 2023 and immediately initiate
booster doses. Poor asset quality in the banking sector will keep lending practices tight and private credit growth anemic.
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result, previous years figures have been restated. The Company has not early adopted any standards,

interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.
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Comparison of financial performance with the peer industry scenario

Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited is the only multinational leather and footwear company in Bangladesh. Also,
the reporting period of financial statements of the Company is different from the other footwear industries and hence it is
not possible to compare the financial position and cash flow with peer companies.

The financial and economic scenario of Bangladesh and the Global Economy

Global Economy

The global economy showed signs of recovery in 2021 (5.9%) amongst the pandemic after hitting its lowest point in 2020
since the ‘Great Depression’. However, the pace by which recovery was taking place has been weakened by the deadly
Delta variant and highly transmissible Omicron variant. Vaccinations have proven to be effective against COVID-19.
However, unequal access to vaccines is a major concern as 60% of the population in advance economies were fully
vaccinated while for low-income countries it was 4%. 

Economies have slowly opened-up in the latter half of the year causing demand to rise. Simultaneously pandemic
outbreaks and weather disruptions have resulted in supply shortages causing consumer price inflation to increase rapidly
in countries like US, Germany, and many emerging market and developing economies. This followed by the ongoing cost-
cutting of China’s real estate sector and slower-than-expected recovery of private consumption also have limited growth
prospects.

Each economic unit has already started preparing for the post pandemic outlook of their respective economies and restore
it to its previous state.

Bangladesh Economy

Even among a pandemic struck economy, the GDP growth of Bangladesh stood at 5.5% driven by record remittance
inflows, increase in global demand for RMG (especially from second half) and resumption of work on national projects.
With the current pace of economic recovery, Bangladesh GDP is expected to be 6.9% [Forecast] in the upcoming year.
Despite having highest ever FX reserve till date, demand of USD for foreign payments was not met by the supply of USD
in the market causing BDT to depreciate against USD.

Bangladesh’s government has taken great steps in establishing relationship with foreign countries. Due to increased
participation in infrastructure development projects, Bangladesh teamed up with both Japan and China. Under its “Look
East” policy, Bangladesh will explore partnership with other countries from the same belt. Countries from the Middle East,
especially Saudi Arabia and UAE are the biggest source of remittance while US, UK and Germany remain the main exporters.

For 2022, the focus and priorities would be to build on the growth delivered in 2021 and continue to work on reviving
economy, reducing unemployment, restoring consumption, and managing disruptions in supply chain. Tackling recurrent
coronavirus outbreaks (including those tied to new strains such as the Omicron variant) and expanding vaccine coverage will
remain one of the key priorities in 2022. Target is to fully vaccinate 60% of the population by 2023 and immediately initiate
booster doses. Poor asset quality in the banking sector will keep lending practices tight and private credit growth anemic.
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Risks and concerns related to the Financial Statements

The Company has a series of policies, practices, and controls in place in relation to the financial reporting process, which
is designed to address key financial reporting risks, including risks arising from changes in the business or accounting
standards. The Finance Director is required to confirm annually that all information relevant to the Company audit has been
provided to the Board of Directors through the Audit Committee and that reasonable steps have been taken to ensure full
disclosure in response to requests for information from the external auditor. 

In addition, it is standard practice for the Finance Director to fully review account reconciliations on a bi-annual basis.
Every year, Financial Statement risks are reviewed, involving control and process owners, to identify risks effectively so
that Financial Statement assertions are met. The integrity of the Company’s public financial reporting is further supported
by several processes and steps to provide assurance over the completeness and accuracy of the content including review
and recommendation by the Audit Committee and review and approval by the Board. 

Future Plan of Bata Bangladesh

Bata Bangladesh continues to pursue its ambition of providing the best quality products to consumers through its
numerous customers/brand users. It’s also strategic ambition is to be the leading leather and footwear manufacturer and
distributor that will unleash the potential of Bangladesh and continue growing in shareholder value. The overarching
ambitions in the Company’s strategy are broken down into the following four key areas:

Grow the revenue: Focusing on maintaining leadership, growing sales, and scaling up growth segments. For the high-
profile group, the Company will focus on the best quality goods and services to maximize the shareholder’s value.

Trendy, ease of use & comfortable: To support the company’s growth ambition, Bata Bangladesh is working towards
developing trendy, ease of use & comfortable leather and/or footwear goods along with maintaining modernized fashion
and quality.

Price point: To focus the company’s growth ambition, Bata Bangladesh fix the competitive and reasonable price of goods
to maximizing the shareholder value through gaining the business profit. Moreover, never comprise the quality to set the
price of goods. 

Product Quality: Quality is the prime asset of the company. To emphasize, the company’s growth ambition, Bata
Bangladesh, all over gives the priorities to maintain the product quality. 

Moreover, the Company’s social responsibility initiatives in 2020 will bring about a positive change across the nation with
various initiatives directed towards achieving the sustainable development goals related to poverty mitigation, gender
equality, human development, and well-being as well as donated 223,000 pairs of shoes to its communities like hospitals,
Government health care organizations, defense forces, educational institutions and also donated foods to underprivileged
children in collaboration of UCEP Bangladesh.

Related Party Transactions

The detailed list of the related parties with whom transactions have been taken place and their relationship as identified
and certified by management is disclosed in related part disclosures under IAS 24 in note no 34 in this annual report.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

As part of Bata’s CSR Bata Bangladesh with the ambition of creating a brilliant and better future for the children, Bata
Bangladesh adopted an underprivileged school named ‘Ashraf Textile Mills High School’ and brought out initiatives such
as School Renovation, Health campaign, Teacher’s training, Mentoring session for students, awareness session,
collaboration with Unicef for teacher’s assessment and development and so on. Previously the school had very poor
infrastructure. There was a shortage of light, fans, benches, tables, and chairs in the classrooms, no separate toilets for
boys and girls, and the infrastructure of the school was not up to the mark. Our renovation project supported the school
to have a healthy and safe environment with adequate classroom furniture, lights, fans, toilets, drinking water facilities, etc.
During Covid, the teachers were not skilled enough technologically to take classes online. Hence, we gave teachers
training on MS. PowerPoint and how to take online classes effectively. We arranged a mentoring session on ‘Personality
Development’ to escalate their mental strength. We arranged a general health check-up camp for the students to assess
children's physical health, general well-being, overall development, and early detection of any deficiencies so that
appropriate medical interventions can be initiated if required. By the end of 2021, we went into collaboration with Unicef
for Teacher assessment and development. UNICEF  visited our school and collected our teacher’s profiles for assessment
and further development initiatives.

Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh
Managing Director
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Annexure-C
[As per condition No. 1(5) (xxvii)]

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/207/Admin/80, dated 03 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969: 

Report under Condition No. 9

Compliance Status
Put √ in the 

appropriate column
Not 

Complied Complied

Remarks
(if any)TitleCondition

No.

1. Board of Directors.
Size of the Board of Directors 1.1

√ - -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

The total number of members of a company’s Board of
Directors (hereinafter referred to as "Board") shall not to be
less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty). 

1.2 (a)
√

At least one fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in the
company’s board shall be independent directors; any fraction
shall be considered to the next integer or whole number for
calculating number of independent director(s);

1.2 (b) For the purpose of this clause “independent director” means a director

1.2 (b)(i) √Who either does not hold any share in the company or
holds less than one percent (1%) shares of the total paid-up
shares of the company;

1.2 (b) (ii)

√

Who is not a sponsor of the company or is not connected
with the company's any sponsor or director or nominated
director or shareholder of the company or any of its
associates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and parents or
holding entities who holds one percent (1%) or more shares
of the total paid-up shares of the company on the basis of
family relationship and his or her family members also shall
not hold above mentioned shares in the company: 

Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother,
brother, sister, son-in-law and daughter-in-law shall be
considered as family members;

1.2 (b)(iii) √Who has not been an executive of the company in
immediately preceding 2 (two) financial years;

1.2 (b)(iv) √Who does not have any other relationship, whether
pecuniary or otherwise, with the company or its subsidiary
or associated companies;

1.2 (b)(v) √Who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement
Certificate) holder, director or officer of any stock exchange;

1.2 (b)(vii)

√

Who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or
an executive during the preceding 3 (three) years of the
concerned company's statutory audit firm or audit firm
engaged in internal audit services or audit firm conducting
special audit or professional certifying compliance of this
Code;

1.2 (b)(vi) √Who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent
direct or officer of any member or TREC holder of stock
exchange or an intermediary of the capital market;

1.2 Independent Directors

Annexure-B                    
[Certificate as per condition No. 1(5) (xxvii)]

Report to the Shareholders of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited on
Compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Bata Shoe Company
(Bangladesh) Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended on 31 December 2021. This Code relates to the
Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the company. Our examination was
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to the
conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any
condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after due scrutiny
and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated in the above-
mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission;

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this Code;

c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies Act, 1994, the
securities laws and other relevant laws; and

d) The Governance of the Company is satisfactory.

Arun Kumer Kundu FCA 
Managing Partner

Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh     For Arun & Company
Date: 28 April 2022 Chartered Accountants

Our Services: Audit & Assurance I Accounting I Income Tax I Company Affairs
Business Valuation I Management Advisory.
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Annexure-C
[As per condition No. 1(5) (xxvii)]
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shall be considered to the next integer or whole number for
calculating number of independent director(s);

1.2 (b) For the purpose of this clause “independent director” means a director

1.2 (b)(i) √Who either does not hold any share in the company or
holds less than one percent (1%) shares of the total paid-up
shares of the company;

1.2 (b) (ii)

√

Who is not a sponsor of the company or is not connected
with the company's any sponsor or director or nominated
director or shareholder of the company or any of its
associates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and parents or
holding entities who holds one percent (1%) or more shares
of the total paid-up shares of the company on the basis of
family relationship and his or her family members also shall
not hold above mentioned shares in the company: 

Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother,
brother, sister, son-in-law and daughter-in-law shall be
considered as family members;

1.2 (b)(iii) √Who has not been an executive of the company in
immediately preceding 2 (two) financial years;

1.2 (b)(iv) √Who does not have any other relationship, whether
pecuniary or otherwise, with the company or its subsidiary
or associated companies;

1.2 (b)(v) √Who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement
Certificate) holder, director or officer of any stock exchange;

1.2 (b)(vii)

√

Who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or
an executive during the preceding 3 (three) years of the
concerned company's statutory audit firm or audit firm
engaged in internal audit services or audit firm conducting
special audit or professional certifying compliance of this
Code;

1.2 (b)(vi) √Who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent
direct or officer of any member or TREC holder of stock
exchange or an intermediary of the capital market;

1.2 Independent Directors

Annexure-B                    
[Certificate as per condition No. 1(5) (xxvii)]

Report to the Shareholders of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited on
Compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Bata Shoe Company
(Bangladesh) Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended on 31 December 2021. This Code relates to the
Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the company. Our examination was
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to the
conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any
condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after due scrutiny
and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated in the above-
mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission;

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this Code;

c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies Act, 1994, the
securities laws and other relevant laws; and

d) The Governance of the Company is satisfactory.

Arun Kumer Kundu FCA 
Managing Partner

Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh     For Arun & Company
Date: 28 April 2022 Chartered Accountants

Our Services: Audit & Assurance I Accounting I Income Tax I Company Affairs
Business Valuation I Management Advisory.
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appropriate column
Not 

Complied Complied

Remarks
(if any)TitleCondition

No.

1.3 (b) (iv) Not ApplicableUniversity Teacher who has educational background in
Economics or Commerce or Business Studies or Law; or

1.3 (b) (v) Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least
in the High Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or
a Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management
Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or Chartered
Certified Accountant or Certified Public Accountant or
Chartered Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary
or equivalent qualification;

1.3 (c) √The independent director(s) shall have at least 10 (ten) years
of experiences in any field mentioned in clause (b);

1.3 (d)

No such
Gain/Loss

In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may
be relaxed subject to prior approval of the Commission.

1.4 Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer

1.5 The Directors' Report to Shareholders addition

1.4 (d) √The Board shall clearly define respective roles and
responsibilities of the Chairperson and the Managing
Director and/or Chief Executive officer;

1.4 (a) √The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the
Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of the company shall be filled by different individuals;

1.4 (b) √The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of a listed company shall not hold the same position
in another listed company;

1.4 (c) √The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among
the non-executive directors of the company;

1.4 (e)
√

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the
remaining members may elect one of themselves from non-
executive directors as chairperson for that particular
Board's meeting; the reason of absence of the regular
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

1.5 (iii) √
Risks and concerns including internal and external risk
factors, threat to sustainability and negative impact on
environment, if any;

1.5 (iv) √A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin
and Net Profit Margin, where applicable;

1.5 (v) A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities
and their implications (gain or loss);

1.5 (i) √An industry outlook and possible future developments in the
industry;

1.5 (ii) √The Segment-wise or product-wise performance;

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

-

-

Presented in the
Financial Statement 

Compliance Status
Put √ in the 

appropriate column
Not 

Complied Complied

Remarks
(if any)TitleCondition

No.

1.2 (b)(viii) √Who is not independent director in more than 5 (five) listed
companies;

1.2 (b)(ix) √Who has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction
as a defaulter in payment of any loan or any advance to a bank
or a Non-Bank Financial Institution (NBFI); and

1.2 (b)(x) √Who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving
moral turpitude;

1.2(c) √The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the board
of directors and approved by the shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting (AGM).

1. 2 (d) Not Applicable

√

No such vacancy
created in 2021

The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant
for more than 90 (ninety) days; and

1.2 (e)

√

The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for
a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1
(one) term only;
Provided that a former independent director may be
considered for reappointment for another tenure after a time
gap of one tenure, i.e., three years from his or her
completion of consecutive two tenures [i.e. six years]:
Provided further that the independent director shall not be
subject to retirement by rotation as per the Companies Act,
1994.

1.3 Qualification of Independent Director (ID)

1.3 (b) Independent director shall have following qualifications

1.3 (a) √Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual
with integrity who is able to ensure compliance with
financial laws, regulatory requirements and corporate laws
and can make meaningful contribution to the business;

1.3 (b) (i) Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an
unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk.
100.00 million or any listed company or a member of any
national or international chamber of commerce or business
association; or 

1.3 (b) (ii) √Corporate Leader who is or was a top-level executive not
lower than Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director or
Deputy Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or
Head of Finance or Accounts or Company Secretary or
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal
Service or a candidate with equivalent position of an
unlisted company having minimum paid up capital of Tk.
100.00 million or of a listed company; or

1.3 (b) (iii)
Not Applicable

Former official of government or statutory or autonomous or
regulatory body in the position not below 5th Grade of the
national pay scale, who has at least educational
background of bachelor degree in economics or commerce
or business or law; or

- -

- -

- -

- -

-

-

-

- -

- -

- -

- -
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1.3 (b) (iv) Not ApplicableUniversity Teacher who has educational background in
Economics or Commerce or Business Studies or Law; or

1.3 (b) (v) Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least
in the High Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or
a Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management
Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or Chartered
Certified Accountant or Certified Public Accountant or
Chartered Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary
or equivalent qualification;

1.3 (c) √The independent director(s) shall have at least 10 (ten) years
of experiences in any field mentioned in clause (b);

1.3 (d)

No such
Gain/Loss

In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may
be relaxed subject to prior approval of the Commission.

1.4 Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer

1.5 The Directors' Report to Shareholders addition

1.4 (d) √The Board shall clearly define respective roles and
responsibilities of the Chairperson and the Managing
Director and/or Chief Executive officer;

1.4 (a) √The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the
Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of the company shall be filled by different individuals;

1.4 (b) √The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of a listed company shall not hold the same position
in another listed company;

1.4 (c) √The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among
the non-executive directors of the company;

1.4 (e)
√

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the
remaining members may elect one of themselves from non-
executive directors as chairperson for that particular
Board's meeting; the reason of absence of the regular
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

1.5 (iii) √
Risks and concerns including internal and external risk
factors, threat to sustainability and negative impact on
environment, if any;

1.5 (iv) √A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin
and Net Profit Margin, where applicable;

1.5 (v) A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities
and their implications (gain or loss);

1.5 (i) √An industry outlook and possible future developments in the
industry;

1.5 (ii) √The Segment-wise or product-wise performance;

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

-

-

Presented in the
Financial Statement 

Compliance Status
Put √ in the 

appropriate column
Not 

Complied Complied

Remarks
(if any)TitleCondition

No.

1.2 (b)(viii) √Who is not independent director in more than 5 (five) listed
companies;

1.2 (b)(ix) √Who has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction
as a defaulter in payment of any loan or any advance to a bank
or a Non-Bank Financial Institution (NBFI); and

1.2 (b)(x) √Who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving
moral turpitude;

1.2(c) √The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the board
of directors and approved by the shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting (AGM).

1. 2 (d) Not Applicable

√

No such vacancy
created in 2021

The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant
for more than 90 (ninety) days; and

1.2 (e)

√

The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for
a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1
(one) term only;
Provided that a former independent director may be
considered for reappointment for another tenure after a time
gap of one tenure, i.e., three years from his or her
completion of consecutive two tenures [i.e. six years]:
Provided further that the independent director shall not be
subject to retirement by rotation as per the Companies Act,
1994.

1.3 Qualification of Independent Director (ID)

1.3 (b) Independent director shall have following qualifications

1.3 (a) √Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual
with integrity who is able to ensure compliance with
financial laws, regulatory requirements and corporate laws
and can make meaningful contribution to the business;

1.3 (b) (i) Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an
unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk.
100.00 million or any listed company or a member of any
national or international chamber of commerce or business
association; or 

1.3 (b) (ii) √Corporate Leader who is or was a top-level executive not
lower than Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director or
Deputy Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or
Head of Finance or Accounts or Company Secretary or
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal
Service or a candidate with equivalent position of an
unlisted company having minimum paid up capital of Tk.
100.00 million or of a listed company; or

1.3 (b) (iii)
Not Applicable

Former official of government or statutory or autonomous or
regulatory body in the position not below 5th Grade of the
national pay scale, who has at least educational
background of bachelor degree in economics or commerce
or business or law; or

- -

- -

- -

- -

-

-

-

- -

- -

- -

- -
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1.5 (xviii) √An explanation that significant deviations from the last
year's operating results of the issuer company shall be
highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be explained;

1.5 (xix) √A statement where key operating and financial data of at
least preceding 5 (five) years shall be summarized;

1.5 (xx) An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has
not declared dividend (cash or stock) for the year;

1.5 (xxi) √Board's statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock
dividend has been or shall be declared as interim dividend;

1.5 (xxii) √The total number of Board meetings held during the year and
attendance by each director;

1.5 (xxiii) A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of shares (along with name-wise
details were stated below) held by: 

1.5 (xxiv) In case of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure on the following information to the
shareholders:

1.5 (xxv)
A Management's Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of the
company's position and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial
statements, among others, focusing on

1.5 (xxiii) (a) √Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other
related parties (name-wise details);

1.5 (xxiii) (b) √Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance their
spouses and minor children (name- wise details);

1.5 (xxiii) (c) √Executives; and

1.5 (xxiii) (d) √Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting
interest in the company (name-wise details);

1.5 (xxv) (c) √comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial
performance or results and financial position as well as cash
flows for current financial year with immediate preceding five
years explaining reasons thereof;

1.5 (xxv) (d) √compare such financial performance or results and financial
position as well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario;

1.5 (xxiv) (a) √A brief resume of the director;

1.5 (xxiv) (c) √Names of companies in which the person also holds the
directorship and the membership of committees of the board;

1.5 (xxv) (a) √accounting policies and estimation for preparation of
financial statements;

1.5 (xxv) (b) changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any,
clearly describing the effect on financial performance or
results and financial position as well as cash flows in
absolute figure for such changes;

1.5 (xxiv) (b) √Nature of his/her expertise in specific functional areas; and

Not Applicable

√

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- Does not hold any
share

- -

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

Compliance Status
Put √ in the 

appropriate column
Not 

Complied Complied

Remarks
(if any)TitleCondition

No.

1.5 (vi) √A detailed discussion on related party transactions along
with a statement showing amount, nature of related party,
nature of transactions and basis of transactions of all
related party transactions;

1.5 (vii) A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public
issues, rights issues and/or any others instruments;

1.5 (viii) An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the
company goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public
Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing etc.;

1.5 (ix)

-

No such variance
occurred

Presented in the
Financial 

Statement

During 2021 there
were no public or

right issue of share

Presented in the
Financial Statement

An explanation on any significant variance that occurs
between Quarterly Financial Performance and Annual
Financial Statements;

1.5 (x) √A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including
independent directors;

1.5 (xi) √A statement that the financial statements prepared by the
management of the issuer company present fairly its state
of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity;

1.5 (xii) √A statement that proper books of account of the issuer
company have been maintained;

1.5 (xiii) √A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and that the accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment;

1.5 (xiv)
√

A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS)
or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in
preparation of the financial statements and any departure
there from has been adequately disclosed;

1.5 (xvii) √A statement that there is no Significant doubt upon the
issuer company's ability to continue as a going concern, if
the issuer company is not considered to be a going
concern, the fact along with reasons there of shall be
disclosed;

1.5 (xv) √A statement that the system of internal control is sound in
design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored;

1.5 (xvi) √A statement that minority shareholders have been protected
from abusive actions by, or in the interest of, controlling
shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have
effective means of redress;

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

-

-

-

-

-

-

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

-

-

-
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1.5 (xviii) √An explanation that significant deviations from the last
year's operating results of the issuer company shall be
highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be explained;

1.5 (xix) √A statement where key operating and financial data of at
least preceding 5 (five) years shall be summarized;

1.5 (xx) An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has
not declared dividend (cash or stock) for the year;

1.5 (xxi) √Board's statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock
dividend has been or shall be declared as interim dividend;

1.5 (xxii) √The total number of Board meetings held during the year and
attendance by each director;

1.5 (xxiii) A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of shares (along with name-wise
details were stated below) held by: 

1.5 (xxiv) In case of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure on the following information to the
shareholders:

1.5 (xxv)
A Management's Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of the
company's position and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial
statements, among others, focusing on

1.5 (xxiii) (a) √Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other
related parties (name-wise details);

1.5 (xxiii) (b) √Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance their
spouses and minor children (name- wise details);

1.5 (xxiii) (c) √Executives; and

1.5 (xxiii) (d) √Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting
interest in the company (name-wise details);

1.5 (xxv) (c) √comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial
performance or results and financial position as well as cash
flows for current financial year with immediate preceding five
years explaining reasons thereof;

1.5 (xxv) (d) √compare such financial performance or results and financial
position as well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario;

1.5 (xxiv) (a) √A brief resume of the director;

1.5 (xxiv) (c) √Names of companies in which the person also holds the
directorship and the membership of committees of the board;

1.5 (xxv) (a) √accounting policies and estimation for preparation of
financial statements;

1.5 (xxv) (b) changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any,
clearly describing the effect on financial performance or
results and financial position as well as cash flows in
absolute figure for such changes;

1.5 (xxiv) (b) √Nature of his/her expertise in specific functional areas; and

Not Applicable

√

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- Does not hold any
share

- -

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

Compliance Status
Put √ in the 

appropriate column
Not 

Complied Complied

Remarks
(if any)TitleCondition

No.

1.5 (vi) √A detailed discussion on related party transactions along
with a statement showing amount, nature of related party,
nature of transactions and basis of transactions of all
related party transactions;

1.5 (vii) A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public
issues, rights issues and/or any others instruments;

1.5 (viii) An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the
company goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public
Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing etc.;

1.5 (ix)

-

No such variance
occurred

Presented in the
Financial 
Statement

During 2021 there
were no public or

right issue of share

Presented in the
Financial Statement

An explanation on any significant variance that occurs
between Quarterly Financial Performance and Annual
Financial Statements;

1.5 (x) √A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including
independent directors;

1.5 (xi) √A statement that the financial statements prepared by the
management of the issuer company present fairly its state
of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity;

1.5 (xii) √A statement that proper books of account of the issuer
company have been maintained;

1.5 (xiii) √A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and that the accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment;

1.5 (xiv)
√

A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS)
or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in
preparation of the financial statements and any departure
there from has been adequately disclosed;

1.5 (xvii) √A statement that there is no Significant doubt upon the
issuer company's ability to continue as a going concern, if
the issuer company is not considered to be a going
concern, the fact along with reasons there of shall be
disclosed;

1.5 (xv) √A statement that the system of internal control is sound in
design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored;

1.5 (xvi) √A statement that minority shareholders have been protected
from abusive actions by, or in the interest of, controlling
shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have
effective means of redress;

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

-

-

-

-

-

-

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

-

-

-
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2 (c) The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary
company shall be placed for review at the following Board
meeting of the holding company.

2 (d) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding
company shall state that they have reviewed the affairs of
the subsidiary company also;

2 (e) The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review
the financial statements, in particular the investments made by
the subsidiary company.

3 Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Head of Internal
Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS):

3 .1 Appointment.

3.2 Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings

3.1 (a)
√

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief
Executive Officer (CEO), a Company Secretary (CS), a
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit
and Compliance (HIAC);

3.1 (b)
√

The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief
Executive Officer (CEO), Company Secretary (CS), Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance (HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals;

√

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall
attend the meetings of the Board:

Provided that the CS, CFO and/or the HIAC shall not attend
such part of a meeting of the Board which involves
consideration of an agenda item relating to their personal
matters.

3.3 (a) The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed financial statements for the year
and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

3.3 Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

3.1 (c)
√

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company
shall not hold any executive position in any other company
at the same time;

3.1 (d) √The Board shall clearly define respective roles,
responsibilities and duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS;

3.1 (e)
√

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed
from their position without approval of the Board as well as
immediate dissemination to the Commission and stock
exchange(s).

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

Compliance Status
Put √ in the 

appropriate column
Not 

Complied Complied

Remarks
(if any)TitleCondition

No.

1.5 (xxv) (e) √briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the
country and the globe;

1.5 (xxv) (f)
√

risks and concerns issues related to the financial
statements, explaining such risk and concerns mitigation
plan of the company; and

1.5 (xxv) (g)
√

future plan or projection or forecast for company's operation,
performance and financial position, with justification thereof,
i.e., actual position shall be explained to the shareholders in
the next AGM;

1.5 (xxvi) √Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the
Board as required under condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed
as per Annexure-A; and

1.5 (xxvii) √The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of
conditions of this Code as required under condition No. 9 shall
be disclosed as per Annexure-B and Annexure-C.

1.6 Meetings of the Board of Directors

1.7 Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer

2 Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company

1.6

√
The company shall conduct its Board meetings and record
the minutes of the meetings as well as keep required books
and records in line with the provisions of the relevant
Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in
so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any
condition of this Code.

2 (a) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the
holding company shall be made applicable to the composition
of the Board of the subsidiary company;

2 (b) At least 1 (one) independent director of the Board of the
holding company shall be a director on the Board of the
subsidiary company;

1.7 (a)
√

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) at condition no. 6, for the Chairperson of
the Board, other board members and Chief Executive
Officer of the company;

1.7 (b)

√
The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be
posted on the website of the company including, among
others, prudent conduct and behavior; confidentiality;
conflict of interest; compliance with laws, rules and
regulations; prohibition of insider trading; relationship with
environment, employees, customers and suppliers; and
independency.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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2 (c) The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary
company shall be placed for review at the following Board
meeting of the holding company.

2 (d) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding
company shall state that they have reviewed the affairs of
the subsidiary company also;

2 (e) The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review
the financial statements, in particular the investments made by
the subsidiary company.

3 Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Head of Internal
Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS):

3 .1 Appointment.

3.2 Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings

3.1 (a)
√

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief
Executive Officer (CEO), a Company Secretary (CS), a
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit
and Compliance (HIAC);

3.1 (b)
√

The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief
Executive Officer (CEO), Company Secretary (CS), Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance (HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals;

√

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall
attend the meetings of the Board:

Provided that the CS, CFO and/or the HIAC shall not attend
such part of a meeting of the Board which involves
consideration of an agenda item relating to their personal
matters.

3.3 (a) The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed financial statements for the year
and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

3.3 Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

3.1 (c)
√

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company
shall not hold any executive position in any other company
at the same time;

3.1 (d) √The Board shall clearly define respective roles,
responsibilities and duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS;

3.1 (e)
√

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed
from their position without approval of the Board as well as
immediate dissemination to the Commission and stock
exchange(s).

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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1.5 (xxv) (e) √briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the
country and the globe;

1.5 (xxv) (f)
√

risks and concerns issues related to the financial
statements, explaining such risk and concerns mitigation
plan of the company; and

1.5 (xxv) (g)
√

future plan or projection or forecast for company's operation,
performance and financial position, with justification thereof,
i.e., actual position shall be explained to the shareholders in
the next AGM;

1.5 (xxvi) √Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the
Board as required under condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed
as per Annexure-A; and

1.5 (xxvii) √The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of
conditions of this Code as required under condition No. 9 shall
be disclosed as per Annexure-B and Annexure-C.

1.6 Meetings of the Board of Directors

1.7 Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer

2 Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company

1.6

√
The company shall conduct its Board meetings and record
the minutes of the meetings as well as keep required books
and records in line with the provisions of the relevant
Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in
so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any
condition of this Code.

2 (a) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the
holding company shall be made applicable to the composition
of the Board of the subsidiary company;

2 (b) At least 1 (one) independent director of the Board of the
holding company shall be a director on the Board of the
subsidiary company;

1.7 (a)
√

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) at condition no. 6, for the Chairperson of
the Board, other board members and Chief Executive
Officer of the company;

1.7 (b)

√
The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be
posted on the website of the company including, among
others, prudent conduct and behavior; confidentiality;
conflict of interest; compliance with laws, rules and
regulations; prohibition of insider trading; relationship with
environment, employees, customers and suppliers; and
independency.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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5.2 (c) √All members of the audit committee should be "financially
literate" and at least I (one) member shall have accounting
or related financial management background and 10 (ten)
years of such experience; 

5.2 (d) When the term of service of any Committee members expires
or there is any circumstance causing any Committee member
to be unable to hold office before expiration of the term of
service, thus making the number of the Committee members to
be lower than the prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the
Board shall appoint the new Committee member to fill up the
vacancy immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the
date of vacancy in the Committee to ensure continuity of the
performance of work of the Audit Committee;

5.3 Chairperson of the Audit Committee

5.4 Meeting of the Audit Committee

5.2 (f) √

5.2 (e) √

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not
constitute without at least 1 (one) independent director.

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the
Committee:

5.3 (c)

√

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the
Annual General Meeting (AGM):

Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the Audit
Committee, any other member from the Audit Committee shall
be selected to be present in the annual general meeting (AGM)
and reason for absence of the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee shall be recorded in the minutes of the AGM.

5.4 (a)

√

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four
meetings in a financial year: 

Provided that any emergency meeting in addition to regular
meeting may be convened at the request of any one of the
members of the Committee;

5.3 (a) √The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit
Committee to be Chairperson of the Audit Committee, who
shall be an independent director;

5.3 (b) 

√

In the absence of the Chairperson of the audit committee,
the remaining members may elect one of themselves as
Chairperson for that particular meeting, in that case there
shall be no problem of constituting a quorum as required
under condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of absence of
the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the
minutes.

There was no
such vacancy

created
Not Applicable

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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3.3 (a) (i)
√

these statements do not contain any materially untrue
statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading; and

3.3 (a) (ii)
√

these statements together present a true and fair view of
the company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards and applicable laws;

3.3 (b) 
√

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to
the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into
by the company during the year which are fraudulent illegal or
violation of the code of conduct for the company's Board or its
members;

4 For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall have at least following sub-committees:

5 Audit Committee

5.1 Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5.2 Constitution of the Audit Committee

3.3 (c) √The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be
disclosed in the Annual Report.

4 Board of Directors’ Committee

5.1 (c) √
The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board;
the duties of the Audit Committee shall be clearly set
forth in writing.

5.2 (a) √The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3
(three) members;

5.2 (b)
√

The Board shall appoint members of the audit committee
who shall be non-executive directors of the company
excepting Chairperson of the Board and shall include at
least 1(one) independent director;

(i) √Audit Committee; and

(ii) √Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

5.1 (a) √The company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-
committee of the Board;

5.1 (b)
√

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring
that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring a
good monitoring system within the business;

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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5.2 (c) √All members of the audit committee should be "financially
literate" and at least I (one) member shall have accounting
or related financial management background and 10 (ten)
years of such experience; 

5.2 (d) When the term of service of any Committee members expires
or there is any circumstance causing any Committee member
to be unable to hold office before expiration of the term of
service, thus making the number of the Committee members to
be lower than the prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the
Board shall appoint the new Committee member to fill up the
vacancy immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the
date of vacancy in the Committee to ensure continuity of the
performance of work of the Audit Committee;

5.3 Chairperson of the Audit Committee

5.4 Meeting of the Audit Committee

5.2 (f) √

5.2 (e) √

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not
constitute without at least 1 (one) independent director.

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the
Committee:

5.3 (c)

√

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the
Annual General Meeting (AGM):

Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the Audit
Committee, any other member from the Audit Committee shall
be selected to be present in the annual general meeting (AGM)
and reason for absence of the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee shall be recorded in the minutes of the AGM.

5.4 (a)

√

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four
meetings in a financial year: 

Provided that any emergency meeting in addition to regular
meeting may be convened at the request of any one of the
members of the Committee;

5.3 (a) √The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit
Committee to be Chairperson of the Audit Committee, who
shall be an independent director;

5.3 (b) 

√

In the absence of the Chairperson of the audit committee,
the remaining members may elect one of themselves as
Chairperson for that particular meeting, in that case there
shall be no problem of constituting a quorum as required
under condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of absence of
the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the
minutes.

There was no
such vacancy

created
Not Applicable

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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3.3 (a) (i)
√

these statements do not contain any materially untrue
statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading; and

3.3 (a) (ii)
√

these statements together present a true and fair view of
the company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards and applicable laws;

3.3 (b) 
√

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to
the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into
by the company during the year which are fraudulent illegal or
violation of the code of conduct for the company's Board or its
members;

4 For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall have at least following sub-committees:

5 Audit Committee

5.1 Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5.2 Constitution of the Audit Committee

3.3 (c) √The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be
disclosed in the Annual Report.

4 Board of Directors’ Committee

5.1 (c) √
The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board;
the duties of the Audit Committee shall be clearly set
forth in writing.

5.2 (a) √The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3
(three) members;

5.2 (b)
√

The Board shall appoint members of the audit committee
who shall be non-executive directors of the company
excepting Chairperson of the Board and shall include at
least 1(one) independent director;

(i) √Audit Committee; and

(ii) √Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

5.1 (a) √The company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-
committee of the Board;

5.1 (b)
√

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring
that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring a
good monitoring system within the business;

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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Provided further that on an annual basis, the company shall
prepare a statement of the proceeds utilized for the
purposes other than those stated in the offer document or
prospectus for publication in the Annual Report along with
the comments of the Audit Committee.

5.6 Reporting of the Audit Committee

5.6 (a) Reporting the Board of Directors

5.6 (b) Reporting to the Authorities:

5.7 Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors

6 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

6.1 Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5.6 (a) (ii) (c) suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances
including securities related laws, rules and regulations; and

5.6 (a) (i) √The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the
Board.

5.6 (a)(ii) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the following findings, if any: 

5.6 (a) (ii) (a) report on conflicts of interests;

5.6 (a) (ii) (b) suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material
defect identified in the internal audit and compliance
process or in the financial statements;

√
Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee,
including any report made to the Board under condition no.
5(6) (a) (ii) above during the year, shall be signed by the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the
annual report of the issuer company.

5.6 (a) (ii) (d) any other matter which the Audit Committee deems
necessary shall be disclosed to the Board immediately; 

6.1 (a) √The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) as a sub-committee of the Board;

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board  about
anything which has material impact on the financial
condition and results of operation and has discussed with
the Board and the management that any rectification is
necessary and if the Audit Committee finds that such
rectification has been unreasonably ignored, the Audit
Committee shall report such finding to the Commission,
upon reporting of such matters to the Board  for three times
or completion of a period of 6 (six) months from the date of
first reporting to the Board, whichever is earlier.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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5.4 (b)
√

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be
constituted in presence of either two members or two-third of
the members of the Audit Committee, whichever is higher,
where presence of an independent director is a must.

5.5 Role of Audit Committee

5.5 The Audit Committee shall:

5.5 (d) √

5.5 (a) √

oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;

5.5 (e)
√

hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for
review of the annual financial statements before submission
to the Board for approval or adoption;

Oversee the financial reporting process;

5.5 (b) √monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;

5.5 (c)
√

monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure
that it is adequately resourced, including approval of the
Internal Audit and Compliance plan and review of the
Internal Audit and Compliance Report;

5.5 (i) √review the Management's Discussion and Analysis before
disclosing in the Annual Report;

5.5 (j) √review statement of all related party transactions submitted
by the management;

5.5 (k) √review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control
weakness issued by statutory auditors;

5.5 (l) √oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope
and magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time
required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of
external auditors; and

5.5 (m)
oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public
Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights
Share Offer have been utilized as per the purposes stated
in relevant offer document or prospectus approved by the
Commission:

Provided that the management shall disclose to the Audit
Committee about the uses or applications of the proceeds
by major category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing
expenses, working capital, etc.), on a quarterly basis, as a
part of their quarterly declaration of financial results:

5.5 (f) √review along with the management, the annual financial
statements before submission on to the Board for approval;

5.5 (g) √review along with the management, the quarterly and half
yearly financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval;

5.5 (h) √review the adequacy of internal audit function;

Not Applicable

- -

- -
- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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Provided further that on an annual basis, the company shall
prepare a statement of the proceeds utilized for the
purposes other than those stated in the offer document or
prospectus for publication in the Annual Report along with
the comments of the Audit Committee.

5.6 Reporting of the Audit Committee

5.6 (a) Reporting the Board of Directors

5.6 (b) Reporting to the Authorities:

5.7 Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors

6 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

6.1 Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5.6 (a) (ii) (c) suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances
including securities related laws, rules and regulations; and

5.6 (a) (i) √The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the
Board.

5.6 (a)(ii) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the following findings, if any: 

5.6 (a) (ii) (a) report on conflicts of interests;

5.6 (a) (ii) (b) suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material
defect identified in the internal audit and compliance
process or in the financial statements;

√
Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee,
including any report made to the Board under condition no.
5(6) (a) (ii) above during the year, shall be signed by the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the
annual report of the issuer company.

5.6 (a) (ii) (d) any other matter which the Audit Committee deems
necessary shall be disclosed to the Board immediately; 

6.1 (a) √The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) as a sub-committee of the Board;

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board  about
anything which has material impact on the financial
condition and results of operation and has discussed with
the Board and the management that any rectification is
necessary and if the Audit Committee finds that such
rectification has been unreasonably ignored, the Audit
Committee shall report such finding to the Commission,
upon reporting of such matters to the Board  for three times
or completion of a period of 6 (six) months from the date of
first reporting to the Board, whichever is earlier.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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5.4 (b)
√

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be
constituted in presence of either two members or two-third of
the members of the Audit Committee, whichever is higher,
where presence of an independent director is a must.

5.5 Role of Audit Committee

5.5 The Audit Committee shall:

5.5 (d) √

5.5 (a) √

oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;

5.5 (e)
√

hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for
review of the annual financial statements before submission
to the Board for approval or adoption;

Oversee the financial reporting process;

5.5 (b) √monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;

5.5 (c)
√

monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure
that it is adequately resourced, including approval of the
Internal Audit and Compliance plan and review of the
Internal Audit and Compliance Report;

5.5 (i) √review the Management's Discussion and Analysis before
disclosing in the Annual Report;

5.5 (j) √review statement of all related party transactions submitted
by the management;

5.5 (k) √review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control
weakness issued by statutory auditors;

5.5 (l) √oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope
and magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time
required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of
external auditors; and

5.5 (m)
oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public
Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights
Share Offer have been utilized as per the purposes stated
in relevant offer document or prospectus approved by the
Commission:

Provided that the management shall disclose to the Audit
Committee about the uses or applications of the proceeds
by major category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing
expenses, working capital, etc.), on a quarterly basis, as a
part of their quarterly declaration of financial results:

5.5 (f) √review along with the management, the annual financial
statements before submission on to the Board for approval;

5.5 (g) √review along with the management, the quarterly and half
yearly financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval;

5.5 (h) √review the adequacy of internal audit function;

Not Applicable

- -

- -
- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the
remaining members may elect one of themselves as
Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded
in the minutes;

6.4 Meeting of the NRC

6.5 Role of NRC

6.3 (c)

6.3 (b)

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual
general meeting (AGM) to answer the queries of the
shareholders:  

Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the NRC, any
other member from the NRC shall be selected to be present
in the annual general meeting (AGM) for answering the
shareholder’s queries and reason for absence of the
Chairperson of the NRC shall be recorded in the minutes of
the AGM.

6.4 (a) √

√

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial
year;

6.4 (b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency
meeting upon request by any member of the NRC;

6.4 (d) √
The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly
be recorded in the minutes and such minutes shall be
confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC.

6.5 (a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable
to the Board and to the shareholders;

6.5 (b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommendation to the
Board:

6.5 (b)(i) formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level executive,
considering the following: 

6.5 (b)(i)(b) the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 

6.5 (b)(i)(a)

√

√

√

the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable
directors to run the company successfully;

6.4 (c)
√

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted
in presence of either two members or two third of the
members of the Committee, whichever is higher, where
presence of an independent director is must as required
under condition No. 6(2)(h);

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the
nomination criteria or policy for determining qualifications,
positive attributes, experiences and independence of
directors and top-level executive as well as a policy for
formal process of considering remuneration of directors, top
level executive;

6.2 Constitution of the NRC

6.3 Chairperson of the NRC

6.1 (c)

6.2 (a)

6.1 (b)

√

√

The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly
set forth in writing covering the areas stated at the condition
No. 6(5)(b).

6.2 (b) √

6.2 (c) √Members of the Committee shall be nominated and
appointed by the Board;

6.2 (d) √The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any
member of the Committee;

6.2 (e) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of
any member of the Committee or in any other cases of
vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one
hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the
Committee;

6.2 (g) √

√

√

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the
Committee;

6.2 (h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without
attendance of at least an independent director;

6.2 (i) No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or
indirectly, any remuneration for any advisory or consultancy
role or otherwise, other than Director's fees or honorarium
from the company.

6.3 (a)
√

The Board shall select 1(one) member of the NRC to be
Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be an
independent director;

√The Committee shall comprise of at least three members
including an independent director;

All members of the Committee shall be non-executive
directors;

6.2 (f)
√

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt
any external expert and/or member(s) of staff to the
Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting member, if
the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion form such
external expert and/or member(s) of staff shall be required
or valuable for the Committee;

√

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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Complied Complied
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No.

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the
remaining members may elect one of themselves as
Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded
in the minutes;

6.4 Meeting of the NRC

6.5 Role of NRC

6.3 (c)

6.3 (b)

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual
general meeting (AGM) to answer the queries of the
shareholders:  

Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the NRC, any
other member from the NRC shall be selected to be present
in the annual general meeting (AGM) for answering the
shareholder’s queries and reason for absence of the
Chairperson of the NRC shall be recorded in the minutes of
the AGM.

6.4 (a) √

√

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial
year;

6.4 (b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency
meeting upon request by any member of the NRC;

6.4 (d) √
The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly
be recorded in the minutes and such minutes shall be
confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC.

6.5 (a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable
to the Board and to the shareholders;

6.5 (b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommendation to the
Board:

6.5 (b)(i) formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level executive,
considering the following: 

6.5 (b)(i)(b) the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 

6.5 (b)(i)(a)

√

√

√

the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable
directors to run the company successfully;

6.4 (c)
√

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted
in presence of either two members or two third of the
members of the Committee, whichever is higher, where
presence of an independent director is must as required
under condition No. 6(2)(h);

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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6.2 (g) √

√

√

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the
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6.2 (h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without
attendance of at least an independent director;

6.2 (i) No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or
indirectly, any remuneration for any advisory or consultancy
role or otherwise, other than Director's fees or honorarium
from the company.

6.3 (a)
√

The Board shall select 1(one) member of the NRC to be
Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be an
independent director;

√The Committee shall comprise of at least three members
including an independent director;

All members of the Committee shall be non-executive
directors;

6.2 (f)
√

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt
any external expert and/or member(s) of staff to the
Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting member, if
the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion form such
external expert and/or member(s) of staff shall be required
or valuable for the Committee;

√

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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any other service that creates conflict of interest.

8

9

Maintaining a website by the Company

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance

7.2

7.1 (ix)

No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall
possess any share of the company they audit at least
during the tenure of their audit assignment of that company;
his or her family members also shall not hold any shares in
the said company:

Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother,
brother, sister, son-in-law and daughter-in-law shall be
considered as family members.

√

√

7.3 Representative of external or statutory auditors shall
remain present in the Shareholders' Meeting (Annual
General meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting) to
answer the queries of the shareholders.

√

9.1 The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing
Professional Accountant or Secretary (Chartered
Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or
Chartered Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or
audit firm on yearly basis regarding compliance of
Corporate Governance Code of the Commission and shall
such certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

9.3 The directors of the company shall state, in the directors'
report whether the company has complied with these
conditions or not.

√

9.2 The professional who will provide the certificate on
compliance of this Corporate Governance Code shall be
appointed by the Shareholders in the annual general
meeting.

√

√

8.1 √The Company shall have an official website linked with the
website of the stock exchange.

8.2 √The company shall keep the website functional from the
date of listing.

8.3
√

The company shall make available the detailed disclosures
on its website as required under the regulations of the
concerned stock exchange(s).

51

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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Put √ in the 

appropriate column
Not 
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No.

remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the company and its goals;

7 External or Statutory Auditors

6.5 (b)(ii)

6.5 (b)(i)(c)

devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into
consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity,
educational background and nationality;

6.5 (b)(vi)
√

√

√

6.5 (b)(iii) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors
and who may be appointed in top level executive position in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend
their appointment and removal to the Board;

√

6.5 (b)(iv) formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of
independent directors and the Board; √

6.5 (b)(v) identifying the company's needs for employees at different
levels and determine their selection, transfer or
replacement and promotion criteria; and

√

developing, recommending and reviewing annually the
company's human resources and training policies;

7.1 The issuer shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the following services of
the company, namely:

7.1 (i) appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions; 

7.1 (iv) broker–dealer services;

7.1 (viii) audit or certification services on compliance of corporate
governance as required under condition No.9(1); and

7.1 (v)

√

√
√

√
7.1 (ii) financial information system design and implementation; √

7.1 (iii) book-keeping or other services related to the accounting
records or financial statements; √

actuarial services; 

7.1 (vi) √internal audit services or special audit services;

7.1 (vii) √any services that the Audit Committee determines. 

6.5 (c) √
The company shall disclose the nomination and
remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria and
activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its annual
report.

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -

Bata A.Report-2022 Cut.qxp:Bata A.Report-08.qxd  5/31/22  11:02 AM  Page 26



Annual Report
2021

 

50

Compliance Status
Put √ in the 

appropriate column
Not 

Complied Complied

Remarks
(if any)TitleCondition

No.

any other service that creates conflict of interest.
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during the tenure of their audit assignment of that company;
his or her family members also shall not hold any shares in
the said company:

Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother,
brother, sister, son-in-law and daughter-in-law shall be
considered as family members.

√

√

7.3 Representative of external or statutory auditors shall
remain present in the Shareholders' Meeting (Annual
General meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting) to
answer the queries of the shareholders.

√

9.1 The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing
Professional Accountant or Secretary (Chartered
Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or
Chartered Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or
audit firm on yearly basis regarding compliance of
Corporate Governance Code of the Commission and shall
such certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

9.3 The directors of the company shall state, in the directors'
report whether the company has complied with these
conditions or not.

√

9.2 The professional who will provide the certificate on
compliance of this Corporate Governance Code shall be
appointed by the Shareholders in the annual general
meeting.

√

√

8.1 √The Company shall have an official website linked with the
website of the stock exchange.

8.2 √The company shall keep the website functional from the
date of listing.

8.3
√

The company shall make available the detailed disclosures
on its website as required under the regulations of the
concerned stock exchange(s).
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- -

- -
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remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the company and its goals;

7 External or Statutory Auditors

6.5 (b)(ii)

6.5 (b)(i)(c)

devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into
consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity,
educational background and nationality;

6.5 (b)(vi)
√

√

√

6.5 (b)(iii) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors
and who may be appointed in top level executive position in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend
their appointment and removal to the Board;

√

6.5 (b)(iv) formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of
independent directors and the Board; √

6.5 (b)(v) identifying the company's needs for employees at different
levels and determine their selection, transfer or
replacement and promotion criteria; and

√

developing, recommending and reviewing annually the
company's human resources and training policies;

7.1 The issuer shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the following services of
the company, namely:

7.1 (i) appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions; 

7.1 (iv) broker–dealer services;

7.1 (viii) audit or certification services on compliance of corporate
governance as required under condition No.9(1); and

7.1 (v)

√

√
√

√
7.1 (ii) financial information system design and implementation; √

7.1 (iii) book-keeping or other services related to the accounting
records or financial statements; √

actuarial services; 

7.1 (vi) √internal audit services or special audit services;

7.1 (vii) √any services that the Audit Committee determines. 

6.5 (c) √
The company shall disclose the nomination and
remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria and
activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its annual
report.

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
- -
- -
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Audit Committee Report
The Board of Directors of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited has constituted an Audit Committee to support
the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. 
The Audit Committee meeting was held four times for the year 2021. The Finance Director, Company Secretary, and
the Head of Internal Audit were invitees to the Audit Committee meeting.

Purpose of the Audit Committee
The role of the Audit Committee is to monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the company and review and,
when appropriate, make recommendations to the main board on business risks, internal controls, and compliance.
The Committee satisfies itself by means of suitable steps and appropriate information, that a proper and satisfactory
internal control system is in place to identify and contain business risks and the company’s business is conducted in
a  proper and financially appropriate manner. 

Major Responsibilities of the Audit Committee
In 2021, the Audit Committee reviewed its terms of reference in line with requirements of the Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission’s (BSEC) notification on corporate governance. The Committee carried out its duties in
accordance with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. Some of the major responsibilities of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

• Review the annual, half-yearly, and quarterly financial statements and other financial results, and upon its
satisfaction of the review, recommend the same to the Board.

• Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control system, risk
management, auditing matters, and the company’s processes for monitoring compliance with laws and
regulations and the Codes of Conduct.

• Recommend appointment, termination, and determination of audit fees for statutory auditors. Consider the
scope of work, and oversee and evaluate the work performed by statutory auditors. Review permitted non-audit
services performed by statutory auditors.

• Exercise its oversight of the work of the Internal Audit department of the company. Review the effectiveness of
the Internal Audit function including performance, structure, adequacy of resources, and compliance with
professional standards. Examine audit findings and material weaknesses and monitor implementation of audit
action plans.

Major Activities of the Audit Committee
• Reviewed and recommended to the Board the quarterly and annual financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2021.
• Considered and made a recommendation to the Board on the appointment and remuneration of external

auditors, Hussain Farhad & Co. Chartered Accountants for the year 2022.
• Reviewed the management letter from external auditors for the year 2021 together with management’s

responses to the findings.
• Approved the Internal Audit Plan for 2022, monitored progress, and effected revisions when necessary.
• Discussed Internal Audit reports and findings in detail with auditors and members of management and

monitored the status of implementation of audit action plans and provided guidance to ensure timely completion
of action plans.

• Reviewed the activities of the compliance function, incidence reporting and actions, and the status of
enforcement of the company’s Codes of Conduct.

• Reviewed the Internal Audit Charter.
• Reviewed and received a report on the matters as per requirement from the Bangladesh Securities and

Exchange Commission (BSEC).

The above matters are significant recommendations for continuous improvement and therefore duly noted.

K M Rezaul Hasanat
Chairman - Audit Committee
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the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. 
The Audit Committee meeting was held four times for the year 2021. The Finance Director, Company Secretary, and
the Head of Internal Audit were invitees to the Audit Committee meeting.

Purpose of the Audit Committee
The role of the Audit Committee is to monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the company and review and,
when appropriate, make recommendations to the main board on business risks, internal controls, and compliance.
The Committee satisfies itself by means of suitable steps and appropriate information, that a proper and satisfactory
internal control system is in place to identify and contain business risks and the company’s business is conducted in
a  proper and financially appropriate manner. 

Major Responsibilities of the Audit Committee
In 2021, the Audit Committee reviewed its terms of reference in line with requirements of the Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission’s (BSEC) notification on corporate governance. The Committee carried out its duties in
accordance with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. Some of the major responsibilities of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

• Review the annual, half-yearly, and quarterly financial statements and other financial results, and upon its
satisfaction of the review, recommend the same to the Board.

• Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control system, risk
management, auditing matters, and the company’s processes for monitoring compliance with laws and
regulations and the Codes of Conduct.

• Recommend appointment, termination, and determination of audit fees for statutory auditors. Consider the
scope of work, and oversee and evaluate the work performed by statutory auditors. Review permitted non-audit
services performed by statutory auditors.

• Exercise its oversight of the work of the Internal Audit department of the company. Review the effectiveness of
the Internal Audit function including performance, structure, adequacy of resources, and compliance with
professional standards. Examine audit findings and material weaknesses and monitor implementation of audit
action plans.

Major Activities of the Audit Committee
• Reviewed and recommended to the Board the quarterly and annual financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2021.
• Considered and made a recommendation to the Board on the appointment and remuneration of external

auditors, Hussain Farhad & Co. Chartered Accountants for the year 2022.
• Reviewed the management letter from external auditors for the year 2021 together with management’s

responses to the findings.
• Approved the Internal Audit Plan for 2022, monitored progress, and effected revisions when necessary.
• Discussed Internal Audit reports and findings in detail with auditors and members of management and

monitored the status of implementation of audit action plans and provided guidance to ensure timely completion
of action plans.

• Reviewed the activities of the compliance function, incidence reporting and actions, and the status of
enforcement of the company’s Codes of Conduct.

• Reviewed the Internal Audit Charter.
• Reviewed and received a report on the matters as per requirement from the Bangladesh Securities and

Exchange Commission (BSEC).

The above matters are significant recommendations for continuous improvement and therefore duly noted.

K M Rezaul Hasanat
Chairman - Audit Committee
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial position of the Company as
at December 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5541

Key Audit Matter
Carrying value (CV) of Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and its impairment

See notes no. 18 & 47 (E) to the financial statements
Revenue Recognition

Our response to the risk

Key Audit Matter Our response to the risk

PPE includes the Company’s Non-current assets, which
flow economic benefits to the entities for more than one
year. PPE is measured at historical cost except for
Freehold land, which is carried at a revalued amount,
being fair values at the date of revaluation. PPE of Bata
Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited comprises a major
portion of the total assets, which amounts to Tk.
856,281,546 at the reporting date. 

Apparently, the carrying value of PPE represents a
significant portion of the Company’s assets and there is a
function of charging depreciation that involved estimation.
Therefore, it has been considered a significant area of
auditor’s judgment and requires special attention. There is
also a risk that the impairment charges may not have been
recognized. 

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls over PPE.
Our audit procedures included, among others:
• Reviewed basis of recognition, measurement and valuation of assets;
• Observed procedures of assets acquisition, depreciation and disposal;
• Checked ownership of the major assets;
• Checked the Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP) and its transfer to PPE.
• Performed physical asset verification at the year-end;
• Critically reviewed the Company’s assumptions in relation to recoverable

amounts of the major PPE to identify if there is any requirement of recognition
of impairment; and

• Finally, assessed the appropriateness and presentation of disclosures related
to relevant accounting standards.

• Our test results did not identify any issues with regard to the carrying value of
PPE or any indication that would trigger impairment. 

For the year-end, the Company reported total revenue of
Taka 7,744,936,100 in Note 7 of the financial statements.

Revenue is measured by net of discounts, incentives,
Value Added Tax (VAT) and loyalty points earned by
customers on the Company’s sales. The Company makes
sales through retail, non-retail sales (NRS), and E-
commerce channels across the country and export sales
made during the year. The company recognizes sales on
fortnightly basis. Revenue was considered a material item
due to the nature of the transactions. 

There is also a risk that revenue may be misstated due to
fraud through misstating of price declaration, unrecorded
sales, maintaining accrual concept for invoicing,
recognition within the Cutoff period, and inaccurate sales
figures and unauthorized sales.

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls focusing
on the following areas: 
• Assessed whether the revenue recognition policy is appropriate which is in line

with IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers; 
• Performed walkthrough tests to understand the adequacy and the design of the

revenue cycle; 
• Reviewed the monthly reporting from stores and depots and distributors,

assessed them for consistency, and checked the documentation on a sample
basis.;

• Obtained supporting documentation for sales transactions recorded at the
beginning and end of the year to verify the revenue recognition at the cut off
time.

• Obtained third-party confirmation on a sample basis for trade and other
receivables.

• Performed substantive analytical procedures to understand how revenue
trends impacted over the year, among other parameters. 

Finally, assessed the appropriateness and presentation of disclosures related to
relevant accounting standards.

HUSSAIN FARHAD & CO. Corporate Office:
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS : House # 15, Road # 12, Block # F, Niketon

: +88 (02) 8836015-7
: hfc@hfc-bd.com

: +88 01681126120
: www.hfc-bd.com

Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh.

Authorised Training Employer

Chattogram Office:
Yunusco City Center (9th Floor), 807, CDA Avenue, Nasirabad, Chattogram

of
ICAEW

Chartered
Accountants +88 (031) 2859282 ctg@hfc-bd.com

Member of

ASNAF
INTERNATIONAL
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial position of the Company as
at December 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Carrying value (CV) of Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and its impairment

See notes no. 18 & 47 (E) to the financial statements
Revenue Recognition

Our response to the risk

Key Audit Matter Our response to the risk
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flow economic benefits to the entities for more than one
year. PPE is measured at historical cost except for
Freehold land, which is carried at a revalued amount,
being fair values at the date of revaluation. PPE of Bata
Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited comprises a major
portion of the total assets, which amounts to Tk.
856,281,546 at the reporting date. 

Apparently, the carrying value of PPE represents a
significant portion of the Company’s assets and there is a
function of charging depreciation that involved estimation.
Therefore, it has been considered a significant area of
auditor’s judgment and requires special attention. There is
also a risk that the impairment charges may not have been
recognized. 

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls over PPE.
Our audit procedures included, among others:
• Reviewed basis of recognition, measurement and valuation of assets;
• Observed procedures of assets acquisition, depreciation and disposal;
• Checked ownership of the major assets;
• Checked the Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP) and its transfer to PPE.
• Performed physical asset verification at the year-end;
• Critically reviewed the Company’s assumptions in relation to recoverable

amounts of the major PPE to identify if there is any requirement of recognition
of impairment; and

• Finally, assessed the appropriateness and presentation of disclosures related
to relevant accounting standards.

• Our test results did not identify any issues with regard to the carrying value of
PPE or any indication that would trigger impairment. 

For the year-end, the Company reported total revenue of
Taka 7,744,936,100 in Note 7 of the financial statements.

Revenue is measured by net of discounts, incentives,
Value Added Tax (VAT) and loyalty points earned by
customers on the Company’s sales. The Company makes
sales through retail, non-retail sales (NRS), and E-
commerce channels across the country and export sales
made during the year. The company recognizes sales on
fortnightly basis. Revenue was considered a material item
due to the nature of the transactions. 

There is also a risk that revenue may be misstated due to
fraud through misstating of price declaration, unrecorded
sales, maintaining accrual concept for invoicing,
recognition within the Cutoff period, and inaccurate sales
figures and unauthorized sales.

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls focusing
on the following areas: 
• Assessed whether the revenue recognition policy is appropriate which is in line

with IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers; 
• Performed walkthrough tests to understand the adequacy and the design of the

revenue cycle; 
• Reviewed the monthly reporting from stores and depots and distributors,

assessed them for consistency, and checked the documentation on a sample
basis.;

• Obtained supporting documentation for sales transactions recorded at the
beginning and end of the year to verify the revenue recognition at the cut off
time.

• Obtained third-party confirmation on a sample basis for trade and other
receivables.

• Performed substantive analytical procedures to understand how revenue
trends impacted over the year, among other parameters. 

Finally, assessed the appropriateness and presentation of disclosures related to
relevant accounting standards.
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See note no. 7 & 46 (A) to the financial statements
Implementation of IFRS 16 Leases

See Note no. 19, 29 & 47 (K) to the financial statements
Deferred tax Assets

Key Audit Matter Our response to the risk

Key Audit Matter Our response to the risk

IFRS 16: Leases modifies the accounting treatment of
operating leases at inception, with the recognition of a
Right Of Use (ROU) on the leased assets and liability for
the lease payments over the lease contract term with
respect to operating leases of premises, in exchange for a
lease debt, using an implicit discount rate.

The company has made all leasing arrangements within
the scope of IFRS 16, which have been identified and
appropriately included in the calculation and specific
assumptions have been applied to determine the discount
rates for leases. 

We have reviewed the appropriateness of management’s approach for IFRS 16
and its impact on the financial statements.
Our following audit procedure included a test of classification and measurement
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in accordance with IFRS 16: 
•  Checked the present value calculation for lease assets and liabilities.
•  Reviewed lease agreements and made a calculation to ascertain the

appropriateness of the incremental borrowing rate used.
• Examined the accuracy and appropriateness of accounting adjustments in the

financial statements as well as verified the adequacy and appropriateness of
disclosures in the financial statements.

The company reported net deferred tax assets of Tk.
468,282,300 as at December 31, 2021. Significant
judgment is required about deferred tax assets as it
impacts forecasts of future profitability over a number of
years.  

There is significant measurement uncertainty involved in
this valuation and therefore, it was significant to our audit.

We have carried out the following substantive tests to address the related risk: 
• Developed an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operational

effectiveness of the Company’s key controls over the recognition and
measurement of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and the
assumptions used in estimating the future taxable income of the Company.

• Assessed the completeness and accuracy of the data used for the estimations
of future taxable income.

• Tested the mathematical accuracy in the calculation of deferred tax.
• Assessed key assumptions, controls, recognition and measurement of

Deferred Tax Assets.
• Assessed the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures, setting out the basis of

deferred tax assets balances and the level of estimation involved.
• We also reviewed the tax implications, the reasonableness of estimations and

calculations determined by management.
• Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of disclosures against

IAS 12 Income Taxes.

See note no 28 & 47 (D) to the financial statements.
Valuation of Inventories

See note no 20 & 47 (I) to the financial statements

Key Audit Matter Our response to the risk

The Company had inventories of Tk. 2,773,817,825 at
31st December 2021 held in factories, depots and outlets.

Inventories are carried at a lower cost and net realizable
value.

As a result, the Management applies judgement in
determining the appropriate values for slow-moving or
obsolete items.

Since the inventory value is significant to the financial
statements and there is substantial measurement
uncertainty involved in this valuation, the inventory
valuation was significant to our audit.

We verified the appropriateness of the management’s assumptions applied in the
calculation of the value of the inventory. To mitigate the related risk we have
followed following audit procedures:
• Evaluated the design and implementation of key inventory controls operating

across the factory, depots and outlets;
• Conducted inventory counts of outlets, factories and depots and reconciled the

count results to the inventory listings to test the completeness of data;
• Evaluated, on a sample basis, whether inventories were stated at the lower of

cost and net realizable value at the reporting date by comparing the sales
prices of inventories subsequent to the reporting date; 

• Assessed whether some of the inventory became slow-moving or obsolete due
to the pandemic caused by COVID-19 and assessed the necessity for
inventory provisioning; and

• Evaluated the adequacy of financial statement disclosure as per IAS-2

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. 
After going through the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the board
of directors of the company.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and relevant notification issued by Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission, we also report the following: 
a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and

made due verification thereof; 
b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our examination of those books; 
c) the Company’s statements of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income along with the annexed notes 1 to 48

dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts; and 
d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.

Firm Name : Hussain Farhad & Co., Chartered Accountants
Registration no : 4/452/ICAB-84 

Signature of the auditor :

Name of the auditor : M Farhad Hussain FCA, Partner/Enrollment No: 0452 
DVC No : 2204270452AS796983
Place : Dhaka
Date : 25th April 2022.
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Other Matter 

The financial statements of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited for the year ended December 31, 2020, were audited by Hoda Vasi Chowdury
& Co., Chartered Accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on 01 June, 2021.
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See note no. 7 & 46 (A) to the financial statements
Implementation of IFRS 16 Leases

See Note no. 19, 29 & 47 (K) to the financial statements
Deferred tax Assets

Key Audit Matter Our response to the risk

Key Audit Matter Our response to the risk

IFRS 16: Leases modifies the accounting treatment of
operating leases at inception, with the recognition of a
Right Of Use (ROU) on the leased assets and liability for
the lease payments over the lease contract term with
respect to operating leases of premises, in exchange for a
lease debt, using an implicit discount rate.

The company has made all leasing arrangements within
the scope of IFRS 16, which have been identified and
appropriately included in the calculation and specific
assumptions have been applied to determine the discount
rates for leases. 

We have reviewed the appropriateness of management’s approach for IFRS 16
and its impact on the financial statements.
Our following audit procedure included a test of classification and measurement
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in accordance with IFRS 16: 
•  Checked the present value calculation for lease assets and liabilities.
•  Reviewed lease agreements and made a calculation to ascertain the

appropriateness of the incremental borrowing rate used.
• Examined the accuracy and appropriateness of accounting adjustments in the

financial statements as well as verified the adequacy and appropriateness of
disclosures in the financial statements.

The company reported net deferred tax assets of Tk.
468,282,300 as at December 31, 2021. Significant
judgment is required about deferred tax assets as it
impacts forecasts of future profitability over a number of
years.  

There is significant measurement uncertainty involved in
this valuation and therefore, it was significant to our audit.

We have carried out the following substantive tests to address the related risk: 
• Developed an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operational

effectiveness of the Company’s key controls over the recognition and
measurement of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and the
assumptions used in estimating the future taxable income of the Company.

• Assessed the completeness and accuracy of the data used for the estimations
of future taxable income.

• Tested the mathematical accuracy in the calculation of deferred tax.
• Assessed key assumptions, controls, recognition and measurement of

Deferred Tax Assets.
• Assessed the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures, setting out the basis of

deferred tax assets balances and the level of estimation involved.
• We also reviewed the tax implications, the reasonableness of estimations and

calculations determined by management.
• Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of disclosures against

IAS 12 Income Taxes.

See note no 28 & 47 (D) to the financial statements.
Valuation of Inventories

See note no 20 & 47 (I) to the financial statements

Key Audit Matter Our response to the risk

The Company had inventories of Tk. 2,773,817,825 at
31st December 2021 held in factories, depots and outlets.

Inventories are carried at a lower cost and net realizable
value.

As a result, the Management applies judgement in
determining the appropriate values for slow-moving or
obsolete items.

Since the inventory value is significant to the financial
statements and there is substantial measurement
uncertainty involved in this valuation, the inventory
valuation was significant to our audit.

We verified the appropriateness of the management’s assumptions applied in the
calculation of the value of the inventory. To mitigate the related risk we have
followed following audit procedures:
• Evaluated the design and implementation of key inventory controls operating

across the factory, depots and outlets;
• Conducted inventory counts of outlets, factories and depots and reconciled the

count results to the inventory listings to test the completeness of data;
• Evaluated, on a sample basis, whether inventories were stated at the lower of

cost and net realizable value at the reporting date by comparing the sales
prices of inventories subsequent to the reporting date; 

• Assessed whether some of the inventory became slow-moving or obsolete due
to the pandemic caused by COVID-19 and assessed the necessity for
inventory provisioning; and

• Evaluated the adequacy of financial statement disclosure as per IAS-2

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. 
After going through the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the board
of directors of the company.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and relevant notification issued by Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission, we also report the following: 
a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and

made due verification thereof; 
b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our examination of those books; 
c) the Company’s statements of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income along with the annexed notes 1 to 48

dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts; and 
d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.

Firm Name : Hussain Farhad & Co., Chartered Accountants
Registration no : 4/452/ICAB-84 

Signature of the auditor :

Name of the auditor : M Farhad Hussain FCA, Partner/Enrollment No: 0452 
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Other Matter 

The financial statements of Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited for the year ended December 31, 2020, were audited by Hoda Vasi Chowdury
& Co., Chartered Accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on 01 June, 2021.
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As at 31 December 2021 31 December 31 December
In taka Note 2021 2020 

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 18 856,281,546 955,426,807 
Right-of-use assets 19 1,458,678,691 1,498,878,565 
Deferred tax assets 28 468,282,300 448,000,000 

Non-current assets 2,783,242,537 2,902,305,372 

Inventories 20 2,773,817,825 2,918,062,766 
Trade and other receivables 21 40,309,098 192,137,684 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 22 219,704,929 495,451,427 
Cash and cash equivalents 23 622,781,937 125,919,383 

Current assets 3,656,613,789 3,731,571,260 

Total assets 6,439,856,326 6,633,876,632 

Equity
Share capital 24 136,800,000 136,800,000 
Reserves and surplus 25 110,492,803 110,492,803 
Retained earnings 26 3,204,583,592 3,447,580,109 

Total equity 3,451,876,395 3,694,872,912

Liabilities
Lease liabilities 29 1,062,880,077 1,089,303,058 

Non-current liabilities 1,062,880,077 1,089,303,058 

Lease liabilites 29 413,055,396 442,123,331 
Trade and other payables 30 1,280,267,118 1,164,750,283 
Unclaimed dividend 31 10,973,803 45,524,635 
Contract liabilities 32 29,161,950 20,930,809 
Current tax liabilities 33 191,641,587 176,371,604 

Current liabilities 1,925,099,854 1,849,700,662 

Total liabilities 2,987,979,931 2,939,003,720 

Total equity and liabilities 6,439,856,326 6,633,876,632 

Net asset value (NAV) per share [previous year's figure restated] 38 252.33 270.09 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with annexed notes

Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh K. M. Rezaul Hasanat Shambhu Nath Jha Md. Hashim Reza
Managing Director Director Finance Director Company Secretary and

GM - Finance 
As per our report of same date.

Place: Dhaka Hussain Farhad & Co.
Dated: 25 April 2022 Chartered Accountants
DVC: 2204270452AS796983

For the year ended 31 December 2021
In taka Note 2021 2020

Revenue 7 7,744,936,100 5,084,505,532 

Cost of sales 8 (4,926,836,295) (3,790,379,242)

Gross profit 2,818,099,805 1,294,126,290 

Other income/(loss) 9 16,708,703 6,843,639 

Operating expenses 10 (2,643,483,678) (2,268,559,359)

Impairment loss/(reversal) on trade receivables 21(C) 3,188,700 (443,920,040)

Operating profit/(loss) 194,513,530 (1,411,509,470)

Finance income 11(A) 20,216,528 19,630,776 

Finance costs 11(B) (163,929,076) (201,891,497)

Net finance costs 11 (143,712,548) (182,260,721)

Profit/(loss) before tax and contribution to WPPF 50,800,982 (1,593,770,191)

Contribution to WPPF 12 (2,540,049) -   

Profit/(loss) before tax 48,260,933 (1,593,770,191)

Income tax (expense)/income 13 (116,739,750) 269,071,750 

Profit/(loss) for the year (68,478,817) (1,324,698,441)

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax 14 (37,717,700) 3,215,250 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) (106,196,517) (1,321,483,191)

Earnings per share [previous year's figure restated] 37 (5.01) (96.83)

Earnings per share [before restatement] 37 (5.01) (96.94)

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with annexed notes

Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh K. M. Rezaul Hasanat Shambhu Nath Jha Md. Hashim Reza
Managing Director Director Finance Director Company Secretary and

GM - Finance 
As per our report of same date.

Place: Dhaka Hussain Farhad & Co.
Dated: 25 April 2022 Chartered Accountants
DVC: 2204270452AS796983
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Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

58 59

As at 31 December 2021 31 December 31 December
In taka Note 2021 2020 

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 18 856,281,546 955,426,807 
Right-of-use assets 19 1,458,678,691 1,498,878,565 
Deferred tax assets 28 468,282,300 448,000,000 

Non-current assets 2,783,242,537 2,902,305,372 

Inventories 20 2,773,817,825 2,918,062,766 
Trade and other receivables 21 40,309,098 192,137,684 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 22 219,704,929 495,451,427 
Cash and cash equivalents 23 622,781,937 125,919,383 

Current assets 3,656,613,789 3,731,571,260 

Total assets 6,439,856,326 6,633,876,632 

Equity
Share capital 24 136,800,000 136,800,000 
Reserves and surplus 25 110,492,803 110,492,803 
Retained earnings 26 3,204,583,592 3,447,580,109 

Total equity 3,451,876,395 3,694,872,912

Liabilities
Lease liabilities 29 1,062,880,077 1,089,303,058 

Non-current liabilities 1,062,880,077 1,089,303,058 

Lease liabilites 29 413,055,396 442,123,331 
Trade and other payables 30 1,280,267,118 1,164,750,283 
Unclaimed dividend 31 10,973,803 45,524,635 
Contract liabilities 32 29,161,950 20,930,809 
Current tax liabilities 33 191,641,587 176,371,604 

Current liabilities 1,925,099,854 1,849,700,662 

Total liabilities 2,987,979,931 2,939,003,720 

Total equity and liabilities 6,439,856,326 6,633,876,632 

Net asset value (NAV) per share [previous year's figure restated] 38 252.33 270.09 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with annexed notes

Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh K. M. Rezaul Hasanat Shambhu Nath Jha Md. Hashim Reza
Managing Director Director Finance Director Company Secretary and

GM - Finance 
As per our report of same date.

Place: Dhaka Hussain Farhad & Co.
Dated: 25 April 2022 Chartered Accountants
DVC: 2204270452AS796983

For the year ended 31 December 2021
In taka Note 2021 2020

Revenue 7 7,744,936,100 5,084,505,532 

Cost of sales 8 (4,926,836,295) (3,790,379,242)

Gross profit 2,818,099,805 1,294,126,290 

Other income/(loss) 9 16,708,703 6,843,639 

Operating expenses 10 (2,643,483,678) (2,268,559,359)

Impairment loss/(reversal) on trade receivables 21(C) 3,188,700 (443,920,040)

Operating profit/(loss) 194,513,530 (1,411,509,470)

Finance income 11(A) 20,216,528 19,630,776 

Finance costs 11(B) (163,929,076) (201,891,497)

Net finance costs 11 (143,712,548) (182,260,721)

Profit/(loss) before tax and contribution to WPPF 50,800,982 (1,593,770,191)

Contribution to WPPF 12 (2,540,049) -   

Profit/(loss) before tax 48,260,933 (1,593,770,191)

Income tax (expense)/income 13 (116,739,750) 269,071,750 

Profit/(loss) for the year (68,478,817) (1,324,698,441)

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax 14 (37,717,700) 3,215,250 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) (106,196,517) (1,321,483,191)

Earnings per share [previous year's figure restated] 37 (5.01) (96.83)

Earnings per share [before restatement] 37 (5.01) (96.94)

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with annexed notes

Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh K. M. Rezaul Hasanat Shambhu Nath Jha Md. Hashim Reza
Managing Director Director Finance Director Company Secretary and

GM - Finance 
As per our report of same date.

Place: Dhaka Hussain Farhad & Co.
Dated: 25 April 2022 Chartered Accountants
DVC: 2204270452AS796983
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

In taka Note 2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers 7,884,731,973 5,762,916,940 

Cash payments to and on behalf of employees (1,325,501,249) (1,623,835,555)

Cash payments for defined benefit plan 27 (73,920,000) (313,113,000)

Cash payments to suppliers and contractors for goods and services (4,974,640,007) (3,434,471,343)

Cash generated from operating activities 1,510,670,717 391,497,042 

Interest received 11(A) 20,216,528 19,630,775 

Interest paid 11(B) (163,929,076) (167,217,709)

Income taxes paid (109,730,017) (213,012,505)

Net cash from operating activities 1,257,228,152 30,897,603 

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (69,850,867) (39,174,818)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,315,210 703,183 

Net cash used in investing activities (68,535,657) (38,471,635)

Cash flows from financing activities

Payment of lease liabilities (principal portion) 29(A) (520,479,109) (407,869,074)

Dividend paid 31 (171,350,832) (169,727,128)

Net cash used in financing activities (691,829,941) (577,596,202)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 496,862,554 (585,170,234)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 125,919,383 711,089,617 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 23 622,781,937 125,919,383 

Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS) 39 91.90 2.26 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with annexed notes

Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
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Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh K. M. Rezaul Hasanat Shambhu Nath Jha Md. Hashim Reza
Managing Director Director Finance Director Company Secretary and

GM - Finance 
Place: Dhaka
Dated: 25 April 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

In taka Note 2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers 7,884,731,973 5,762,916,940 

Cash payments to and on behalf of employees (1,325,501,249) (1,623,835,555)

Cash payments for defined benefit plan 27 (73,920,000) (313,113,000)

Cash payments to suppliers and contractors for goods and services (4,974,640,007) (3,434,471,343)

Cash generated from operating activities 1,510,670,717 391,497,042 

Interest received 11(A) 20,216,528 19,630,775 

Interest paid 11(B) (163,929,076) (167,217,709)

Income taxes paid (109,730,017) (213,012,505)

Net cash from operating activities 1,257,228,152 30,897,603 

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (69,850,867) (39,174,818)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,315,210 703,183 

Net cash used in investing activities (68,535,657) (38,471,635)

Cash flows from financing activities

Payment of lease liabilities (principal portion) 29(A) (520,479,109) (407,869,074)

Dividend paid 31 (171,350,832) (169,727,128)

Net cash used in financing activities (691,829,941) (577,596,202)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 496,862,554 (585,170,234)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 125,919,383 711,089,617 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 23 622,781,937 125,919,383 

Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS) 39 91.90 2.26 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with annexed notes

Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
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Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh K. M. Rezaul Hasanat Shambhu Nath Jha Md. Hashim Reza
Managing Director Director Finance Director Company Secretary and

GM - Finance 
Place: Dhaka
Dated: 25 April 2022
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Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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1. Reporting entity
Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Bata" or "the Company") is a public company limited
by shares. It was incorporated in Bangladesh in 1972 under the Companies Act 1913. The address of the registered office of
the Company is situated at Tongi, Gazipur, Bangladesh. The Company is one of the operating companies of worldwide Bata
Shoe Organization (BSO) and a subsidiary of Bafin (Nederland) BV in Netherlands holding 70% of the Company's shares. The
shares of the Company are listed in both Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE).
Pursuant to recent amendment to the Companies Act 1994 incorporating certain amendments, among others, is to change
of the word "Limited" by the word "PLC" in case of Public Limited Companies including listed ones. Necessary formalities
are in progress in implementing these changes.
The Company is mainly engaged in manufacturing and marketing of leather, rubber, plastic, canvas footwear, hosiery and
accessories items. Manufacturing plants of the Company are situated at Tongi and Dhamrai.

2. Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with International Accounting
Standards (IASs), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and
Exchange Rules, 1987, relevant guidelines issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, Financial
Reporting Act 2015 and other applicable laws in Bangladesh. 
The titles and format of these financial statements follow the requirements of IFRSs which are to some extent different from
the requirements of the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987. However, such differences are
not material and in the view of management IFRSs titles and format give better presentation to the shareholders.
These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors at its 255th meeting held on 25 April 2022.
Details of the Company's accounting policies, including changes during the year, if any, are included in notes 46 and 47.

3. Functional and presentational currency
These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT) which is the Company's functional currency.
All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Taka, unless otherwise indicated.

4. Comparatives and rearrangement
Comparative information has been disclosed for all numerical information in the financial statements and also the narrative
and descriptive information when it is relevant for understanding of the current financial statements.
To facilitate comparison, certain relevant balances pertaining to the previous year have been rearranged or reclassified
whenever considered necessary to conform current year's presentation.

5. Use of estimates and judgements
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to estimates are recognised
prospectively.

A. Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:
Note 29: Lease term

B. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at 31 December 2021 that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial year is included in the following notes:
Note 18: Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 
Note 28: Deferred tax assets/liabilities 
Note 20: Provision for obsolescence 
Note 21: Measurement of allowance for trade receivables 
Note 27: Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions 
Note 30(B): Recognition and measurement of provisions  
Note 33: Uncertain tax provisions 
Note 41: Recognition and measurement of contingencies 
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6. Operating segments
See accounting policy in Note 47(N).

A. Basis for segmentation
The Company has two operating segments, Domestic and Unallocated, which are the Company's strategic divisions. They
are managed separately because they require different technology and marketing strategies. For each of the strategic
divisions, the Company's management reviews internal management reports at least on a monthly basis. Of these two, only
domestic segment is reportable. Domestice segment is mainly engaged in manufacturing and marketing of leather, rubber,
plastic and canvas footwear, hosiery and accessories in domestic market. All other segments include export and their
associated expenses and other income and expenses.

B. Information about reportable segments
All other

2021 (Amount in thousands) Domestic segments Total
Revenue 7,733,563 11,373 7,744,936 
Cost of sales (4,916,755) (10,081) (4,926,836)
Gross profit 2,816,808 1,292 2,818,100 
Other income -   16,709 16,709 
Operating expenses (2,637,605) (5,879) (2,643,484)
Impairment loss/(reversal) on trade receivables 3,188 -   3,188 
Operating profit 182,391 12,122 194,513 
Finance income -   20,217 20,217 
Finance costs (153,509) (10,420) (163,929)
Net finance income/(costs) (153,509) 9,797 (143,712)
Profit before tax and contribution to WPPF 28,882 21,919 50,801 
Contribution to WPPF (2,540) -   (2,540)
Profit before tax 26,342 21,919 48,261 

2020 (Amount in thousands)
Revenue 5,073,184 11,322 5,084,506 
Cost of sales (3,780,692) (9,688) (3,790,380)
Gross profit 1,292,492 1,634 1,294,126 
Other loss 6,844 (1) 6,843 
Operating expenses (2,265,099) (3,460) (2,268,559)
Impairment loss/(reversal) on trade receivables (443,920) -   (443,920)
Operating loss (1,409,683) (1,826) (1,411,509)
Finance income -   19,631 19,631 
Finance costs (201,631) (261) (201,892)
Net finance income/(costs) (201,631) 19,370 (182,261)
Profit/(loss) before tax (1,611,314) 17,544 (1,593,770)

C. Reconciliation of information on reportable segments to IFRSs measures 

In taka 2021 2020
a) Revenue
Revenue for reportable segments 7,733,563 5,073,184 
Revenue for other segments 11,373 11,322 
Total revenue 7,744,936 5,084,506
b) Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit/(loss) for reportable segments 182,391 (1,409,683)
Operating profit for other segments 12,122 (1,826)
Total operating profit/(loss) 194,513 (1,411,509)

D. Segment assets and liabilities
The necessary information regarding assets and liabilities of operating segments are not separable and individually identifiable for
this purpose. For this reason the assets and liabilities of the respective segments have not been presented here.

7. Revenue
See accounting policy in Note 47(A).

In taka Note 2021 2020
Local 7(A) 7,733,562,986 5,073,183,491 
Export 11,373,114 11,322,041 

7,744,936,100 5,084,505,532 

A. Disaggregation of local revenue
Quantity in pairs Amount in taka

2021 2020 2021 2020
Shoes 18,616,418 17,941,580 7,425,359,905 4,854,175,995 
Hosiery and accessories -   -   308,203,081 219,007,496 

18,616,418 17,941,580 7,733,562,986 5,073,183,491 

8. Cost of sales
In taka Note 2021 2020
Materials:

Opening stock of raw materials 342,176,324 209,334,279 
Purchase during the year* 2,420,983,788 1,455,108,169 
Cost of raw materials available for use 2,763,160,112 1,664,442,448 
Closing stock of raw materials (490,464,218) (342,176,324)

Raw materials consumed 2,272,695,894 1,322,266,124 
Direct wages 398,915,628 395,825,059 
Prime costs 2,671,611,522 1,718,091,183 

Manufacturing overheads
Entertainment 3,540,839 2,343,817 
Insurance 9,166,825 8,014,154 
Remuneration 205,561,526 324,918,264 
Uniform 2,038,875 3,046,529 
Stationery 1,999,081 1,065,998 
Domestic travelling 6,316,972 4,056,315 
Overseas travelling 965,410 1,065,608 
Health and welfare 18,594,442 15,978,652 
Postage and fax 1,225,047 1,763,709 
Repairs and maintenance 39,024,752 26,907,943 
Water, gas and electricity 33,489,569 29,538,342 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18(C) 34,633,584 35,591,660 

356,556,922 454,290,991 
Total manufacturing cost 3,028,168,444 2,172,382,174 
Opening work-in-progress 63,906,846 51,962,073 
Closing work-in-progress 20 (29,493,864) (63,906,846)
Cost of goods manufactured 3,062,581,426 2,160,437,401 
Opening stock of finished goods 2,495,471,542 3,054,611,731 
Purchase of finished goods during the year 1,622,643,070 1,070,801,652 
Cost of finished goods available for sale 7,180,696,038 6,285,850,784 
Closing stock of finished goods 20 (2,253,859,743) (2,495,471,542)

4,926,836,295 3,790,379,242 

*Duty drawback of Taka 353,081 (2020: Taka 206,334) claimed on export sales has been adjusted against cost of raw
materials.
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8. Cost of sales (Continued)
A. Cost of raw materials consumed

In taka Imported Local purchase 2021
Opening stock 194,751,753 147,424,570 342,176,323 
Purchase 1,295,961,520 1,130,589,627 2,426,551,147 
Closing stock (368,341,351) (122,122,867) (490,464,218)

1,122,371,922 1,155,891,330 2,278,263,252 

% of material sourcing 53% 47%

In taka Imported Local purchase 2020
Opening stock 152,873,467 56,460,812 209,334,279 
Purchase 717,804,533 737,303,636 1,455,108,169 
Closing stock (194,751,753) (147,424,570) (342,176,323)

675,926,247 646,339,878 1,322,266,125 

% of material sourcing 49% 51%

B. Production capacity and actual production
In pairs Tongi Dhamrai 2021
Production capacity 19,402,000 3,581,000 22,983,000
Actual production 14,412,000 3,244,000 17,656,000

In pairs Tongi Dhamrai 2020
Production capacity 32,250,000 7,614,000 39,864,000 
Actual production 14,123,000 2,829,000 16,952,000 

9. Other income/(loss)
In taka 2021 2020
Forfeited amount of provident fund - 10,327,991 
Discount for early payment 27,627,405 12,262,583 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (10,711,708) (10,328,728)
Loss on remeasurement of lease liabilities (206,994) (5,418,207)

16,708,703 6,843,639

10. Operating expenses
In taka Note 2021 2020
Administrative expenses 10(A) 623,916,614 554,850,055 
Selling and distribution expenses 10(B) 2,019,567,064 1,713,709,304 

2,643,483,678 2,268,559,359

A. Administrative expenses
Remuneration 370,287,568 338,213,672 
Global Footwear Services fees 132,897,133 83,314,486 
Domestic travelling 27,541,226 42,650,617 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18(C) 21,331,385 20,772,288 
General charges 15,812,890 24,622,424 
Rent, rates and taxes 14,101,217 12,218,688 
Insurance 6,985,908 4,192,288 
Legal and professional fees 6,392,360 3,147,049 
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 19(B) 4,584,842 5,122,067 
Health and welfare 4,113,678 3,977,718 
Entertainment 3,947,987 3,919,507 
Repairs and maintenance 3,440,558 2,531,182 
Stationery 2,778,984 1,980,015 
Water, gas and electricity 2,715,884 2,817,838 
Subscription and donation 2,500,934 927,230 
Postage and fax 1,599,664 1,741,625 
Land revenue 923,700 923,700 
Bank charges 709,932 730,170 
Audit fees 650,000 650,000 
Overseas travelling 447,764 229,491 
Directors' fees 153,000 168,000 

623,916,614 554,850,055

10. Operating expenses (continued)

B. Selling and distribution expenses

In taka Note 2021 2020

Remuneration 372,999,192 386,753,933 
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 19(B) 540,913,623 558,676,503 
Royalties 10(B)(i) 332,441,408 161,309,508 
Commission 144,203,926 96,417,125 
Repairs and maintenance 117,367,620 78,300,053 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18(C) 101,004,242 119,468,174 
Rent, rates and taxes 74,553,869 39,009 
Freight and transport 73,345,345 79,939,881 
Water, gas and electricity 72,616,505 58,759,010 
Packing expenses 53,917,446 50,028,421 
Selling expenses 39,311,383 13,444,445 
Advertisement 33,572,509 51,331,087 
Domestic travelling 21,153,831 18,965,244 
Health and welfare 10,651,428 10,951,061 
Stationery 9,556,609 9,249,677 
Postage and fax 7,923,678 6,889,384 
Entertainment 7,353,332 7,457,293 
Bank charges 5,694,948 2,128,536 
Legal and professional fees 663,581 2,993,767 
Overseas travelling 322,589 607,193 

2,019,567,064 1,713,709,304 

i. Royalties
Royalty on Hush Puppies brand 23,841,878 14,850,487 
Royalty on Dr. Scholl brand 11,718,104 7,231,454 
Royalty on Ben10 and Powerpuff Girls 1,771,674 2,651,318 
Trade mark license fees 295,109,752 136,576,249 

332,441,408 161,309,508 

11. Net finance costs
See accounting policy in Note 47(B).

Finance income 11(A) 20,216,528 19,630,776 
Finance costs 11(B) (163,929,076) (201,891,497)

(143,712,548) (182,260,721)

A. Finance income

Interest on short term deposits 20,216,528 19,630,776 

20,216,528 19,630,776 

B. Finance costs
Interest expense on lease liabilities 29 143,633,508 155,520,526 
Interest expense on overdraft - 8,635,905 
Interest expense on personal account 2,433,762 2,454,287 
Interest expense on net defined benefit obligation 27(A) 6,446,000 22,368,000 
Receivable collection charges 7,441,732 606,991 
Exchange loss 3,974,074 12,305,788 

163,929,076 201,891,497
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Rent, rates and taxes 74,553,869 39,009 
Freight and transport 73,345,345 79,939,881 
Water, gas and electricity 72,616,505 58,759,010 
Packing expenses 53,917,446 50,028,421 
Selling expenses 39,311,383 13,444,445 
Advertisement 33,572,509 51,331,087 
Domestic travelling 21,153,831 18,965,244 
Health and welfare 10,651,428 10,951,061 
Stationery 9,556,609 9,249,677 
Postage and fax 7,923,678 6,889,384 
Entertainment 7,353,332 7,457,293 
Bank charges 5,694,948 2,128,536 
Legal and professional fees 663,581 2,993,767 
Overseas travelling 322,589 607,193 

2,019,567,064 1,713,709,304 

i. Royalties
Royalty on Hush Puppies brand 23,841,878 14,850,487 
Royalty on Dr. Scholl brand 11,718,104 7,231,454 
Royalty on Ben10 and Powerpuff Girls 1,771,674 2,651,318 
Trade mark license fees 295,109,752 136,576,249 

332,441,408 161,309,508 

11. Net finance costs
See accounting policy in Note 47(B).

Finance income 11(A) 20,216,528 19,630,776 
Finance costs 11(B) (163,929,076) (201,891,497)

(143,712,548) (182,260,721)

A. Finance income

Interest on short term deposits 20,216,528 19,630,776 

20,216,528 19,630,776 

B. Finance costs
Interest expense on lease liabilities 29 143,633,508 155,520,526 
Interest expense on overdraft - 8,635,905 
Interest expense on personal account 2,433,762 2,454,287 
Interest expense on net defined benefit obligation 27(A) 6,446,000 22,368,000 
Receivable collection charges 7,441,732 606,991 
Exchange loss 3,974,074 12,305,788 

163,929,076 201,891,497
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12. Contribution to WPPF
See accounting policy in Note 47(C).
In taka Note 2021 2020

Profit/(loss) before tax and contribution to WPPF 50,800,982 (1,593,770,191)
Applicable contribution rate 5% 5% 
Amount of contribution to WPPF 2,540,049 -   

The Company kept 5% provision for Workers Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) on its profit before WPPF at the end of year
as per the Labour Act, 2006 (amended in 2015).

13. Income tax expense/(income)
See accounting policy in Note 47(D).

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Current tax expense
Current year 125,000,000 57,000,000 

125,000,000 57,000,000 

Deferred tax income
Current year 28(A) (8,260,250) (326,071,750)

(8,260,250) (326,071,750)
Income tax expense/(income) 116,739,750 (269,071,750)

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit/(loss) before tax 48,260,933 (1,593,770,191)
Income tax using applicable tax rate        22.50% 25.00% 10,858,710 (398,442,548)
Factors affecting the tax charge for current year:
- Non-deductible expense 236.51% -28.51% 114,141,290 454,370,798 
- Movement of temporary difference -17.12% 20.39% (8,260,250) (325,000,000)

241.89% 16.88% 116,739,750 (269,071,750)

14. Other comprehensive loss/(income), net of tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 48,668,000 (4,287,000)
Related tax credit (10,950,300) 1,071,750 

37,717,700 (3,215,250)

15. Emoluments to directors
In taka Note 2021 2020
Remuneration 28,191,215 19,676,847 
Bonus 1,731,800 -   
Retirement benefit schemes 1,884,310 1,333,238 
Housing 4,427,200 3,145,234 

36,234,525 24,155,318 

16. Emoluments to managers
Remuneration 132,395,682 120,432,590 
Retirement benefit schemes 21,403,689 21,049,424 
Housing 26,225,794 27,411,543 

180,025,165 168,893,557 

17. Contribution to employees' provident fund and pension fund
Provident fund 17(A) 27,266,499 30,338,296 
Pension fund 11,371,136 11,091,170 

38,637,635 41,429,466 

A. Provident fund
Managers 10,087,224 9,958,254 
Officers and supervisors 10,032,553 10,364,841 
Workers 7,146,722 10,015,201 

27,266,499 30,338,296 
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12. Contribution to WPPF
See accounting policy in Note 47(C).
In taka Note 2021 2020

Profit/(loss) before tax and contribution to WPPF 50,800,982 (1,593,770,191)
Applicable contribution rate 5% 5% 
Amount of contribution to WPPF 2,540,049 -   

The Company kept 5% provision for Workers Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) on its profit before WPPF at the end of year
as per the Labour Act, 2006 (amended in 2015).

13. Income tax expense/(income)
See accounting policy in Note 47(D).

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Current tax expense
Current year 125,000,000 57,000,000 

125,000,000 57,000,000 

Deferred tax income
Current year 28(A) (8,260,250) (326,071,750)

(8,260,250) (326,071,750)
Income tax expense/(income) 116,739,750 (269,071,750)

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit/(loss) before tax 48,260,933 (1,593,770,191)
Income tax using applicable tax rate        22.50% 25.00% 10,858,710 (398,442,548)
Factors affecting the tax charge for current year:
- Non-deductible expense 236.51% -28.51% 114,141,290 454,370,798 
- Movement of temporary difference -17.12% 20.39% (8,260,250) (325,000,000)

241.89% 16.88% 116,739,750 (269,071,750)

14. Other comprehensive loss/(income), net of tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 48,668,000 (4,287,000)
Related tax credit (10,950,300) 1,071,750 

37,717,700 (3,215,250)

15. Emoluments to directors
In taka Note 2021 2020
Remuneration 28,191,215 19,676,847 
Bonus 1,731,800 -   
Retirement benefit schemes 1,884,310 1,333,238 
Housing 4,427,200 3,145,234 

36,234,525 24,155,318 

16. Emoluments to managers
Remuneration 132,395,682 120,432,590 
Retirement benefit schemes 21,403,689 21,049,424 
Housing 26,225,794 27,411,543 

180,025,165 168,893,557 

17. Contribution to employees' provident fund and pension fund
Provident fund 17(A) 27,266,499 30,338,296 
Pension fund 11,371,136 11,091,170 

38,637,635 41,429,466 

A. Provident fund
Managers 10,087,224 9,958,254 
Officers and supervisors 10,032,553 10,364,841 
Workers 7,146,722 10,015,201 

27,266,499 30,338,296 
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18. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

B. Under construction

Computer
Plant and Furniture for

and computer different 
In taka machineries equipments Buildings stores Total

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2020 -   -   2,344,119 36,418,482 38,762,601 
Additions 1,344,401 2,663,992 11,645,741 -   15,654,134 
Transfer (1,344,401) (1,135,109) (13,989,860) (36,418,482) (52,887,852)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 -   1,528,883 -   -   1,528,883 

Balance as at 1 January 2021 -   1,528,883 -   -   1,528,883
Additions 5,533,623 3,531,119 -   15,826,648 24,891,390
Transfer (1,185,702) -   -   -   (1,185,702)

Balance as at 31 December 2021 4,347,921 5,060,002 -   15,826,648 25,234,571 

C. Allocation of depreciation

In taka Note 2021 2020 

Cost of sales 8 34,633,584 35,591,660 
Administrative expenses 10(A) 21,331,385 20,772,288 
Selling and distribution expenses 10(B) 101,004,242 119,468,174 

156,969,211 175,832,122 

D. Disposal of property, plant and equipment
Auction sales to various parties

Computer Shop
and computer furnitures and

In taka equipments equipments Total

2021
Cost 10,641,955 35,181,987 45,823,942 
Accumulated depreciation (10,587,144) (23,209,881) (33,797,025)

Written down value 54,811 11,972,106 12,026,917 
Sales value 277,482 1,037,728 1,315,210
Profit/(loss) on disposal 222,671 (10,934,378) (10,711,707)

2020
Cost -   41,782,689 41,782,689 
Accumulated depreciation -   30,750,778 30,750,778 

Written down value -   72,533,467 72,533,467 
Sales value -   703,183 703,183 
Profit/(loss) on disposal -   (71,830,284) (71,830,284)

19. Right-of-use assets 
See accounting policy in Note 47(K).

A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

In taka Store and warehouses Total 

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2020 2,182,187,610 2,182,187,610 
Additions 125,228,580 125,228,580 
Modifications (50,604,514) (50,604,514)
Adjustment for remeasurement 289,416,883 289,416,883 
Balance as at 31 December 2020 2,546,228,559 2,546,228,559 

Balance as at 1 January 2021 2,546,228,559 2,546,228,559 
Additions 9,246,485 9,246,485 
Modifications 496,259,100 496,259,100 
Adjustment for remeasurement (206,994) (206,994)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 3,051,527,150 3,051,527,150 

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2020 533,049,803 533,049,803 
Depreciation 563,798,570 563,798,570 
Disposals (49,498,379) (49,498,379)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 1,047,349,994 1,047,349,994 

Balance as at 1 January 2021 1,047,349,994 1,047,349,994 
Depreciation 545,498,465 545,498,465 
Balance as at 31 December 2021 1,592,848,459 1,592,848,459 

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2020 1,649,137,807 1,649,137,807 
At 31 December 2020 1,498,878,565 1,498,878,565 
At 31 December 2021 1,458,678,691 1,458,678,691 

B. Allocation of depreciation

In taka Note 2021 2020 

Administrative expenses 10(A) 4,584,842 5,122,067 
Selling and distribution expenses 10(B) 540,913,623 558,676,503 

545,498,465 563,798,570 

20. Inventories
See accounting policy in Note 47(I).

In taka 2021 2020 
Raw materials 490,464,218 358,684,378 
Work in process 29,493,864 63,906,846 
Finished goods 2,253,859,743 2,495,471,542 

2,773,817,825 2,918,062,766 

Opening balance of finished goods 2,495,471,542 3,054,611,731 
Add: Capitalized freight costs for the year 2019 -   27,986,822 
Restated opening balance 2,495,471,542 3,082,598,553 
Purchase of finished goods during the year 1,622,643,070 1,070,801,652 
Transferred to Cost of goods sold (4,359,726,411) (1,657,928,663)
Closing balance 2,253,859,743 2,495,471,542 
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18. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

B. Under construction

Computer
Plant and Furniture for

and computer different 
In taka machineries equipments Buildings stores Total

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2020 -   -   2,344,119 36,418,482 38,762,601 
Additions 1,344,401 2,663,992 11,645,741 -   15,654,134 
Transfer (1,344,401) (1,135,109) (13,989,860) (36,418,482) (52,887,852)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 -   1,528,883 -   -   1,528,883 

Balance as at 1 January 2021 -   1,528,883 -   -   1,528,883
Additions 5,533,623 3,531,119 -   15,826,648 24,891,390
Transfer (1,185,702) -   -   -   (1,185,702)

Balance as at 31 December 2021 4,347,921 5,060,002 -   15,826,648 25,234,571 

C. Allocation of depreciation

In taka Note 2021 2020 

Cost of sales 8 34,633,584 35,591,660 
Administrative expenses 10(A) 21,331,385 20,772,288 
Selling and distribution expenses 10(B) 101,004,242 119,468,174 

156,969,211 175,832,122 

D. Disposal of property, plant and equipment
Auction sales to various parties

Computer Shop
and computer furnitures and

In taka equipments equipments Total

2021
Cost 10,641,955 35,181,987 45,823,942 
Accumulated depreciation (10,587,144) (23,209,881) (33,797,025)

Written down value 54,811 11,972,106 12,026,917 
Sales value 277,482 1,037,728 1,315,210
Profit/(loss) on disposal 222,671 (10,934,378) (10,711,707)

2020
Cost -   41,782,689 41,782,689 
Accumulated depreciation -   30,750,778 30,750,778 

Written down value -   72,533,467 72,533,467 
Sales value -   703,183 703,183 
Profit/(loss) on disposal -   (71,830,284) (71,830,284)

19. Right-of-use assets 
See accounting policy in Note 47(K).

A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

In taka Store and warehouses Total 

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2020 2,182,187,610 2,182,187,610 
Additions 125,228,580 125,228,580 
Modifications (50,604,514) (50,604,514)
Adjustment for remeasurement 289,416,883 289,416,883 
Balance as at 31 December 2020 2,546,228,559 2,546,228,559 

Balance as at 1 January 2021 2,546,228,559 2,546,228,559 
Additions 9,246,485 9,246,485 
Modifications 496,259,100 496,259,100 
Adjustment for remeasurement (206,994) (206,994)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 3,051,527,150 3,051,527,150 

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2020 533,049,803 533,049,803 
Depreciation 563,798,570 563,798,570 
Disposals (49,498,379) (49,498,379)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 1,047,349,994 1,047,349,994 

Balance as at 1 January 2021 1,047,349,994 1,047,349,994 
Depreciation 545,498,465 545,498,465 
Balance as at 31 December 2021 1,592,848,459 1,592,848,459 

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2020 1,649,137,807 1,649,137,807 
At 31 December 2020 1,498,878,565 1,498,878,565 
At 31 December 2021 1,458,678,691 1,458,678,691 

B. Allocation of depreciation

In taka Note 2021 2020 

Administrative expenses 10(A) 4,584,842 5,122,067 
Selling and distribution expenses 10(B) 540,913,623 558,676,503 

545,498,465 563,798,570 

20. Inventories
See accounting policy in Note 47(I).

In taka 2021 2020 
Raw materials 490,464,218 358,684,378 
Work in process 29,493,864 63,906,846 
Finished goods 2,253,859,743 2,495,471,542 

2,773,817,825 2,918,062,766 

Opening balance of finished goods 2,495,471,542 3,054,611,731 
Add: Capitalized freight costs for the year 2019 -   27,986,822 
Restated opening balance 2,495,471,542 3,082,598,553 
Purchase of finished goods during the year 1,622,643,070 1,070,801,652 
Transferred to Cost of goods sold (4,359,726,411) (1,657,928,663)
Closing balance 2,253,859,743 2,495,471,542 
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21. Trade and other receivables
See accounting policy in Note 47(G).
In taka Note 2021 2020 
Trade receivables from external parties 21(A) 652,084,214 793,123,419 
Trade receivables from related parties 34(C) 1,243,332 -   
Other receivables 21(B) 7,893,506 23,114,919 
Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables 21(C) (620,911,954) (624,100,654)

40,309,098 192,137,684 

A. Trade receivables from external parties
Export customers 1,716,858 1,348,457 
Receivables from dealers 622,033,341 747,634,805 
Receivables from institutional sale 28,334,015 44,140,157 

652,084,214 793,123,419 

B. Other receivables
Receivable from provident fund forfeited accounts - 10,327,991 
VAT claims 7,861,586 4,663,052 
Insurance claims 31,920 8,123,876 

7,893,506 23,114,919 

C. Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables
Opening balance 624,100,654 180,180,614 
Provision made/(reversed) during the year (3,188,700) 443,920,040 
Closing balance 620,911,954 624,100,654 

22. Advances, deposits and prepayments
See accounting policy in Note 47(G).
Advances 22(A) 25,527,157 52,487,738 
Deposits 22(B) 139,820,505 407,375,142 
Prepayments 22(C) 54,357,267 35,588,547 

219,704,929 495,451,427 

A. Advances
Advance to suppliers 6,985,501 10,511,658 
Advance to employees 22(A)(i) 18,541,656 41,976,080 

25,527,157 52,487,738 

i. Advance to employees
Advance paid 45,381,610 76,927,960 
Provision for doubtful debts (26,839,954) (34,951,880)

18,541,656 41,976,080 

B. Deposits
Security and other deposits 139,820,505 407,375,142 

139,820,505 407,375,142 

C. Prepayments
Prepayments to landlords 54,357,267 35,588,547 

54,357,267 35,588,547 
23. Cash and cash equivalents

See accounting policy in Note 47(G).
Cash in hand 83,343 169,846 
Bank balances 622,698,594 125,749,537 

622,781,937 125,919,383

24. Share capital

Authorised
2,000,000 ordinary shares of Taka 10 each 200,000,000 200,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up
2,850,723 ordinary shares of Taka 10 each issued for cash 28,507,230 28,507,230 
10,829,277 ordinary shares of Taka 10 each issued for consideration other than cash 108,292,770 108,292,770 

136,800,000 136,800,000

24. Share capital (Continued)  
A. Ordinary shares

The shares are listed both in the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited and quoted at Taka
966.90 (2020: Taka 702.70) and Taka 955.80 (2020: Taka 700.00) per share at 31 December 2021 and 2020 respectively.

B. Percentage of shareholding
As at 31 December 2021

Face value Percentage of 
Name of the shareholders (Taka) holding 

Bafin (Nederland) B.V 95,760,000 70.00%
Non-resident shareholders 2,159,290 1.58%
Local shareholders 38,880,710 28.42%

136,800,000 100%

As at 31 December 2020 
Name of the shareholders Face value Percentage of

(Taka) holding 
Bafin (Nederland) B.V 95,760,000 70.00%
Non-resident shareholders 2,478,230 1.81%
Local shareholders 38,561,770 28.19%

136,800,000 100%

C. Classification of shareholders by holdings

Number of shareholders Number of shares
Holdings 2021 2020 2021 2020
Less than 501 shares 5,515 5,988 557,904 613,942 
501 to 5,000 shares 307 358 455,508 519,019 
5,001 to 10,000 shares 30 37 226,127 256,165 
10,001 to 20,000 shares 23 23 318,094 344,685 
20,001 to 30,000 shares 6 3 152,448 75,188 
30,001 to 40,000 shares 5 5 173,673 172,911 
40,001 to 50,000 shares 3 3 141,575 141,030 
50,001 to 100,000 shares 12 11 817,845 758,083 
100,001 to 1,000,000 shares 6 6 1,260,826 1,222,977 
Over 1,000,000 shares 1 1 9,576,000 9,576,000 

5,908 6,435 13,680,000 13,680,000

25. Reserves and surplus
In taka Note 2021 2020
Reserve on revaluation of land 60,631,183 60,631,183 
Non-distributable special reserve* 998,620 998,620 
General reserve 48,863,000 48,863,000 

110,492,803 110,492,803

*This represents 90% of the cumulative post-tax profit in respect of certain categories of income up to 1992 as defined and
directed by Bangladesh Bank. Since 1993, the requirement for continuing to create such  special reserve is applicable only
to the profit on sale of immovable assets such as land, buildings etc. 

26. Retained earnings
Opening balance 26(A) 3,447,580,109 4,769,063,300 
Loss for the year (68,478,817) (1,324,698,441)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (37,717,700) 3,215,250 
Interim dividend paid during the year (102,600,000) -   
Final dividend paid during the year (34,200,000) -   
Closing balance 3,204,583,592 3,447,580,109 

A. Opening balance 3,447,580,109 4,741,076,478 
Add: Capitalized freight costs for the year 2019 -   27,986,822 
Restated opening balance 3,447,580,109 4,769,063,300 
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21. Trade and other receivables
See accounting policy in Note 47(G).
In taka Note 2021 2020 
Trade receivables from external parties 21(A) 652,084,214 793,123,419 
Trade receivables from related parties 34(C) 1,243,332 -   
Other receivables 21(B) 7,893,506 23,114,919 
Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables 21(C) (620,911,954) (624,100,654)

40,309,098 192,137,684 

A. Trade receivables from external parties
Export customers 1,716,858 1,348,457 
Receivables from dealers 622,033,341 747,634,805 
Receivables from institutional sale 28,334,015 44,140,157 

652,084,214 793,123,419 

B. Other receivables
Receivable from provident fund forfeited accounts - 10,327,991 
VAT claims 7,861,586 4,663,052 
Insurance claims 31,920 8,123,876 

7,893,506 23,114,919 

C. Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables
Opening balance 624,100,654 180,180,614 
Provision made/(reversed) during the year (3,188,700) 443,920,040 
Closing balance 620,911,954 624,100,654 

22. Advances, deposits and prepayments
See accounting policy in Note 47(G).
Advances 22(A) 25,527,157 52,487,738 
Deposits 22(B) 139,820,505 407,375,142 
Prepayments 22(C) 54,357,267 35,588,547 

219,704,929 495,451,427 

A. Advances
Advance to suppliers 6,985,501 10,511,658 
Advance to employees 22(A)(i) 18,541,656 41,976,080 

25,527,157 52,487,738 

i. Advance to employees
Advance paid 45,381,610 76,927,960 
Provision for doubtful debts (26,839,954) (34,951,880)

18,541,656 41,976,080 

B. Deposits
Security and other deposits 139,820,505 407,375,142 

139,820,505 407,375,142 

C. Prepayments
Prepayments to landlords 54,357,267 35,588,547 

54,357,267 35,588,547 
23. Cash and cash equivalents

See accounting policy in Note 47(G).
Cash in hand 83,343 169,846 
Bank balances 622,698,594 125,749,537 

622,781,937 125,919,383

24. Share capital

Authorised
2,000,000 ordinary shares of Taka 10 each 200,000,000 200,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up
2,850,723 ordinary shares of Taka 10 each issued for cash 28,507,230 28,507,230 
10,829,277 ordinary shares of Taka 10 each issued for consideration other than cash 108,292,770 108,292,770 

136,800,000 136,800,000

24. Share capital (Continued)  
A. Ordinary shares

The shares are listed both in the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited and quoted at Taka
966.90 (2020: Taka 702.70) and Taka 955.80 (2020: Taka 700.00) per share at 31 December 2021 and 2020 respectively.

B. Percentage of shareholding
As at 31 December 2021

Face value Percentage of 
Name of the shareholders (Taka) holding 

Bafin (Nederland) B.V 95,760,000 70.00%
Non-resident shareholders 2,159,290 1.58%
Local shareholders 38,880,710 28.42%

136,800,000 100%

As at 31 December 2020 
Name of the shareholders Face value Percentage of

(Taka) holding 
Bafin (Nederland) B.V 95,760,000 70.00%
Non-resident shareholders 2,478,230 1.81%
Local shareholders 38,561,770 28.19%

136,800,000 100%

C. Classification of shareholders by holdings

Number of shareholders Number of shares
Holdings 2021 2020 2021 2020
Less than 501 shares 5,515 5,988 557,904 613,942 
501 to 5,000 shares 307 358 455,508 519,019 
5,001 to 10,000 shares 30 37 226,127 256,165 
10,001 to 20,000 shares 23 23 318,094 344,685 
20,001 to 30,000 shares 6 3 152,448 75,188 
30,001 to 40,000 shares 5 5 173,673 172,911 
40,001 to 50,000 shares 3 3 141,575 141,030 
50,001 to 100,000 shares 12 11 817,845 758,083 
100,001 to 1,000,000 shares 6 6 1,260,826 1,222,977 
Over 1,000,000 shares 1 1 9,576,000 9,576,000 

5,908 6,435 13,680,000 13,680,000

25. Reserves and surplus
In taka Note 2021 2020
Reserve on revaluation of land 60,631,183 60,631,183 
Non-distributable special reserve* 998,620 998,620 
General reserve 48,863,000 48,863,000 

110,492,803 110,492,803

*This represents 90% of the cumulative post-tax profit in respect of certain categories of income up to 1992 as defined and
directed by Bangladesh Bank. Since 1993, the requirement for continuing to create such  special reserve is applicable only
to the profit on sale of immovable assets such as land, buildings etc. 

26. Retained earnings
Opening balance 26(A) 3,447,580,109 4,769,063,300 
Loss for the year (68,478,817) (1,324,698,441)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (37,717,700) 3,215,250 
Interim dividend paid during the year (102,600,000) -   
Final dividend paid during the year (34,200,000) -   
Closing balance 3,204,583,592 3,447,580,109 

A. Opening balance 3,447,580,109 4,741,076,478 
Add: Capitalized freight costs for the year 2019 -   27,986,822 
Restated opening balance 3,447,580,109 4,769,063,300 
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28. Deferred tax assets
See accounting policy in Note 47(D).

In taka Note 2021 2020

Opening balance 449,071,750 123,000,000 
Recognition in profit or loss account 28(A) 8,260,250 326,071,750 
Closing balance other than OCI 457,332,000 449,071,750 
Recognition in OCI 10,950,300 (1,071,750)
Closing balance including OCI 468,282,300 448,000,000 

A. Movement in deferred tax balances
Deferred tax assets have been recognised and measured in accordance with the provision of IAS 12: "Income taxes".

Balance at 31 December

Net  Recognised Deferred Deferred 
balance in profit  tax tax 

In taka at 1 January or loss Net assets liabilities 

2021
Property, plant and equipment (9,677,818) 7,030,818 (2,647,000) -   2,647,000 
Right-of-use assets (374,719,641) 46,516,641 (328,203,000) -   328,203,000 
Lease liabilities 382,856,597 (50,771,597) 332,085,000 332,085,000 - 
Employee benefits -   -   -   -   -   
Provision against personal accounts 8,737,970 (2,698,970) 6,039,000 6,039,000 -   
Provision for impairment loss on 156,025,163 (16,320,163) 139,705,000 139,705,000 -   
trade receivables
Unused tax losses 285,849,479 24,503,521 310,353,000 310,353,000 -   

449,071,750 8,260,250 457,332,000 788,182,000 330,850,000 

Deferred tax income recognised in profit or loss account (8,260,250)
Deferred tax income recognised in OCI (10,950,300)

(19,210,550)

2020
Property, plant and equipment (23,518,536) 13,840,718 (9,677,818) -   9,677,818 
Right-of-use assets 417,720,931 (792,440,572) (374,719,641) -   374,719,641 
Lease liabilities (392,046,423) 774,903,020 382,856,597 382,856,597 -   
Employee benefits 66,300,224 (66,300,224) -   -   -   
Provision against personal accounts 8,644,220 93,750 8,737,970 8,737,970 -   
Provision for impairment loss on 45,045,154 110,980,009 156,025,163 156,025,163 -   
trade receivables
Unused tax losses -   285,849,479 285,849,479 285,849,479 -   
Rounded off 854,430 (854,430) -   -   -   

123,000,000 326,071,750 449,071,750 833,469,209 384,397,459 

Deferred tax income recognised in profit or loss account (326,071,750)
Deferred tax expenses recognised in OCI 1,071,750 

(325,000,000)
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28. Deferred tax assets
See accounting policy in Note 47(D).

In taka Note 2021 2020

Opening balance 449,071,750 123,000,000 
Recognition in profit or loss account 28(A) 8,260,250 326,071,750 
Closing balance other than OCI 457,332,000 449,071,750 
Recognition in OCI 10,950,300 (1,071,750)
Closing balance including OCI 468,282,300 448,000,000 

A. Movement in deferred tax balances
Deferred tax assets have been recognised and measured in accordance with the provision of IAS 12: "Income taxes".

Balance at 31 December

Net  Recognised Deferred Deferred 
balance in profit  tax tax 

In taka at 1 January or loss Net assets liabilities 

2021
Property, plant and equipment (9,677,818) 7,030,818 (2,647,000) -   2,647,000 
Right-of-use assets (374,719,641) 46,516,641 (328,203,000) -   328,203,000 
Lease liabilities 382,856,597 (50,771,597) 332,085,000 332,085,000 - 
Employee benefits -   -   -   -   -   
Provision against personal accounts 8,737,970 (2,698,970) 6,039,000 6,039,000 -   
Provision for impairment loss on 156,025,163 (16,320,163) 139,705,000 139,705,000 -   
trade receivables
Unused tax losses 285,849,479 24,503,521 310,353,000 310,353,000 -   

449,071,750 8,260,250 457,332,000 788,182,000 330,850,000 

Deferred tax income recognised in profit or loss account (8,260,250)
Deferred tax income recognised in OCI (10,950,300)

(19,210,550)

2020
Property, plant and equipment (23,518,536) 13,840,718 (9,677,818) -   9,677,818 
Right-of-use assets 417,720,931 (792,440,572) (374,719,641) -   374,719,641 
Lease liabilities (392,046,423) 774,903,020 382,856,597 382,856,597 -   
Employee benefits 66,300,224 (66,300,224) -   -   -   
Provision against personal accounts 8,644,220 93,750 8,737,970 8,737,970 -   
Provision for impairment loss on 45,045,154 110,980,009 156,025,163 156,025,163 -   
trade receivables
Unused tax losses -   285,849,479 285,849,479 285,849,479 -   
Rounded off 854,430 (854,430) -   -   -   

123,000,000 326,071,750 449,071,750 833,469,209 384,397,459 

Deferred tax income recognised in profit or loss account (326,071,750)
Deferred tax expenses recognised in OCI 1,071,750 

(325,000,000)
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28. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued)
B. Computation of deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax assets are arrived at as follows:
Taxable/ 

Carrying Tax base (deductible) 
amount as at amount as at temporary 

In taka 31 December 31 December difference 
(i) (ii) (iii = i - ii) 

2021
Property, plant and equipment 744,889,336 733,125,038 11,764,298 
Right-of-use assets 1,458,678,692 -   1,458,678,692 
Lease liabilities (1,475,935,473) -   (1,475,935,473)
Employee benefits -   -   -   
Provision against personal accounts (26,839,954) -   (26,839,954)
Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables (620,911,954) -   (620,911,954)
Unused tax losses -   1,379,348,757 (1,379,348,757)
Applicable tax rate 22.5%

(457,332,000)
Deferred tax income recognised in other comprehensive income (10,950,300)
Deferred tax assets (468,282,300)

2020
Property, plant and equipment 865,018,762 826,307,487 38,711,275 
Right-of-use assets 1,498,878,565 -   1,498,878,565 
Lease liabilities (1,531,426,389) -   (1,531,426,389)
Provision against personal accounts (34,951,880) -   (34,951,880)
Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables (624,100,654) -   (624,100,654)
Unused tax losses -   1,143,397,916 (1,143,397,916)
Applicable tax rate 25.0%

(449,071,750)
Deferred tax expenses recognised in other comprehensive income 1,071,750 
Deferred tax assets (448,000,000)

29. Lease liabilities
See accounting policy in Note 47(K).

A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

In taka Note 2021 2020

Opening balance 1,531,426,389 1,568,185,692 
Additions 464,988,193 371,109,771 
Interest on lease liabilities as per IFRS 16 11(B) 143,633,508 155,520,526 
Payment of lease liabilities (principal portion) (520,479,109) (407,869,074)
Payment of lease liabilities (Interest portion) (143,633,508) (155,520,526)
Closing balance 1,475,935,473 1,531,426,389 

B. Balances in the statement of financial position
Non-current 1,062,880,077 1,089,303,058 
Current 413,055,396 442,123,331 
Closing balance 1,475,935,473 1,531,426,389 

Maturity analysis 
6 months or less 213,422,107 219,061,666 
6 - 12 months 199,633,289 223,061,666 
1 - 5 years 788,391,577 863,001,444 
More than 5 years 274,488,500 226,301,613 

1,475,935,473 1,531,426,389

29. Lease liabilities (continued)
In taka Note 2021 2020

C. Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Interest on lease liabilities as per IFRS 16 11(B) 143,633,508 155,520,526 
Loss due to remeasurement of lease liabilities 9 206,994 5,418,207 
Depreciation of right-of-use assets as per IFRS 16 19 545,498,465 563,798,570 

689,338,967 724,737,303 
Expenses related to non-lease components as per IFRS 16 88,655,086 12,257,697 
Total expenses recognised in profit or loss as per IFRS 16 777,994,053 736,995,000 

D. Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows
Payment of lease liabilities (principal portion) 520,479,109 407,869,074 
Payment of lease liabilities (Interest portion) 11(B) 143,633,508 155,520,526 

664,112,617 563,389,600 
Payment related to non-lease components as per IFRS 16 88,655,086 12,257,697 
Total cash outflows for leases during the year 752,767,703 575,647,297

E. Disaggregation of total expenses
Rent for commercial space 577,065,707 488,724,607 
Other rent (non commercial space), rate and taxes 114,368,490 174,961,702 

691,434,197 663,686,309 
Vat on rent for commercial space 86,559,856 73,308,691 

777,994,053 736,995,000

30. Trade and other payables
See accounting policy in Note 47(G).

Trade payables to external parties 30(A) 144,341,265 219,342,573 
Trade payables to related parties 408,493,753 420,886,359 
Creditors for other finance 30(B) 441,948,519 352,181,948 
Accrued expenses 30(C) 285,483,581 172,339,403 

1,280,267,118 1,164,750,283 

A. Trade payables to external parties
Creditors for goods 10,740,212 139,323,833 
Creditors for expenses 30(A)(i) 133,601,053 80,018,740 

144,341,265 219,342,573 

i. Creditors for expenses
Payable to local suppliers 26,685,853 8,934,546 
Payable to Global Footwear Services 106,915,200 71,084,194 

133,601,053 80,018,740 

B. Creditors for other finance
Workers' profit participation fund 12 2,540,049 -   
Personal accounts of employees and agents 94,707,404 97,784,057 
Security and other deposits 28,102,792 30,897,987 
Tax deducted at source 114,754,567 79,907,460 
Salary and wages payable 85,215,422 97,690,319 
Provident fund 5,759,335 -   
Others 110,868,950 45,902,125 

441,948,519 352,181,948 

C. Accrued expenses
Royalty 59,353,270 54,485,663 
Utility 14,687,800 8,652,800 
Legal and audit fee 3,910,000 2,086,500 
Bonus 63,911,721 18,681,177 
Joint venture commission 1,891,498 4,497,783 
Rent 84,327,853 61,799,080 
Other accrued liabilities 57,401,439 22,136,400 

285,483,581 172,339,403 
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28. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued)
B. Computation of deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax assets are arrived at as follows:
Taxable/ 

Carrying Tax base (deductible) 
amount as at amount as at temporary 

In taka 31 December 31 December difference 
(i) (ii) (iii = i - ii) 

2021
Property, plant and equipment 744,889,336 733,125,038 11,764,298 
Right-of-use assets 1,458,678,692 -   1,458,678,692 
Lease liabilities (1,475,935,473) -   (1,475,935,473)
Employee benefits -   -   -   
Provision against personal accounts (26,839,954) -   (26,839,954)
Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables (620,911,954) -   (620,911,954)
Unused tax losses -   1,379,348,757 (1,379,348,757)
Applicable tax rate 22.5%

(457,332,000)
Deferred tax income recognised in other comprehensive income (10,950,300)
Deferred tax assets (468,282,300)

2020
Property, plant and equipment 865,018,762 826,307,487 38,711,275 
Right-of-use assets 1,498,878,565 -   1,498,878,565 
Lease liabilities (1,531,426,389) -   (1,531,426,389)
Provision against personal accounts (34,951,880) -   (34,951,880)
Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables (624,100,654) -   (624,100,654)
Unused tax losses -   1,143,397,916 (1,143,397,916)
Applicable tax rate 25.0%

(449,071,750)
Deferred tax expenses recognised in other comprehensive income 1,071,750 
Deferred tax assets (448,000,000)

29. Lease liabilities
See accounting policy in Note 47(K).

A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

In taka Note 2021 2020

Opening balance 1,531,426,389 1,568,185,692 
Additions 464,988,193 371,109,771 
Interest on lease liabilities as per IFRS 16 11(B) 143,633,508 155,520,526 
Payment of lease liabilities (principal portion) (520,479,109) (407,869,074)
Payment of lease liabilities (Interest portion) (143,633,508) (155,520,526)
Closing balance 1,475,935,473 1,531,426,389 

B. Balances in the statement of financial position
Non-current 1,062,880,077 1,089,303,058 
Current 413,055,396 442,123,331 
Closing balance 1,475,935,473 1,531,426,389 

Maturity analysis 
6 months or less 213,422,107 219,061,666 
6 - 12 months 199,633,289 223,061,666 
1 - 5 years 788,391,577 863,001,444 
More than 5 years 274,488,500 226,301,613 

1,475,935,473 1,531,426,389

29. Lease liabilities (continued)
In taka Note 2021 2020

C. Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Interest on lease liabilities as per IFRS 16 11(B) 143,633,508 155,520,526 
Loss due to remeasurement of lease liabilities 9 206,994 5,418,207 
Depreciation of right-of-use assets as per IFRS 16 19 545,498,465 563,798,570 

689,338,967 724,737,303 
Expenses related to non-lease components as per IFRS 16 88,655,086 12,257,697 
Total expenses recognised in profit or loss as per IFRS 16 777,994,053 736,995,000 

D. Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows
Payment of lease liabilities (principal portion) 520,479,109 407,869,074 
Payment of lease liabilities (Interest portion) 11(B) 143,633,508 155,520,526 

664,112,617 563,389,600 
Payment related to non-lease components as per IFRS 16 88,655,086 12,257,697 
Total cash outflows for leases during the year 752,767,703 575,647,297

E. Disaggregation of total expenses
Rent for commercial space 577,065,707 488,724,607 
Other rent (non commercial space), rate and taxes 114,368,490 174,961,702 

691,434,197 663,686,309 
Vat on rent for commercial space 86,559,856 73,308,691 

777,994,053 736,995,000

30. Trade and other payables
See accounting policy in Note 47(G).

Trade payables to external parties 30(A) 144,341,265 219,342,573 
Trade payables to related parties 408,493,753 420,886,359 
Creditors for other finance 30(B) 441,948,519 352,181,948 
Accrued expenses 30(C) 285,483,581 172,339,403 

1,280,267,118 1,164,750,283 

A. Trade payables to external parties
Creditors for goods 10,740,212 139,323,833 
Creditors for expenses 30(A)(i) 133,601,053 80,018,740 

144,341,265 219,342,573 

i. Creditors for expenses
Payable to local suppliers 26,685,853 8,934,546 
Payable to Global Footwear Services 106,915,200 71,084,194 

133,601,053 80,018,740 

B. Creditors for other finance
Workers' profit participation fund 12 2,540,049 -   
Personal accounts of employees and agents 94,707,404 97,784,057 
Security and other deposits 28,102,792 30,897,987 
Tax deducted at source 114,754,567 79,907,460 
Salary and wages payable 85,215,422 97,690,319 
Provident fund 5,759,335 -   
Others 110,868,950 45,902,125 

441,948,519 352,181,948 

C. Accrued expenses
Royalty 59,353,270 54,485,663 
Utility 14,687,800 8,652,800 
Legal and audit fee 3,910,000 2,086,500 
Bonus 63,911,721 18,681,177 
Joint venture commission 1,891,498 4,497,783 
Rent 84,327,853 61,799,080 
Other accrued liabilities 57,401,439 22,136,400 

285,483,581 172,339,403 
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31. Unclaimed dividend
See accounting policy in Note 47(M).

In taka Note 2021 2020

Opening balance 45,524,635 215,251,763 
Cash dividend declared 136,800,000 -   
Paid during the year (171,350,832) (169,727,128)

Closing balance 10,973,803 45,524,635 

i. Aging analysis of unclaimed dividend

Prior to 2018 -  37,148,586 
For the year 2018* 5,683,653 5,962,082 
For the year 2019 2,283,826 2,413,967 
For the year 2020 566,448 -   
For the year 2021 2,439,876 -   
Closing balance 10,973,803 45,524,635 

*Final dividend for 2018 was approved at the 47th Annual General Meeting of the Company at 27 June 2019.

32. Contract liabilities
See accounting policy in Note 47(A).

Bata club loyalty points 32(A) 29,161,950 20,930,809 
29,161,950 20,930,809 

A. Movement of contract liabilities
Opening balance 20,930,809 22,452,540 
Points awarded during the year 157,373,270 116,248,405 
Points redeemed during the year (46,365,338) (16,889,132)
Points expired during the year (102,776,791) (100,881,004)
Closing balance 29,161,950 20,930,809 

33. Current tax liabilities
See accounting policy in Note 47(D).

Provision for tax 33(A) 322,818,799 279,023,206 
Advance income tax 33(B) (131,177,212) (102,651,602)

191,641,587 176,371,604 

A. Provision for tax
Opening balance 279,023,206 550,872,114 
Provision for the current year 13(A) 125,000,000 57,000,000 
Adjustment of provision for tax on completion of assessment (81,204,407) (328,848,908)
Closing balance 322,818,799 279,023,206 

B. Advance income tax
Opening balance 102,651,602 218,488,005 
Tax paid during the year:
- Income year ended 31 December 2021 71,879,817 -   
- Income year ended 31 December 2020 37,850,200 43,354,207 
- Income year ended 31 December 2019 -   169,658,298 
Adjustment of advance tax on completion of assessment (81,204,407) (328,848,908)
Closing balance 131,177,212 102,651,602

34. Related parties

A. Parent and ultimate controlling party
Bafin (Nederland) B.V has 70% shareholding of the Company which is fully owned by Compass Limited. As a result, the
ultimate controlling party of the company is Compass Limited.

B. Transactions with key management personnel

In taka 2021 2020

Directors' emoluments 36,234,525 24,155,318 
Top managers' emoluments 86,657,637 64,837,000 

122,892,162 88,992,318 

C. Other related party transactions

In taka

Nature of Nature of Transaction during the year Balance outstanding 
relationships transactions 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Parent of the Company Dividend (95,760,000) (119,700,000) - -   
Associated Companies Purchase of goods (71,494,657) (56,498,403) (14,485,588) (1,533,560)

Service received (2,463,764) (8,195,047) (2,040,009) -   
Sales of goods 3,549,292 -   1,243,332 -   
Service provided -   188,433 - -   
Trade mark license fees (295,109,752) 136,576,249 (435,520,173) (465,947,555) 

35. Remittance of foreign currency

Name of Nature of Foreign Foreign currency Local currency
parties transactions Currency    2021 2020 2021 2020 

Bafin (Nederland) B.V. Dividend USD 998,765 1,256,327 86,184,000 107,730,000 

Global Footwear Management services fees SGD 1,108,536 1,680,000 70,613,743 107,335,200
Services Pte. Ltd., 
Singapore 

Wolverine World Royalty on Hush Puppies Brand USD 219,484 162,219 18,634,816 13,796,736 
Wide Inc., USA and consultancy fees

Bata Brands S.a.r.l - Royalty and business USD 3,472,058 1,813,355 296,165,687 154,316,471 
Swiss Branch development expenses

Aurelius Alpha International Royalty on Dr. Scholl Brand and EUR 104,809 85,590 10,638,069 8,403,849
technical know how fees 

Turner Broadcasting Royalty on Ben10, PPG etc. USD -   50,000 -   4,247,500 

Heidrick & Struggles Management services fees USD -   89,509 -   7,603,772 

Bata India Management services fees USD -   5,938 -   504,433 

Bata Thailand Business Development USD 84 -   7,138 -   

Bata Shoe Business Development USD 4,543 -   387,208 - 
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.  

Avado Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. Business Development USD 2,595 -   219,018 -   

Ernst And Young Business development expenses USD 144 -   12,233 -
Associates LLP   

Paper Planes Pictures Consultancy fees USD 11,503 -   977,197 -
Private Limited   

Capillary Technologies Trade mark license fees USD -   9,200 -   781,540
India Private Ltd. 

5,922,521 5,152,138 483,839,109 404,719,501
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31. Unclaimed dividend
See accounting policy in Note 47(M).

In taka Note 2021 2020

Opening balance 45,524,635 215,251,763 
Cash dividend declared 136,800,000 -   
Paid during the year (171,350,832) (169,727,128)

Closing balance 10,973,803 45,524,635 

i. Aging analysis of unclaimed dividend

Prior to 2018 -  37,148,586 
For the year 2018* 5,683,653 5,962,082 
For the year 2019 2,283,826 2,413,967 
For the year 2020 566,448 -   
For the year 2021 2,439,876 -   
Closing balance 10,973,803 45,524,635 

*Final dividend for 2018 was approved at the 47th Annual General Meeting of the Company at 27 June 2019.

32. Contract liabilities
See accounting policy in Note 47(A).

Bata club loyalty points 32(A) 29,161,950 20,930,809 
29,161,950 20,930,809 

A. Movement of contract liabilities
Opening balance 20,930,809 22,452,540 
Points awarded during the year 157,373,270 116,248,405 
Points redeemed during the year (46,365,338) (16,889,132)
Points expired during the year (102,776,791) (100,881,004)
Closing balance 29,161,950 20,930,809 

33. Current tax liabilities
See accounting policy in Note 47(D).

Provision for tax 33(A) 322,818,799 279,023,206 
Advance income tax 33(B) (131,177,212) (102,651,602)

191,641,587 176,371,604 

A. Provision for tax
Opening balance 279,023,206 550,872,114 
Provision for the current year 13(A) 125,000,000 57,000,000 
Adjustment of provision for tax on completion of assessment (81,204,407) (328,848,908)
Closing balance 322,818,799 279,023,206 

B. Advance income tax
Opening balance 102,651,602 218,488,005 
Tax paid during the year:
- Income year ended 31 December 2021 71,879,817 -   
- Income year ended 31 December 2020 37,850,200 43,354,207 
- Income year ended 31 December 2019 -   169,658,298 
Adjustment of advance tax on completion of assessment (81,204,407) (328,848,908)
Closing balance 131,177,212 102,651,602

34. Related parties

A. Parent and ultimate controlling party
Bafin (Nederland) B.V has 70% shareholding of the Company which is fully owned by Compass Limited. As a result, the
ultimate controlling party of the company is Compass Limited.

B. Transactions with key management personnel

In taka 2021 2020

Directors' emoluments 36,234,525 24,155,318 
Top managers' emoluments 86,657,637 64,837,000 

122,892,162 88,992,318 

C. Other related party transactions

In taka

Nature of Nature of Transaction during the year Balance outstanding 
relationships transactions 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Parent of the Company Dividend (95,760,000) (119,700,000) - -   
Associated Companies Purchase of goods (71,494,657) (56,498,403) (14,485,588) (1,533,560)

Service received (2,463,764) (8,195,047) (2,040,009) -   
Sales of goods 3,549,292 -   1,243,332 -   
Service provided -   188,433 - -   
Trade mark license fees (295,109,752) 136,576,249 (435,520,173) (465,947,555) 

35. Remittance of foreign currency

Name of Nature of Foreign Foreign currency Local currency
parties transactions Currency    2021 2020 2021 2020 

Bafin (Nederland) B.V. Dividend USD 998,765 1,256,327 86,184,000 107,730,000 

Global Footwear Management services fees SGD 1,108,536 1,680,000 70,613,743 107,335,200
Services Pte. Ltd., 
Singapore 

Wolverine World Royalty on Hush Puppies Brand USD 219,484 162,219 18,634,816 13,796,736 
Wide Inc., USA and consultancy fees

Bata Brands S.a.r.l - Royalty and business USD 3,472,058 1,813,355 296,165,687 154,316,471 
Swiss Branch development expenses

Aurelius Alpha International Royalty on Dr. Scholl Brand and EUR 104,809 85,590 10,638,069 8,403,849
technical know how fees 

Turner Broadcasting Royalty on Ben10, PPG etc. USD -   50,000 -   4,247,500 

Heidrick & Struggles Management services fees USD -   89,509 -   7,603,772 

Bata India Management services fees USD -   5,938 -   504,433 

Bata Thailand Business Development USD 84 -   7,138 -   

Bata Shoe Business Development USD 4,543 -   387,208 - 
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.  

Avado Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. Business Development USD 2,595 -   219,018 -   

Ernst And Young Business development expenses USD 144 -   12,233 -
Associates LLP   

Paper Planes Pictures Consultancy fees USD 11,503 -   977,197 -
Private Limited   

Capillary Technologies Trade mark license fees USD -   9,200 -   781,540
India Private Ltd. 

5,922,521 5,152,138 483,839,109 404,719,501
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36. Earnings in foreign currency

In taka 2021 2020

Export of shoes and other footwear goods 11,373,114 11,322,041 

37. Earnings per share
Losses attributable to the ordinary shareholders (68,478,817) (1,324,698,441)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 13,680,000 13,680,000 
Earnings per share [previous year's figure restated] (5.01) (96.83)

Losses attributable to the ordinary shareholders (68,478,817) (1,326,195,238)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 13,680,000 13,680,000 

Earnings per share [before restatement] (5.01) (96.94)

38. Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
Net asset value 3,451,876,395 3,694,872,912 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 13,680,000 13,680,000 

252.33 270.09 

39. Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS)
Net operating cash flow 1,257,228,152 30,897,603 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 13,680,000 13,680,000 

91.90 2.26 

i. Reconciliation of net operating cash flows
Profit for the year (68,478,817) (1,324,698,441)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 156,969,211 175,832,122 
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 545,498,465 563,798,570 
Net finance costs 143,712,548 182,260,721 
Other income/(loss) (16,708,703) (6,843,639)
Tax expenses 116,739,750 (269,071,750)

946,211,271 645,976,024 
Cash generated before changes in working capital 877,732,454 (678,722,417)
Changes in working capital:
- Inventories 144,244,941 430,282,811 
- Trade and other receivables 151,828,586 1,103,182,918 
- Advances, deposits and prepayments 274,644,154 380,720,296 
- Creditor for goods (128,583,621) (205,763,183)
- Creditor for expenses 53,582,313 (281,383,054)
- Creditor for other finance 89,766,571 (28,130,482)
- Accrued expenses 113,144,178 (17,343,750)
- Contract liabilities 8,231,141 (1,521,731)
Total changes in working capital 706,858,263 1,380,043,825 
Interest Received 20,216,528 19,630,776 
Interest paid (163,929,076) (163,929,076)
Income tax paid (109,730,017) (213,012,505)
Cash payments for defined benefit plan (73,920,000) (313,113,000)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,257,228,152 30,897,603   

40. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
See accounting policy in Note 47(G).

A. Accounting classifications and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels
in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured
at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Financial Other
31 December 2021 assets at financial
In taka Note amortised cost liabilities Total

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade and other receivables 21 40,309,098 -   40,309,098 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 22 219,704,929 -   219,704,929 
Cash and cash equivalents 23 622,781,937 -   622,781,937 

882,795,964 -   882,795,964 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Lease liabilities 29 -   (1,475,935,473) (1,475,935,473)
Trade and other payables 30 -   (1,280,267,118) (1,280,267,118)

-   (2,756,202,591) (2,756,202,591)

31 December 2020
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade and other receivables 21 192,137,684 -   192,137,684 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 22 495,451,427 -   495,451,427 
Cash and cash equivalents 23 125,919,383 -   125,919,383 

813,508,494 -   813,508,494 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Lease liabilities 29 -   (1,531,426,389) (1,531,426,389)
Trade and other payables 30 -   (1,164,750,283) (1,164,750,283)

-   (2,696,176,672) (2,696,176,672)

The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, advances, deposits and prepayments, trade and other payables and lease liabilities because their carrying
amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair values.

B. Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- credit risk (see (B)(ii));
- liquidity risk (see (B)(iii)); and
- market risk (see (B)(iv)).

i. Risk management framework
The Company's management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and control, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
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36. Earnings in foreign currency

In taka 2021 2020

Export of shoes and other footwear goods 11,373,114 11,322,041 

37. Earnings per share
Losses attributable to the ordinary shareholders (68,478,817) (1,324,698,441)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 13,680,000 13,680,000 
Earnings per share [previous year's figure restated] (5.01) (96.83)

Losses attributable to the ordinary shareholders (68,478,817) (1,326,195,238)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 13,680,000 13,680,000 

Earnings per share [before restatement] (5.01) (96.94)

38. Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
Net asset value 3,451,876,395 3,694,872,912 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 13,680,000 13,680,000 

252.33 270.09 

39. Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS)
Net operating cash flow 1,257,228,152 30,897,603 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 13,680,000 13,680,000 

91.90 2.26 

i. Reconciliation of net operating cash flows
Profit for the year (68,478,817) (1,324,698,441)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 156,969,211 175,832,122 
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 545,498,465 563,798,570 
Net finance costs 143,712,548 182,260,721 
Other income/(loss) (16,708,703) (6,843,639)
Tax expenses 116,739,750 (269,071,750)

946,211,271 645,976,024 
Cash generated before changes in working capital 877,732,454 (678,722,417)
Changes in working capital:
- Inventories 144,244,941 430,282,811 
- Trade and other receivables 151,828,586 1,103,182,918 
- Advances, deposits and prepayments 274,644,154 380,720,296 
- Creditor for goods (128,583,621) (205,763,183)
- Creditor for expenses 53,582,313 (281,383,054)
- Creditor for other finance 89,766,571 (28,130,482)
- Accrued expenses 113,144,178 (17,343,750)
- Contract liabilities 8,231,141 (1,521,731)
Total changes in working capital 706,858,263 1,380,043,825 
Interest Received 20,216,528 19,630,776 
Interest paid (163,929,076) (163,929,076)
Income tax paid (109,730,017) (213,012,505)
Cash payments for defined benefit plan (73,920,000) (313,113,000)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,257,228,152 30,897,603   

40. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
See accounting policy in Note 47(G).

A. Accounting classifications and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels
in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured
at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Financial Other
31 December 2021 assets at financial
In taka Note amortised cost liabilities Total

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade and other receivables 21 40,309,098 -   40,309,098 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 22 219,704,929 -   219,704,929 
Cash and cash equivalents 23 622,781,937 -   622,781,937 

882,795,964 -   882,795,964 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Lease liabilities 29 -   (1,475,935,473) (1,475,935,473)
Trade and other payables 30 -   (1,280,267,118) (1,280,267,118)

-   (2,756,202,591) (2,756,202,591)

31 December 2020
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade and other receivables 21 192,137,684 -   192,137,684 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 22 495,451,427 -   495,451,427 
Cash and cash equivalents 23 125,919,383 -   125,919,383 

813,508,494 -   813,508,494 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Lease liabilities 29 -   (1,531,426,389) (1,531,426,389)
Trade and other payables 30 -   (1,164,750,283) (1,164,750,283)

-   (2,696,176,672) (2,696,176,672)

The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, advances, deposits and prepayments, trade and other payables and lease liabilities because their carrying
amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair values.

B. Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- credit risk (see (B)(ii));
- liquidity risk (see (B)(iii)); and
- market risk (see (B)(iv)).

i. Risk management framework
The Company's management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and control, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
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40. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
B. Financial risk management (continued)
ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the statement of financial position date was:

In taka Note 2021 2020

Trade receivables from external parties 21 31,172,260 793,123,419 
Deposits 22 139,820,505 407,375,142 
Bank balances 23 622,698,594 125,749,537 

793,691,359 1,326,248,098 

i. Trade and other receivables

Gross receivables 21 652,084,214 793,123,419 
Provision for impairment loss 21 (620,911,954) (624,100,654)

31,172,260 169,022,765 

Ageing of receivable from customers

0-30 days 19,424,386 29,596,735 
31-90 days 3,464,807 63,792,000 
91-180 days 7,172,657 47,979,000 
181-365 days 2,220,820 55,109,000 
Over 365 days 619,801,544 596,646,684 

652,084,214 793,123,419

Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables 

Estimated gross carrying Expected Credit
31 December 2021 Expected credit loss rate amount at default loss (In taka)
0-30 days 1.77% 19,424,386 343,328 
31-90 days 10.50% 3,464,807 363,805 
91-180 days 9.00% 7,172,657 645,539 
181-365 days 17.00% 2,220,820 377,539 
Over 365 days 99.90% 619,801,544 619,181,742 

652,084,214 620,911,954 

Estimated gross carrying Expected Credit
31 December 2020 Expected credit loss rate amount at default loss (In taka)

0-30 days 3.41% 29,596,735 1,011,616 
31-90 days 10.70% 63,792,000 6,825,744 
91-180 days 17.34% 47,979,000 8,320,662 
181-365 days 20.50% 55,109,000 11,297,345 
Over 365 days 100.00% 596,646,684 596,646,684 

793,123,419 624,100,654 

ii. Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances 23 622,698,594 125,749,537 

622,698,594 125,749,537

The bank balances of the Company are held with banks which are rated AAA, AA+ and AA by Credit Rating Agency of
Bangladesh. 40
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40. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
B. Financial risk management (continued)
ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the statement of financial position date was:

In taka Note 2021 2020

Trade receivables from external parties 21 31,172,260 793,123,419 
Deposits 22 139,820,505 407,375,142 
Bank balances 23 622,698,594 125,749,537 

793,691,359 1,326,248,098 

i. Trade and other receivables

Gross receivables 21 652,084,214 793,123,419 
Provision for impairment loss 21 (620,911,954) (624,100,654)

31,172,260 169,022,765 

Ageing of receivable from customers

0-30 days 19,424,386 29,596,735 
31-90 days 3,464,807 63,792,000 
91-180 days 7,172,657 47,979,000 
181-365 days 2,220,820 55,109,000 
Over 365 days 619,801,544 596,646,684 

652,084,214 793,123,419

Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables 

Estimated gross carrying Expected Credit
31 December 2021 Expected credit loss rate amount at default loss (In taka)
0-30 days 1.77% 19,424,386 343,328 
31-90 days 10.50% 3,464,807 363,805 
91-180 days 9.00% 7,172,657 645,539 
181-365 days 17.00% 2,220,820 377,539 
Over 365 days 99.90% 619,801,544 619,181,742 

652,084,214 620,911,954 

Estimated gross carrying Expected Credit
31 December 2020 Expected credit loss rate amount at default loss (In taka)

0-30 days 3.41% 29,596,735 1,011,616 
31-90 days 10.70% 63,792,000 6,825,744 
91-180 days 17.34% 47,979,000 8,320,662 
181-365 days 20.50% 55,109,000 11,297,345 
Over 365 days 100.00% 596,646,684 596,646,684 

793,123,419 624,100,654 

ii. Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances 23 622,698,594 125,749,537 

622,698,594 125,749,537

The bank balances of the Company are held with banks which are rated AAA, AA+ and AA by Credit Rating Agency of
Bangladesh. 40
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40. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk management (continued)

iv. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases with foreign customers and suppliers including Bata Group
(globally) and on royalty payment. Majority of the Company's foreign currency transactions are denominated in USD. The
Company maintains USD bank account where all receipts are deposited and all corresponding payments are made.

Exposure to currency risk

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts:

Foreign currency 2021 2020
denominated assets USD SGD USD SGD
Trade and other receivables 34,481 -   15,911 -   
Bank balances 62,165 -   29,621 -   

96,646 -   45,532 -   

Foreign currency 
denominated liabilities
Trade and other payables (5,449,587) (1,627,324) (4,966,211) (1,108,536)
Net exposure (5,352,941) (1,627,324) (4,920,679) (1,108,536)

Payable to other entities represents payable for Global footwear service fees, IT fees etc.

Exposure to currency risk as at 31 December 2021 in respect of the separate financial statements does not vary from above.
The Company has a foreign exchange loss amounting to Taka. 3,974,074 during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The following significant exchange rates are applied during the year:

In taka Average rate for the year Reporting date spot rate
2021 2020 2021 2020

US Dollar 1 85.33 84.90 85.85 84.75
Singapore Dollar 1 64.23 61.47 65.70 64.12

Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis for foreign currency expenditures
A strengthening (weakening) of the Taka, as indicated below, against the USD and SGD at 31 December would have
increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency
exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the reporting date. The analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2021,
albeit that the reasonably possible foreign exchange rate variances were different, as indicated below:

Profit or loss Equity
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

At 31 December 2021
USD (1 percent movement) 4,678,470 (4,678,470) 4,678,470 (4,678,470)
SGD (1 percent movement) 1,069,152 (1,069,152) 1,069,152 (1,069,152)

At 31 December 2020
USD (1 percent movement) 4,644,140 (4,644,140) 4,644,140 (4,644,140)
SGD (1 percent movement) 710,842 (710,842) 710,842 (710,842)

40. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
B. Financial risk management (continued)
iv. Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk
The interest bearing financial instrument for the Company is the short term deposit (STD) account maintained by the
Company with its commercial banks. These are highly liquid and very short term deposits with nominal interest rate. Interest
rate fluctuation for such investment have little impact on financial statements. Therefore, interest rate risk for the Company
is insignificant.
Commodity risk
Commodity risk refers to the uncertainties of future market values and of the size of the future income, caused by the
fluctuation in the prices of commodities. As the Company purchases MS wire, blended power, calcium carbide and
other raw materials, it is exposed to risks arising from the purchase of these materials for use in production. Commodity
price risk is managed by supply contracts with suppliers.

41. Contingent liabilities
See accounting policy in Note 47(R).
In taka 2021 2020
Letter of credit:
Eastern Bank 74,768,766 156,432,402 
HSBC 207,286,505 81,370,764 

282,055,271 237,803,166 
Bank Guarantee:
Eastern Bank 11,769,251 18,809,576 

Unresolved disputed tax and VAT cases 598,819,000 571,188,000 
892,643,522 827,800,742 

The Company appealed before the High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh against the Tribunal order
demanding a net claim of tax liability of Taka 30 million for the assessment years from 2000 to 2011. 
The Company filed before the High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh and other stages against the
Tribunal order and other lower courts respectively demanding a claim of total VAT liability of Taka 568 million for the
assessment years from 2001 to 2019. 

42. Capital expenditure and financial commitment
There were no capital expenditure commitments as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
Commitments of the Company is Taka 493,378,590 as on 31 December 2021 (2020: Taka 244,642,798) for purchase
of raw materials and finished goods.

43. Numbers of employees
The number of employees engaged for the whole period or part there of who received a total remuneration of Taka
36,000 or more per annum was 1,062 (2020: 1,266).

44. Events after the reporting date
See accounting policy in Note 47(S).
The Board of Directors, at its 255th meeting held on 25 April 2022,  proposed  Taka 2.5 per share amounting to a total
of Taka 34,200,000 as final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 which represents 25 % of the paid-up
capital. These dividend are subject to final approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

45. Significant deviations
A. Revenue and profit for the year 2021

The new version of Covid-19 had an impact on our industry in the year 2021 which started early in the year 2020. The
virus not only caused havoc on our shoe industry but also devastated the economy. We lost two EID businesses which
contribute almost 30% of the total Company's business. However, after the Government vaccination program, the
COVID situation came under control as well as economic condition started to normalize, customers returned back to
the shops with their old traits. As a result, Company's business has improved and net revenue has increased by 52%
in 2021 against last year as well as during the year, the company come back to a positive PBT BDT 48 million whereas
last year's result was negative PBT of BDT (1,594) million. The above mentioned positive trend of business and PBT
indicates that business is moving forward and/or improving day by day.
Since revenue increased by 52%, the cost of sales increased by 30% simultaneously. Besides, operating expenses
also increased by almost 17% simultenously. Above all, increase in revenue has led the business to minimize the level
of losses during the year.
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40. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk management (continued)

iv. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases with foreign customers and suppliers including Bata Group
(globally) and on royalty payment. Majority of the Company's foreign currency transactions are denominated in USD. The
Company maintains USD bank account where all receipts are deposited and all corresponding payments are made.

Exposure to currency risk

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts:

Foreign currency 2021 2020
denominated assets USD SGD USD SGD
Trade and other receivables 34,481 -   15,911 -   
Bank balances 62,165 -   29,621 -   

96,646 -   45,532 -   

Foreign currency 
denominated liabilities
Trade and other payables (5,449,587) (1,627,324) (4,966,211) (1,108,536)
Net exposure (5,352,941) (1,627,324) (4,920,679) (1,108,536)

Payable to other entities represents payable for Global footwear service fees, IT fees etc.

Exposure to currency risk as at 31 December 2021 in respect of the separate financial statements does not vary from above.
The Company has a foreign exchange loss amounting to Taka. 3,974,074 during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The following significant exchange rates are applied during the year:

In taka Average rate for the year Reporting date spot rate
2021 2020 2021 2020

US Dollar 1 85.33 84.90 85.85 84.75
Singapore Dollar 1 64.23 61.47 65.70 64.12

Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis for foreign currency expenditures
A strengthening (weakening) of the Taka, as indicated below, against the USD and SGD at 31 December would have
increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency
exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the reporting date. The analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2021,
albeit that the reasonably possible foreign exchange rate variances were different, as indicated below:

Profit or loss Equity
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

At 31 December 2021
USD (1 percent movement) 4,678,470 (4,678,470) 4,678,470 (4,678,470)
SGD (1 percent movement) 1,069,152 (1,069,152) 1,069,152 (1,069,152)

At 31 December 2020
USD (1 percent movement) 4,644,140 (4,644,140) 4,644,140 (4,644,140)
SGD (1 percent movement) 710,842 (710,842) 710,842 (710,842)

40. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
B. Financial risk management (continued)
iv. Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk
The interest bearing financial instrument for the Company is the short term deposit (STD) account maintained by the
Company with its commercial banks. These are highly liquid and very short term deposits with nominal interest rate. Interest
rate fluctuation for such investment have little impact on financial statements. Therefore, interest rate risk for the Company
is insignificant.
Commodity risk
Commodity risk refers to the uncertainties of future market values and of the size of the future income, caused by the
fluctuation in the prices of commodities. As the Company purchases MS wire, blended power, calcium carbide and
other raw materials, it is exposed to risks arising from the purchase of these materials for use in production. Commodity
price risk is managed by supply contracts with suppliers.

41. Contingent liabilities
See accounting policy in Note 47(R).
In taka 2021 2020
Letter of credit:
Eastern Bank 74,768,766 156,432,402 
HSBC 207,286,505 81,370,764 

282,055,271 237,803,166 
Bank Guarantee:
Eastern Bank 11,769,251 18,809,576 

Unresolved disputed tax and VAT cases 598,819,000 571,188,000 
892,643,522 827,800,742 

The Company appealed before the High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh against the Tribunal order
demanding a net claim of tax liability of Taka 30 million for the assessment years from 2000 to 2011. 
The Company filed before the High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh and other stages against the
Tribunal order and other lower courts respectively demanding a claim of total VAT liability of Taka 568 million for the
assessment years from 2001 to 2019. 

42. Capital expenditure and financial commitment
There were no capital expenditure commitments as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
Commitments of the Company is Taka 493,378,590 as on 31 December 2021 (2020: Taka 244,642,798) for purchase
of raw materials and finished goods.

43. Numbers of employees
The number of employees engaged for the whole period or part there of who received a total remuneration of Taka
36,000 or more per annum was 1,062 (2020: 1,266).

44. Events after the reporting date
See accounting policy in Note 47(S).
The Board of Directors, at its 255th meeting held on 25 April 2022,  proposed  Taka 2.5 per share amounting to a total
of Taka 34,200,000 as final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 which represents 25 % of the paid-up
capital. These dividend are subject to final approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

45. Significant deviations
A. Revenue and profit for the year 2021

The new version of Covid-19 had an impact on our industry in the year 2021 which started early in the year 2020. The
virus not only caused havoc on our shoe industry but also devastated the economy. We lost two EID businesses which
contribute almost 30% of the total Company's business. However, after the Government vaccination program, the
COVID situation came under control as well as economic condition started to normalize, customers returned back to
the shops with their old traits. As a result, Company's business has improved and net revenue has increased by 52%
in 2021 against last year as well as during the year, the company come back to a positive PBT BDT 48 million whereas
last year's result was negative PBT of BDT (1,594) million. The above mentioned positive trend of business and PBT
indicates that business is moving forward and/or improving day by day.
Since revenue increased by 52%, the cost of sales increased by 30% simultaneously. Besides, operating expenses
also increased by almost 17% simultenously. Above all, increase in revenue has led the business to minimize the level
of losses during the year.
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B. Earning Per Share (EPS)
Earning per share (EPS) increased compared to last year driven by revenue growth in sales volume and amount,
especially in post COVID period.

C. Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS)
Net operating cash flow per share increased compared to last year driven by revenue growth in sales volume and
amount as well as an increase in related collections, especially in post COVID period.

45. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

46. Change in significant accounting policy
During the year 2021, the Company conducted a review of its inventory policy to align with the Group. As per IAS 2, every
cost to bring the inventory to its final stage should be included in the inventory valuation. According to the Group policies,
freight costs between internal warehouses and retail stores represent an unavoidable part of the supply chain in getting
inventories to their present location and condition. Therefore, the Company has decided to include these freight costs in the
cost of inventory (e.g. capitalize and recognize as Cost of Sales when sold). The effect of changes in this policy for capitalized
freight cost is as follows:

In taka

Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories 34,001,358 
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax liabilities (7,650,306)

Increase/(decrease) in equity 26,351,052 

Decrease/(increase) in Cost of sales (Freight and transportation) 34,001,358 
Decrease/(increase) in income tax expenses (7,650,306)

Increase/(decrease) in profit 26,351,052 

47. Significant accounting policies
The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial
statements.
Set out below is an index of the significant accounting policies, the details of which are available on the pages that follow:
A. Revenue recognition 87
B. Finance income and finance expenses 87
C. Employee benefits 87
D. Income tax 88
E. Property, plant and equipment 89
F. Foreign currency 90
G. Financial instruments 90
H. Impairment 91
I. Inventories 92
J. Provisions 92
K. Leases 92
L. Earnings per share 93
M. Dividend distribution 94
N. Segment reporting 94
O. Duty drawback 94
P. Sales proceeds from wastage and scrap etc. 94
Q. Going concern 94
R. Contingent liabilities 94
S. Events after the reporting period 94

47. Significant accounting policies (continued)
A. Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of discounts, incentives, Value Added Tax (VAT) and loyalty points earned by customers on the Company’s
sales.
The Company recognizes revenue when a contractual performance obligation is fulfilled by transferring control over the
promised goods to a customer provided that collectability of the consideration is probable.
(i) Information about its performance obligations
The Company typically  satisfies its performance obligations which are as follows:

Nature When the Company typically satisfies its performance obligations
Retail Upon acceptance and paying for goods by customers at retail stores.
Wholesale Upon acceptance of goods at depots and/or distribution centers by the dealers 

(i.e. point of dispatching from depot and/or distributor's gate).
e-commerce Upon delivery to customers.
Export sales Free on board.

(ii) Obligations in relation to repair or replace
It is the Company's policy to sell its goods to the customers with a right to repair or replace within 30 days. The Company's
obligation to replace faulty goods under the warranty period is recognized as provision as per IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
(iii) Bata club loyalty points
The Company operates a loyalty program where retail customers accumulate points for purchases made which entitle them
to discount on future purchases. A contract liability for the award points is recognized at the time of the sale. Revenue is
recognized when the points are redeemed or when they expire 12 months after the initial sale. A contract liability is
recognized until the points are redeemed or expire.

B. Finance income and finance expenses
Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested are recognized in profit or loss. Interest income is recognized
on accrual basis.
Finance expense comprises interest expense on overdraft, lease, defined benefit liability, receivable collection charge and
interest on shop managers account held with the Company. All finance expenses are recognized in profit or loss.

C. Employee benefits
The Company maintains both defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees. The
eligibility is determined according to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective deeds.
i) Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related services are
rendered by employees.
(a) Provident fund
The Company maintains three recognized provident funds for its permanent employees categorized as managers, officers
and workers. Members, upon confirmation as regular employment of the Company, are required by the Company to join one
of the three provident funds as per their "Grade/Designation". The eligible members of these three funds contribute 8% to
10.50% of their basic salary and the Company makes the equal contribution to these funds. Members of these funds become
eligible to receive the Company's contribution upon completion of 2 years of continuing services with the Company. These
funds are administered by the separate boards of trustees.
The Company recognizes the contribution to the defined contribution plan as an expense when an employee has rendered
services in exchange for those contributions. The legal and constructive obligation is limited to this amount and it agrees to
the fund contribution.
To pursuant the directive from Financial Reporting Council (FRC), each board of trustees returns the forfeited amounts from
the fund to the Company at the year end and the amounts are dully recognized as other income by the Company in profit or
loss.
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B. Earning Per Share (EPS)
Earning per share (EPS) increased compared to last year driven by revenue growth in sales volume and amount,
especially in post COVID period.

C. Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS)
Net operating cash flow per share increased compared to last year driven by revenue growth in sales volume and
amount as well as an increase in related collections, especially in post COVID period.

45. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

46. Change in significant accounting policy
During the year 2021, the Company conducted a review of its inventory policy to align with the Group. As per IAS 2, every
cost to bring the inventory to its final stage should be included in the inventory valuation. According to the Group policies,
freight costs between internal warehouses and retail stores represent an unavoidable part of the supply chain in getting
inventories to their present location and condition. Therefore, the Company has decided to include these freight costs in the
cost of inventory (e.g. capitalize and recognize as Cost of Sales when sold). The effect of changes in this policy for capitalized
freight cost is as follows:

In taka

Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories 34,001,358 
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax liabilities (7,650,306)

Increase/(decrease) in equity 26,351,052 

Decrease/(increase) in Cost of sales (Freight and transportation) 34,001,358 
Decrease/(increase) in income tax expenses (7,650,306)

Increase/(decrease) in profit 26,351,052 

47. Significant accounting policies
The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial
statements.
Set out below is an index of the significant accounting policies, the details of which are available on the pages that follow:
A. Revenue recognition 87
B. Finance income and finance expenses 87
C. Employee benefits 87
D. Income tax 88
E. Property, plant and equipment 89
F. Foreign currency 90
G. Financial instruments 90
H. Impairment 91
I. Inventories 92
J. Provisions 92
K. Leases 92
L. Earnings per share 93
M. Dividend distribution 94
N. Segment reporting 94
O. Duty drawback 94
P. Sales proceeds from wastage and scrap etc. 94
Q. Going concern 94
R. Contingent liabilities 94
S. Events after the reporting period 94

47. Significant accounting policies (continued)
A. Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of discounts, incentives, Value Added Tax (VAT) and loyalty points earned by customers on the Company’s
sales.
The Company recognizes revenue when a contractual performance obligation is fulfilled by transferring control over the
promised goods to a customer provided that collectability of the consideration is probable.
(i) Information about its performance obligations
The Company typically  satisfies its performance obligations which are as follows:

Nature When the Company typically satisfies its performance obligations
Retail Upon acceptance and paying for goods by customers at retail stores.
Wholesale Upon acceptance of goods at depots and/or distribution centers by the dealers 

(i.e. point of dispatching from depot and/or distributor's gate).
e-commerce Upon delivery to customers.
Export sales Free on board.

(ii) Obligations in relation to repair or replace
It is the Company's policy to sell its goods to the customers with a right to repair or replace within 30 days. The Company's
obligation to replace faulty goods under the warranty period is recognized as provision as per IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
(iii) Bata club loyalty points
The Company operates a loyalty program where retail customers accumulate points for purchases made which entitle them
to discount on future purchases. A contract liability for the award points is recognized at the time of the sale. Revenue is
recognized when the points are redeemed or when they expire 12 months after the initial sale. A contract liability is
recognized until the points are redeemed or expire.

B. Finance income and finance expenses
Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested are recognized in profit or loss. Interest income is recognized
on accrual basis.
Finance expense comprises interest expense on overdraft, lease, defined benefit liability, receivable collection charge and
interest on shop managers account held with the Company. All finance expenses are recognized in profit or loss.

C. Employee benefits
The Company maintains both defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees. The
eligibility is determined according to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective deeds.
i) Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related services are
rendered by employees.
(a) Provident fund
The Company maintains three recognized provident funds for its permanent employees categorized as managers, officers
and workers. Members, upon confirmation as regular employment of the Company, are required by the Company to join one
of the three provident funds as per their "Grade/Designation". The eligible members of these three funds contribute 8% to
10.50% of their basic salary and the Company makes the equal contribution to these funds. Members of these funds become
eligible to receive the Company's contribution upon completion of 2 years of continuing services with the Company. These
funds are administered by the separate boards of trustees.
The Company recognizes the contribution to the defined contribution plan as an expense when an employee has rendered
services in exchange for those contributions. The legal and constructive obligation is limited to this amount and it agrees to
the fund contribution.
To pursuant the directive from Financial Reporting Council (FRC), each board of trustees returns the forfeited amounts from
the fund to the Company at the year end and the amounts are dully recognized as other income by the Company in profit or
loss.
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47. Significant accounting policies (continued)
C. Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Managerial Staff pension fund
The Company maintains funded managerial staff pension scheme for management employees which is a defined
contribution plan. Members, upon confirmation as regular employment of the Company, are required by the Company to join
the pension fund in which only members contribute 20% of their basic salary. Members of this scheme become eligible to
receive pension upon completion of 10 years of continuing services with the Company. This fund is administered by a
separate board of trustees.
ii) Defined benefit plan 
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation
in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior years.
Gratuity scheme
The gratuity scheme has been converted from unfunded to funded one and applicable to all its employees. The Company
contributes to the fund as per Bangladesh Labor Act 2006 amended in 2013 for the eligible employees from the date of
joining. The fund is managed by a Board of Trustees. Members of this scheme become eligible to receive gratuity upon
completion of 12 months continuing services with the Company. The gratuity scheme is considered as defined benefit plan
as it meets the recognition criteria. The company’s obligation is to provide the agreed benefits to current and former
employees.
The net defined benefit liability or asset in respect of gratuity scheme is recognized in the statement financial position which
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by a professional actuary. Projected Unit Credit method is used to measure
the present value of defined benefit obligations and related current and past service cost by using mutually compatible
actuarial assumptions about demographic and financial variables.
Current service cost, past service cost, amortization of past service cost, gain/loss on settlements and curtailments and net
interest on the defined benefit liability and asset are recognized in profit or loss.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized in the year in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings
in the statement of changes in equity and in the statement of financial position.
c) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if
the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)
The Company provides 5% of its profit before charging such expense as WPPF in accordance with "The Bangladesh Labor
Act 2006 (amended in 2013)”.

D. Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in equity.
(i) Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Bata qualifies as a "Publicly Traded
Company" hence the applicable tax rate is 22.5%.

47. Significant accounting policies (continued)
D. Income tax (continued)

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they are reversed, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity.
A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

E. Property, plant and equipment
i) Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment, excluding land, are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Land is measured at amount revalued in 1979.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of assets. The cost of self-constructed assets (i.e.
show rooms and office and factory buildings) includes the following:
- the cost of materials and direct labor;
- any other cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for the intended use;
- when the Company has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located; and 
- capitalized borrowing costs.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is
recognized in profit or loss. 
ii) Subsequent costs
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred.
iii) Depreciation 
Items of property, plant and equipment except land are depreciated on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over the estimated
useful lives of each component.   
Addition during the year of property, plant and equipment is depreciated when an asset is available for use, while no
depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative year of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

2021 2020
Buildings 40 40
Plant and machineries 13.33 13.33
Vehicles 5 5
Computer and computer equipments 4 4
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 4 - 13.33 4 - 13.33

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
iv) Under construction
Property, plant and equipment that is being under construction/ acquisition is accounted for as capital work in progress until
available for use and measured at cost. 
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47. Significant accounting policies (continued)
C. Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Managerial Staff pension fund
The Company maintains funded managerial staff pension scheme for management employees which is a defined
contribution plan. Members, upon confirmation as regular employment of the Company, are required by the Company to join
the pension fund in which only members contribute 20% of their basic salary. Members of this scheme become eligible to
receive pension upon completion of 10 years of continuing services with the Company. This fund is administered by a
separate board of trustees.
ii) Defined benefit plan 
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation
in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior years.
Gratuity scheme
The gratuity scheme has been converted from unfunded to funded one and applicable to all its employees. The Company
contributes to the fund as per Bangladesh Labor Act 2006 amended in 2013 for the eligible employees from the date of
joining. The fund is managed by a Board of Trustees. Members of this scheme become eligible to receive gratuity upon
completion of 12 months continuing services with the Company. The gratuity scheme is considered as defined benefit plan
as it meets the recognition criteria. The company’s obligation is to provide the agreed benefits to current and former
employees.
The net defined benefit liability or asset in respect of gratuity scheme is recognized in the statement financial position which
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by a professional actuary. Projected Unit Credit method is used to measure
the present value of defined benefit obligations and related current and past service cost by using mutually compatible
actuarial assumptions about demographic and financial variables.
Current service cost, past service cost, amortization of past service cost, gain/loss on settlements and curtailments and net
interest on the defined benefit liability and asset are recognized in profit or loss.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized in the year in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings
in the statement of changes in equity and in the statement of financial position.
c) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if
the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)
The Company provides 5% of its profit before charging such expense as WPPF in accordance with "The Bangladesh Labor
Act 2006 (amended in 2013)”.

D. Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in equity.
(i) Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Bata qualifies as a "Publicly Traded
Company" hence the applicable tax rate is 22.5%.

47. Significant accounting policies (continued)
D. Income tax (continued)

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they are reversed, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity.
A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

E. Property, plant and equipment
i) Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment, excluding land, are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Land is measured at amount revalued in 1979.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of assets. The cost of self-constructed assets (i.e.
show rooms and office and factory buildings) includes the following:
- the cost of materials and direct labor;
- any other cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for the intended use;
- when the Company has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located; and 
- capitalized borrowing costs.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is
recognized in profit or loss. 
ii) Subsequent costs
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred.
iii) Depreciation 
Items of property, plant and equipment except land are depreciated on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over the estimated
useful lives of each component.   
Addition during the year of property, plant and equipment is depreciated when an asset is available for use, while no
depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative year of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

2021 2020
Buildings 40 40
Plant and machineries 13.33 13.33
Vehicles 5 5
Computer and computer equipments 4 4
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 4 - 13.33 4 - 13.33

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
iv) Under construction
Property, plant and equipment that is being under construction/ acquisition is accounted for as capital work in progress until
available for use and measured at cost. 
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47. Significant accounting policies (continued)

F. Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at exchange rates on the date of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies on the reporting date are retranslated to
the functional currency using the exchange rate at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate on the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign
currency that are measured based on historical cost are translated using the exchange rate on the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognized in profit or loss.

G. Financial instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.
i) Financial assets
(a) Initial recognition
The Company initially recognizes financial assets in its statements of financial position when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(b) Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

(c) Classification and measurement of financial assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets is based on the basis of both:

- the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Three measurement classifications for financial assets have been established which are amortized cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income and fair value through profit and loss. These measurement classifications align with the
following three business models available under IFRS 9:

- Hold to collect– Financial assets held with the objective to collect contractual cash flows;

- Hold to collect and sell– Financial assets held with the objective to collect  contractual cash flows and sell;

- Other– Financial assets held for trading or assets that do not meet the criteria for either ‘Hold to collect’ or ‘Hold to collect
and sell’. Financial assets designated as trading and are held with an objective to sell the assets in the short term.

For purposes of determining the measurement classification, financial assets under the ‘Hold to collect’ and ‘Hold to collect
and sell’ business model require an assessment to determine whether the cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI). Basic lending arrangements with limited volatility in cash flows typically have contractual cash flows that are
SPPI; however, other factors should be considered in making this determination, such as whether interest payments provide
only a consideration for the passage of time associated with time value of money.

Financial assets under a 'Hold to collect' business model, with contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are classified and
measured at amortized cost. Financial assets under a 'Hold to collect and sell' business model, with contractual cash flows
that are SPPI, are classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 

Financial assets that have contractual cash flows that are not SPPI, are designated as trading or do not fit the business model
criteria for 'Hold to collect' and 'Hold to collect and sell' are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Based on the above, recognition and measurement relies on amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss and fair value
through other comprehensive income. 

Financial assets currently being used by the Company are as follows:

47. Significant accounting policies (continued)
G. Financial instruments (continued)

(d) Initial measurement
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, except cash in hand, comprise of cash balances and all cash deposits with maturities of three
months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used
by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments.
Trade and other receivables
At initial recognition, the Company measures trade and other receivables at their transaction price.
Security and other deposits
At initial recognition, the Company measures security and other deposits at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition.
(e) Subsequent measurement of financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost.
ii) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognized when its contractual obligations arising from past events are certain and settlement of
which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits from the Company.
(a) Initial recognition
The Company initially recognizes financial liabilities in its statements of financial position when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
(b) Derecognition
The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired.
(c) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities currently being used by the Company which are creditors for goods, creditors for expenses, creditors for
other finance, accrued expenses and lease liabilities which are measured in the following way.
(d) Initial measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures its financial liabilities at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition.
(e) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The Company classifies its financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost.
Trade and other payables
The Company recognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past events are certain and
the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resources embodying economic benefits.

H. Impairment
(i) Financial assets
A loss allowance for expected credit loss (ECL) on financial assets has been calculated as permitted by IFRS-9, that are
measured at amortized cost. The Company measures loss allowance on financial assets at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition considering
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and forward-looking information.
Regardless the Company also assesses significant increases in credit risk on trade receivables when contractual payments
are past due over 30-60 days which is the maximum period over which the Company is exposed to credit loss.
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47. Significant accounting policies (continued)

F. Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at exchange rates on the date of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies on the reporting date are retranslated to
the functional currency using the exchange rate at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate on the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign
currency that are measured based on historical cost are translated using the exchange rate on the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognized in profit or loss.

G. Financial instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.
i) Financial assets
(a) Initial recognition
The Company initially recognizes financial assets in its statements of financial position when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(b) Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

(c) Classification and measurement of financial assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets is based on the basis of both:

- the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Three measurement classifications for financial assets have been established which are amortized cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income and fair value through profit and loss. These measurement classifications align with the
following three business models available under IFRS 9:

- Hold to collect– Financial assets held with the objective to collect contractual cash flows;

- Hold to collect and sell– Financial assets held with the objective to collect  contractual cash flows and sell;

- Other– Financial assets held for trading or assets that do not meet the criteria for either ‘Hold to collect’ or ‘Hold to collect
and sell’. Financial assets designated as trading and are held with an objective to sell the assets in the short term.

For purposes of determining the measurement classification, financial assets under the ‘Hold to collect’ and ‘Hold to collect
and sell’ business model require an assessment to determine whether the cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI). Basic lending arrangements with limited volatility in cash flows typically have contractual cash flows that are
SPPI; however, other factors should be considered in making this determination, such as whether interest payments provide
only a consideration for the passage of time associated with time value of money.

Financial assets under a 'Hold to collect' business model, with contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are classified and
measured at amortized cost. Financial assets under a 'Hold to collect and sell' business model, with contractual cash flows
that are SPPI, are classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 

Financial assets that have contractual cash flows that are not SPPI, are designated as trading or do not fit the business model
criteria for 'Hold to collect' and 'Hold to collect and sell' are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Based on the above, recognition and measurement relies on amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss and fair value
through other comprehensive income. 

Financial assets currently being used by the Company are as follows:

47. Significant accounting policies (continued)
G. Financial instruments (continued)

(d) Initial measurement
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, except cash in hand, comprise of cash balances and all cash deposits with maturities of three
months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used
by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments.
Trade and other receivables
At initial recognition, the Company measures trade and other receivables at their transaction price.
Security and other deposits
At initial recognition, the Company measures security and other deposits at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition.
(e) Subsequent measurement of financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost.
ii) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognized when its contractual obligations arising from past events are certain and settlement of
which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits from the Company.
(a) Initial recognition
The Company initially recognizes financial liabilities in its statements of financial position when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
(b) Derecognition
The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired.
(c) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities currently being used by the Company which are creditors for goods, creditors for expenses, creditors for
other finance, accrued expenses and lease liabilities which are measured in the following way.
(d) Initial measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures its financial liabilities at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition.
(e) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The Company classifies its financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost.
Trade and other payables
The Company recognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past events are certain and
the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resources embodying economic benefits.

H. Impairment
(i) Financial assets
A loss allowance for expected credit loss (ECL) on financial assets has been calculated as permitted by IFRS-9, that are
measured at amortized cost. The Company measures loss allowance on financial assets at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition considering
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and forward-looking information.
Regardless the Company also assesses significant increases in credit risk on trade receivables when contractual payments
are past due over 30-60 days which is the maximum period over which the Company is exposed to credit loss.
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47. Significant accounting policies (continued)

H. Impairment (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss

The Company measures expected credit loss of a financial asset which is a probability-weighted amount and determined by
considering time value of money using effective interest rate of the financial asset (i.e. the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive
discounted at the original effective interest rate). Regardless, the Company recognizes 50% impairment provision on trade
receivables when contractual payments from customers are past due over 180 days and recognizes 100% impairment
provision on trade receivables when contractual payments from customers are past due over 365 days, on collective basis.

(ii) Non-financial assets

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or Cash Generating Unit (CGU). For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGU.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis. However, no impairment losses arose and reported in 2021.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized. No such impairment loss arose in 2021 as well.

I. Inventories

Inventories except raw material in transit are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories
is based on the first-in first-out principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of
manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses.

J. Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
reliably be estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

K. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration. 

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets. 

47. Significant accounting policies (continued)

K. Leases (continued)

(i) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in- substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. 

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(ii)  Right-of-use assets

From 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 has been adopted and all leasing arrangements except those having less than 12 months of
useful life and underlying asset values of less than Taka 425,000 when new, have been capitalized as "right-of-use" asset
with a corresponding financial liability on the financial position.

Leased assets are capitalized from the start date of the lease agreement at the present value of the future leased payments,
based on the rate of interest entered in the asset master data. Low value (< Taka 425,000) and short term leases
(<12months) have been excluded from the recognition requirements and expensed in operating profit as rental costs. Lease
reassessment and lease modification to increase/decrease the value of an asset depending on a change in scope of lease
agreement can be made if necessary. 

The asset is written off on a straight-line basis over the tenure of the lease agreements. Hence, the useful life of any lease
assets depends on the number of periods the assets can be used. The useful life of such assets are dependent on individual
agreement and can vary from one agreement to another.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liabilities. When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property, it is presented
in investment property. 

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company does not apply the recognition and measurement requirements of IFRS 16 to short-term leases (leases of less
than 12 months maximum duration). It also does not apply the recognition and measurement requirements of IFRS 16 to
leases for which the underlying assets are low value (i.e. less than Taka 425,000 when new). Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

L. Earnings per share

The Company presents its basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.    

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any. However, dilution of EPS
is not applicable for these financial statements as there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares at the reporting date. 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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47. Significant accounting policies (continued)

H. Impairment (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss

The Company measures expected credit loss of a financial asset which is a probability-weighted amount and determined by
considering time value of money using effective interest rate of the financial asset (i.e. the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive
discounted at the original effective interest rate). Regardless, the Company recognizes 50% impairment provision on trade
receivables when contractual payments from customers are past due over 180 days and recognizes 100% impairment
provision on trade receivables when contractual payments from customers are past due over 365 days, on collective basis.

(ii) Non-financial assets

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or Cash Generating Unit (CGU). For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGU.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis. However, no impairment losses arose and reported in 2021.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized. No such impairment loss arose in 2021 as well.

I. Inventories

Inventories except raw material in transit are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories
is based on the first-in first-out principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of
manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses.

J. Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
reliably be estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

K. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration. 

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets. 

47. Significant accounting policies (continued)

K. Leases (continued)

(i) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in- substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. 

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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with a corresponding financial liability on the financial position.

Leased assets are capitalized from the start date of the lease agreement at the present value of the future leased payments,
based on the rate of interest entered in the asset master data. Low value (< Taka 425,000) and short term leases
(<12months) have been excluded from the recognition requirements and expensed in operating profit as rental costs. Lease
reassessment and lease modification to increase/decrease the value of an asset depending on a change in scope of lease
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at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for certain
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iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company does not apply the recognition and measurement requirements of IFRS 16 to short-term leases (leases of less
than 12 months maximum duration). It also does not apply the recognition and measurement requirements of IFRS 16 to
leases for which the underlying assets are low value (i.e. less than Taka 425,000 when new). Lease payments on short-term
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L. Earnings per share

The Company presents its basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.    

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any. However, dilution of EPS
is not applicable for these financial statements as there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares at the reporting date. 
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47. Significant accounting policies (continued)

M. Dividend distribution

The Board of Directors has established a dividend policy, which forms the basis for the proposals on dividend payments that
it makes to the shareholders taking into consideration the business performance of the Company and its strategic initiatives.
The Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Company to draw up a long-term and predictable dividend policy. The
objective of the policy is to allow the shareholders to make informed investment decisions. The Board has approved the
following dividend policy:

(i) The Board shall recommend interim/final and cash/stock dividends to the shareholders, which shall be subject to the
approval of the shareholders at Annual General Meetings of the Company.

(ii) The Company may issue bonus share as a part of a stock dividend in any financial year, subject to approval from the
board and Company's shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

(iii) Dividends shall be paid only out of current profits and/or past profits after providing for depreciation and setting off losses
if any subject to the company’s business performance and cash availability.

The Company shall aim for as frequent dividend distribution as possible to the consistent growth in dividend payout.
Management monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

N. Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. All
operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s management to make decisions about resources to
be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the management include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis.

O. Duty drawback

Duty drawback claimed on export sales is adjusted against cost of imported raw materials.

P. Sales proceeds from wastage and scrap etc.

Sales of empty drum of chemicals, split leather and other wastage of materials have been adjusted with cost of raw materials
consumed.

Q. Going concern

The financial statements of the Company are prepared on a going concern basis. As per management assessment there are no
material uncertainties related to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. 

R. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or a present
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

The Company discloses contingent liability in the financial statements. A provision is recognized in the period in which the recognition
criteria of provision is met.

S. Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period which provide additional information about the Company's position at the date of statement of
financial position or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

48. Standards issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2021 and earlier application is permitted;
however, the Company has not early adopted the new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements.

A. Onerous contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)

The amendments specify which costs an entity includes in determining the cost of fulfilling a contract for the purpose of assessing
whether the contract is onerous. The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 to
contracts existing at the date when the amendments are first applied. At the date of initial application, the cumulative effect of
applying the amendments is recognized as an opening balance adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity, as
appropriate. The comparatives are not restated. The Company has determined that all contracts existing at 31 December 2021 will
be completed before the amendments become effective.

B. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

The amendments address issues that might affect financial reporting as a result of the reform of an interest rate benchmark,
including the effects of changes to contractual cash flows or hedging relationships arising from the replacement of an interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate. The amendments provide practical relief from certain requirements in IFRS 9, IAS
39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 relating to:

- Changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities; and

- Hedge accounting.

C. Other standards

The following new and amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

- COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16).

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16).

- Reference to Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3).

- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1).

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts.

Notes to the financial statements (continued) Notes to the financial statements (continued)

94 95

Bata A.Report-2022 Cut.qxp:Bata A.Report-08.qxd  5/31/22  11:02 AM  Page 48



Annual Report
2021

Annual Report
2021

47. Significant accounting policies (continued)

M. Dividend distribution

The Board of Directors has established a dividend policy, which forms the basis for the proposals on dividend payments that
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criteria of provision is met.

S. Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period which provide additional information about the Company's position at the date of statement of
financial position or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.
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however, the Company has not early adopted the new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements.
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The amendments specify which costs an entity includes in determining the cost of fulfilling a contract for the purpose of assessing
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39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 relating to:
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In taka Manufacturing Trading 2021 2020

Revenue 7,021,059,623 723,876,477 7,744,936,100 5,084,505,532 

Cost of sales (4,471,268,548) (455,567,747) (4,926,836,295) (3,790,379,242)

Gross profit 2,549,791,075 268,308,730 2,818,099,805 1,294,126,290

Other income/(loss) 14,240,866 2,467,837 16,708,703 6,843,639 

Operating expenses (2,391,799,991) (251,683,687) (2,643,483,678) (2,268,559,359)

Impairment loss/(reversal) on trade receivables 2,885,107 303,593 3,188,700 (443,920,040)

Operating profit/(loss) 175,117,057 19,396,473 194,513,530 (1,411,509,470)

Finance income 18,291,731 1,924,797 20,216,528 19,630,776 

Finance costs (148,321,537) (15,607,539) (163,929,076) (201,891,497)

Net finance costs (130,029,806) (13,682,742) (143,712,548) (182,260,721)

Profit/(loss) before tax and contribution to WPPF 45,087,251 5,713,731 50,800,982 (1,593,770,191)

Contribution to WPPF (2,298,213) (241,836) (2,540,049) -   

Profit/(loss) before tax 42,789,038 5,471,895 48,260,933 (1,593,770,191)

Income tax expense (105,625,064) (11,114,686) (116,739,750) 269,071,750 

Profit/(loss) for the year (62,836,026) (5,642,791) (68,478,817) (1,324,698,441)

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax (34,126,632) (3,591,068) (37,717,700) 3,215,250 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) (96,962,658) (9,233,859) (106,196,517) (1,321,483,191)

Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income by Manufacturing and Trading

 Annexure - 1 

Anirban Asit Kumar Ghosh K. M. Rezaul Hasanat Shambhu Nath Jha Md. Hashim Reza
Managing Director Director Finance Director Company Secretary

& GM Finance 

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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AbyMÖn K‡i D‡jøL Kiæb
†kqvi‡nvìv‡ii dwjI / weI bs †kqvi msL¨v

Dcw ’̄wZ

Avwg/Avgiv GZØviv e„n¯úwZevi, 30 Ryb 2022    mKvj 11 :0 0Uvq wWwRUvj cøvUd‡g© i gva¨‡g AbywôZe¨ evUv my †Kv¤úvwb
(evsjv‡`k) wjwg‡UW-Gi 50 Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Avgvi/Avgv‡`i Dcw ’̄wZ wjwce× Kijvg|

†kqvi‡nvìv‡ii bvg
¯̂vÿi

cÖwZwbwai bvg
¯̂vÿi

†kqvi‡nvìv‡ii dwjI / weI bs

Avwg/Avgiv

wVKvbv

evUv my †Kv¤úvwb (evsjv‡`k) wjwg‡UW-Gi †kqvi‡nvìvi wnmv‡e

Rbve /†eMg †K
Avgvi/ Avgv‡`i cÖwZwbwa wnmv‡e AvMvgx e„n¯úwZevi, 30 Ryb 2022   AbywôZe¨ †Kv¤úvwbi 50 Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Ges
Gi gyjZex †NvwlZ mfvq Avgvi/ Avgv‡`i c‡ÿ Dcw ’̄Z _vKvi Ges †fvU cÖ`vb Kivi Rb¨ wbhy³ Kijvg|

mvÿ¨ wnmv‡e AvR                                  2022  Zvwi‡L Avwg / Avgiv GB `wj‡j mÁv‡b ¯̂vÿi Kijvg|

†kqvi‡nvìv‡ii ¯̂vÿi cÖwZwbwai ¯̂vÿi

ZvwiL mvÿxi ¯̂vÿi

20.00 UvKvi 
ivR¯̂ wU‡KU

(†Kv¤úvwb‡Z msiwÿZ †kqvi‡nvìv‡ii ¯̂vÿi Aek¨B wgj‡Z n‡e|)
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Form of Proxy

Please Quote
Shareholder's Folio / BO No. No. of Shares held

ATTENDANCE

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 50th Annual General Meeting of Bata Shoe Company

(Bangladesh) Limited through digital platform on Thursday, 30 June 2022 at 11:00 a.m.

Full name of the Shareholder
(in block letter) Signature

Full name of the Proxy
(in block letter) Signature

Shareholder's Folio / BO No.

I/We

of

being shareholder(s) of BATA SHOE COMPANy (BANGLADESH) LIMITED, entitled to vote hereby appoint
Mr./Ms.
as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 50th Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Thursday, 30 June 2022 and any adjournment thereof and poll that may be taken in
consequenced thereof.

As witness my/our hand this day of 2022

Signature of Shareholder (s) Signature of Proxy

Date Signature of Witness

Revenue Stamp
of Tk. 20.00

(Signature of Shareholder (s) must be in accordance with specimen signature with the Company.)
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